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NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS" MEETING

Dear Stockholder:

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of BDO LEASING AND
FINANCE, INC, (the “Corporation”) will be held on April 23, 2014, Wednesday, at 10:00 a.m. at
the Francisco Santiago Hall, Mezzanine Floor, South Tower, BDO Corporate Center, 7899 Makati Avenue,
Makati City, Metro Manila, to consider and approve the matters set forth in the following Agenda:

L. Call to order

II. Certification of Notice and Quorum

III. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on April 17, 2013
Iv. Presentation of Annual Report

V. Open Forum

VI. Approval and Ratification of Acts and Proceedings of the Board of Directors, the duly
Constituted Committees and Corporate Officers

VII. Election of the Board of Directors

VIII. Appointment of External Auditor

IX. Amendment of Third Article of the Articles of Incorporation of BDOLF.

X. Other Business

XI. Adjournment

The record date for the determination of the stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at,
said meeting is fixed at the close of business hours on March 7, 2014.

If you do not expect to attend the Annual Meeting, please execute and return the Proxy Form in
the envelope provided for the purpose. The Proxy Form is not required to be notarized. Proxies shall be
submitted on or before April 13, 2014 addressed to the attention of the Corporate Secretary.
Validation of proxies is set on April 16, 2014, 12:00 p.m. at BDO Corporate Center, 7899 Makati
Avenue, Makati City.

Meeting will start at 10:00 a.m. Registration will begin at 8:00 a.m. and close at 10:00 a.m. or
immediately before voting starts. Please bring this notice and any form of identification such as passport,
driver’s license, TIN card or any other government-issued ID, to facilitate registration.

Makati City, February 20, 2014.

Qo /‘(, W
JOSEPH JASON M. NATIVIDAD

Corporate Secretary

BDO Leasing & Finance, Inc.

BDO Leasing Centre

Corinthian Gardens, Ortigas Avenue
Quezon City, Philippines

Tel +63(2) 635 6416

Fax +63(2) 635 5811, 635 5805, 635 3898

wwwhbdo.com.ph We find ways’



Leasing

ANNEX “A”
AGENDA
DETAILS AND RATIONALE
L. Call to order. The Chairperson, Ms. Teresita T. Sy, will formally open the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting of BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. (the “Corporation”).
IL. Certification of Notice and Quorum. The Certification of Notice and Quorum will be

made by the Corporate Secretary stating that the Notices of Meeting, the Agenda, the
Definitive Information Statement were duly sent to all stockholders of record in accordance
with the By-Laws of the Corporation and the Securities Regulation Code, and attest whether
a quorum is present for the valid transaction of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and all the
matters included in the agenda.

III. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stackholders’ Meeting held on April 17,
2013. Copies of the Minutes are available for examination during office hours at the Office
of the Corporate Secretary and at the Corporation’s website www.bdo.com.ph/business/leasing-
financing/about us . Stockholders will be asked to approve the Minutes. Below is the text of
the proposed resolution:

“RESOLVED, That the Stockholders of BDO Leasing and
Finance, Inc. approve, as they hereby approve, the Minutes of
the Annual Stockholder’s Meeting held on April 17, 2013.”

Iv. Presentation of Annual Report and Approval of the 2013 Audited Financial
Statements. The Reporl presents a summary of the performance of the Corporation for
the year 2013. It includes the highlights of the Audited Financial Statements ("AFS”) of the
Corporation for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2013 which is incorporated in the
Information Statement. Copies of AFS are submitted to the Securities and Exchange
Commission and Bureau of Internal Revenue.

V. Open Forum. Every Stockholder, after identifying himself/itself, may raise a-ny relevant
question or express any appropriate comment.

VI, Approval and Ratification of Acts and Proceedings of the Board of Directors, the
duly Constituted Committees and Corporate Officers. All actions and proceedings of
the Board of Directors, the Board Committees, and the Corporate Officers of the Corporation
from the last Annual Meeting of the Corporation held on April 17, 2013 will be presented to
the stockholders for their approval and ratification. These collective acts are the main keys
to the successful performance of the Corporation in 2013.

VII.  Election of Directors. The Chairman of thc Nomination Committee will present to the
stockholders the nominees for election as members of the Board of Directors of the

- BDO Leasing & Finance, Inc.
BDO Leasing Centre
Corinthian Gardens, Ortigas Avenue
Quezon City, Philippines
Tel +63(2) 6356416
Fax +63(2) 635 5811, 635 5805, 635 3898

wwwhbdo.com.ph 2 We find ways’



VIII.

IX.

XL

Corporation, including the independent directors. Nomination period is February 21 to
March 07, 2014. The profiles of the nominees to the Board of Directors are to be provided
in the Information Statement for reference of the stockholders.

The stockholders will cast their votes for the nominees they want to elect to the Board of
Directors of the Corporation. The tabulation and validation of votes will be conducted by the
Office of the Corporate Secretary or an independent party to be engaged by the Corporation.

Appointment of External Auditor. The Board Audit Committee of the Corporation would
accept and screen the nominees for external auditor of the Corporation. It will make the
appropriate recommendation on the appointment of one auditing firm as external auditor of
the Corporation. The recommended external auditor will be presented to the stockholders
for their approval.

Amendment of the Third Article of the Articles of Incorporation. The amendment of
the Third Article of lhe Arlicles of Incorporatlon of BDOLF changing its principal place of
business from “Metropolitan Manila” to "BDO Leasing Centre, Corinthian Gardens, Ortigas
Avenue, Quezon City, Philippines” in compliance with Securities and Exchange Commission
Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series of 2014 requiring corporations whose articles of
incorporation only indicate a general address for their principal place of business to amend
the same and specify their complete business address.

Other Business that may properly be brought before the meeting. All other matters
that arise after the Notice of Meeting and Agenda has been sent out, and which needs to be
presented to the stockholders, will be taken up under this item.

Adjournment. After consideration of all buslness, the Chalrperson shall declare the
meeting adjourned. This formally ends the 2014 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.



PROXY

KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That I/We, the undersigned stockholder(s) of BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC.,
a Philippine  Corporation, do hereby nominate, constitute and appoint
, as my/our true and lawful attorney or proxy, with
full power. of substitution and revocation, to represent me/us and vote all shares
registered in my/our name(s) on the books of said Corporation, at any and all regular or
special meetings of the shareholders of said Corporation or at any adjournment or
adjournments thereof, or any and all matters and things that may came at said meetings
or any adjournments thereof, as fully to all intents and purposes as I/We might or could
do if personally present, hereby revoking any proxy or proxies heretofore given to vote
such slock, and ralifying and confirming  all that my/our above mentioned attorney or
proxy or his/her/their substitute(s), may do or cause to be done by virtue of these
presents.

In case of the non-attendance of my/our said attorney or proxy above named or
his/her/their duly designated substitute(s) at any particular meeting, I/We hereby
authorized and empower the Chairman of the meeting to fully exercise all rights as
my/our attorney or proxy at such meeting. The power and authority hereby granted shall
remain valid and effective until such time as the same is withdrawn by me/us through
notice in writing delivered to the Secretary before the date of any such meeting or
adjournment(s) thereof, or until the last day of the fifth year from the date hereof,
whichever comes first, but shall be deemed suspended and inapplicable in instances
where I personally attend the meeting.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, [/we have hereunto set my/our hand(s) this day of
_,at _ Philippines.

Printed Name and Signature of Stockholder

Address

THIS PROXY IS NOT REQUIRED TO BE NOTARIZED
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-1S

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

SECURITIES AND EXTHANG:

COM 5"'\‘* ;

N

n MAR 7 % 203 | i

Check the appropriate box: S

[ ] Preliminary Information Statement

[\/ ] Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter:
BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC.

Country of Incorporation or organization: Metro Manila, Philippines
SEC Identificaion Number: 97869
BIR Tax Identification Code: 000-486-050-000
Address of Principal Office: BDO Leasing Centre

Corinthian Gardens

Ortigas Avenue

Quezon City 1100

Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code: (632) 635-6416/635-5811
(632) 635-5805/635-3898

Date, time and place of the annual meeting of the security holders:

Date - April 23, 2014 (Wednesday)
Time - 10:00 AM '
Place - Francisco Santiago Hall

Mezzanine Floor, BDO Corporate Center
7899 Makati Avenue, Makati City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security

holdets:
On or before March 28, 2014
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Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the
RSA (Information on Number of Shares and Amount of Debt is Applicable Only to
Corporate Registrants):

Subscribed and Outstanding

Title of each Class No. of Shates Amount in Pesos

Common 2.162,475,312 Php 2,162,475,312.00

Total 2,162 12 Php 2,162 12
Authorized Outstanding

Short Term Commercial Paper Php 15,000,000,000.00 9,120,500,000.00

Long Term Commercial Papet 0.00 0.00

Total Php 15,000,000,000.00 9,120,500,000.00

Are any or all of registrant’s securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes (V) No( ) Philippine Stock Exchange, Common Shates
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BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC.
INFORMATION STATEMENT

TEHIS INFORMATION STATEMENT IS BEING FURNISLED TO STOCKIIOLDERS OIF RECORD O1F BDO
LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. A3 OF MARCH 7, 2014 1N CONNECTION WITH 1TIE ANNUAL

STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING. COPIES OF ITIE INFORMATION STATEMENT WILL BE FIRST SENT OR
GIVEN TO SECURITY TTOLDIRS ON OR BEFORI; MARCH 28, 2014.

INFORMATION REQUITRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SECURITY HOLDERS

The Annual Stockholders” Meeting of BDO Leasing and Finance, Tnc. (the “Company” or the
“Registrant”) for 2014 will be held on Wednesday, April 23, 2014 at 10:00 in the morning at the Francisco
Santiago Hall, Mezzanine Floor, BDO Corporate Center, 7899 Makati Avenue, Makati City, Philippines.

COMPLETE MAILING ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF REGISTRANT

The Company’s complete mailing address, principal address and principal office is at the BDO Leasing
Centre, Corinthian Gardens, Ortigas Avenue, Quezon City.

ITEM 2. DISSENTER’S RIGHT OF APPRAISAL

The Company respects the inherent rights of shareholders in accordance with law. The Company recognizes
that all shareholders should be treated fairly and equally whether they are controlling or minority, local or
foreign. To ensure this, the By Laws of the Company provides that all shates of each class should carry the
same rights, and any changes in the voting rights shall be approved by them.

When a proposed corporate action would involve a substantial and fundamental change in the Company in
the cases provided by law, a stockholder may exercise his appraisal rights. Pursuant to Section 81 of the
Corporation Code of the Philippines, a stockholder may exetcise his appraisal right by dissenting on any of
the following corporate actions and demanding payment of the fair value of his shares:

(1)  amendment to the articles of incorporation that has the effect of changing or restricting the rights
of any stockholder or class of shares;

(2) amendment to the articles of incorporation that has the effect of authorizing preferences in any
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class;

(3) amendment to the articles of incorporation that either extends or shortens the term of corporate
existence;

(4)  in case of lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or substantially all
of the corporate property and assets as provided in the Corporation Code; or

(5)  in case of merger or consolidation.
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The pracedure for the exercise of a stockholder’s appraisal right is as follows:

1
©

©)

)

®)

©)

)

®)

A stockholder shall have dissented to such corporate action;

Within thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote was taken, the dissenting stockholder shall
make a written demand on the Company for payment of the fair value of his shares.

Failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal right.

Within ten (10) days after demanding payment for his shares, the dissenting stockholder shall
submit to the Company the certificate(s) of stock representing his shares for notation thereon that
such shares are dissenting shares. His failure to do so shall, at the option of the Company,
terminate his appraisal rights.

No demand for payment as aforesaid may be withdrawn by the dissenting stockholder unless the
Company consents thereto.

If the corporate action is implemented or effected, the Company shall pay to such dissenting
stockholder, upon surrender of the certificate(s) of stock representing his shares, the fair value
thereof as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or
depreciation in anticipation of a merger if such be the corporate action involved.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the
stockholders, the dissenting stockholder and the Company cannot agree on the fair value of the
shares, it shall appraised and determined by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall be
named by the stockholder, another by the Compay, and the third by the two (2) thus chosen.

The findings of a majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the
Company within thirty (30) days after such award is made. No payment shall be made to any
dissenting stockholder unless the Company has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover
such payment.

Upon payment of the agreed or awarded price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shares to
the Company.

There are no matters to be taken up in the stockholders’ meeting which would warrant the exetcise of an
appraisal right. The proposed amendment to the Third Article of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation changing the
principal place of business of the Company from ‘Metropolitan Manila” to ‘BDO Leasing Centre, Corinthian Gardens,
Ortigas Avenue, Quezon City, Philippines”, will not entitle a dissenting shareholder to excercise its appraisal right as the same
does not fall within any of the cases enumerated under Section 80 of the Corporation Code.

ITEM 3. INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN OR OPPOSITION TO MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

The Registrant is not aware of any substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, of
any director of the Registrant, nominee for election or associate of any of the foregoing in any matter to be
acted upon, other than the election to office. No information has been given to the Registrant by any of its
directors of his intention to oppose any action to be taken by the Registrant at the meeting.
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B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ITEM 4. VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

The number of shares outstanding and entitled to vote in the stockholders' meeting is 2,162,475,312 common
shares. The record date tfor pusposes ol detetinining stockholders entitled to vote in the meeting is March 7,

2014. The Company has no class of shares other than common shares.

In the election of directors, each stockholder entitled to vote may cumulate and distribute his votes in
accordance with the provisions of the Corporation Code. There are no conditions precedent for the exercise
of the cumulative voting rights in the election of directors.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN RECORD AND BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT ARE AS
FOLLOWS:

(1) Owners of more than 5% of voting securities as of February 28, 2014:

Name and Address of ; Name of Beneficial | _
Record Owner & | . Owmer& | Citizenship. | [Vumberof Petcentage

| Relationship with =~ -"°"P" Shares Held -

.. Record Owner | "

Title of

class Relationship with Issuer

. BDO Unibank, Inc.
(formerly Banco De Oro

Unibank, Inc) | 1,840,116,632

BDO Cotporate Center . - '
- Common : 7899 Makati Avenue, Makati '; Filipino . 85.093%
City : .

. BDO Unibank, Inc. is the
¢ parent company of the
Registrant

| PCD Nominee Cotp. } Filipino 230975702 10.681%
G/F Makati Stock Exchange : :
- Building, 6767 Ayala Avenue,
Makati City No stockholder _
PCD Nominee Corp. ‘;;;’“Z f“zﬁf than | g reigner 1,547,978 | 0.716%
Common | G/F Makati Stock Exchange o ;

Building, 6767 Ayala Ave., . companys
Makatt . voting secutities

f PCD Nominee has no
relationship with the Company
except as stockholder.

Ms. Teresita T. Sy or Mr. Nestor V. Tan, Chairperson and President, respectively, of BDO Unibank, Inc.
(“BDO Unibank” ot the “Parent Company”) will vote on behalf of the Parent Company.
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*BDO Unibank is owned by the following stockholders:

" Title of

Class

- Common

. Common
: Common

: Common

{ Common

Name & Address of Record Owner

- SM Investments Cotpotatlon

10th Flr, L.V. Locsin Bldg,, 6752 Ayala

. Avenue, Malmtl City

PCD Nominee Corp.
37/T The Enterprise Center

i Ayala Avenue, Makati City
: PCD Nomince Cotp.

¢ 37/F The Enterprise Center

Ayala Avenue, Makati City

; Multi- Realty Development Corpotration

10/F L.V. Locsin Building
6752 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Sybase Equity Investments Corporation

| SM Corporate Offices Bldg, A
i Central Business Park Bay Blvd.
. Bay City, Pasay City

. Citizenship

Filipino

Foreign

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Number of BDO

Shares Held

1,463,657,368

1,096,009,099

380,412,570

315,302,318

183,958,132

(2) Security Ownership of Management as of February 28, 2014:

Percentage

40.87%

30.61%

10.62%

8.81%

5.14%

Following are the securities beneficially owned by directors and executive officers of the Company:

DIRECTORS:
Tide of Name of Beneficial Owner Amount' & Natute .Of Citizensh.ip : Petcentage
Class . Bencficial ownership e
Teresita T. Sy 0
Common Chairperson 100 (R) F1]1pmo ) 0.0000046 /0'
Roberto E. Lapid o
Common | Vice Chaitman - 100 (R) ‘Flhpmo " 0.0000046% B
Georgiana A, Gamboa* —_ o
Common | peiden 100 @® o 00000
 Common | Jesse H.T. Andres 100 R) Filipino 0.0000046%
Common | AntomoN Cotoco 1 ®) Filipmo = 0.0000053%
_Common | Ma LeonoraV.DeJesus  100®) Filipina " 0.0000046%
Common Luis S. Reycs ]1 100 R) ___ Filipino 0.0000046%
. Common ; Nestor V. Tan 100 (R) Filipino 0.0000046%
Common Jesus G. Titona 100 (R) Filipino 0.0000046%
~ Common | Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr. ‘_ _loo®) _ Filipino 0 0000046%W ‘
Common : Walter C. Wassmer 100 (R) Filipino 0. 0000046%
Total 1,115 0.0000513%
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OFFICERS:

Tidle of . Name of Beneficial Owner Amount' & Nature Pf ‘ Citizenship Percentage
 class e . Beneficial ownership U S
Common  LeresitaT. Sy _ 100 (R) : Filipino ©0.0000046%
- | Chaiperson e e

- Roberto E. Lapid : : I o

Comrr.101.1 ' Vice Chairman 100 (R) | Filipino 0.0000046%

Common . Ocotgiana A. Gamboa . 100 ®) . Filipino © 0.0000046%
Prestdent e o [

: Rosario C. Crisostomo e ; o

| Common | VieePresidear 102000 Flelke 1 0009158

Total 10650 . 00049276%

*féa‘z;gﬂed 6_’}5@&‘1‘?%’.’6.’(71;1’ of ’ ]amtary 31,2014

The total number of shares owned by officers of the Registrant is 106,560 shares, which is equivalent to
0.0049276% of the total outstanding capital stock of the Registrant.

(3) Voting Trust holders of 5% ot more:

There were no voting trust holders of 5% or more as of February 28, 2014.

(4) Changes in Control

There has been no change in control since the beginning of the Registrant’s last fiscal year.

ITEM 5. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

(1) The incumbent directors and executive officers of the Registrant and their respective
business experience inclusive of the last five (5) years are as follows:

TERESITAT. SY
CHAIRPERSON
63 YEARS OLD, FILIPINO

Ms. Teresita T. Sy was first elected Director of the Company in September 2005. She was first
elected to the board of BDO Unibank in 1997 where she now sits as Chairperson. Concutrently, she
setves as the Chaitperson, Vice Chaitperson, and/or Director of vatious subsidiaries and affiliates of
BDO Unibank such as BDO Private Bank, the Company, BDO Capital & Investment Corporation,
BDO Foundation, Inc., Generali Pilipinas Holding Company, Inc., Generali Pilipinas Life Assurance
Company, Inc., and Generali Pilipinas Insurance Co. Ms. Sy is the Vice Chairperson of SM
Investments Corporation and adviser to the board of SM Prime Holdings, Inc. She also sits as Vice
Chairperson and/or Director of such companies as Multi-Realty Development Corporation,
Bellshare Holdings, Inc. (formetly SM Commercial Properties, Inc.), SM Mart, Inc. SM Retail, Inc.,
Prime Metroestate Inc. (formerly Pilipinas Makro, Inc.), First Asia Realty Development Cotp.,
Bellevue Properties, Inc.,, Forsyth Equity Holdings, Inc, HFS Corporation, Hotel Specialist
(Tagaytay), Inc., Intercontinental Dev’t. Corp., Kultura Stores, Inc., Marketwatch Investment Co.,
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Inc., Meridien Business Leader, Inc., MH Holdings, Inc., Morrison Corporation, Premier Southern
Cotp., Romer Mercantile, SM Foundation, Inc., Sodexo Motivation Solutions Thilippines, Inc.,
Sports Central Manila, Inc., Sunninghill Holdings, Inc., Sybase Equity Investments Corp., Syper
Holdings, Inc., Sysmart Corporation, Tangiers Resources Cutp., alid West Avenues Thealres Corp.
A graduate of Assumption College, she brings to the Board her varied expertise in banking &
finance, retail merchandising, mall and real estate development.

ROBERTO E. LAPID
VICE CHAIRMAN/OFFICER-IN-CHARGI
57 YEARS OLD, FILIPINO

Mt. Roberto E. Lapid was appointed as the Vice Chairman of the Company. on December 1, 2010,
and currently appointed as Officer-in-Charge. He is concurrently Officer-in-Charge/Ditector in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, BDO Rental, Inc. (“BDO Rental”) He was formerly the President of the
Company, BDO Rental, Inc. and Equitable Exchange, Inc. and Vice Chairman/Ditector of EBC
Investments, Inc. (now BDO Strategic Holdings Inc.). He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of the Philippines.

GEORGIANA A. GAMBOA (resigned effective 1 February 2014)
DIRECTOR
57 YEARS OLD, FILIPINO

Ms. Georgiana A. Gamboa served as President of the Company from December 1, 2010 until her
resignation effective end of January 31, 2014. She concurrently held the position of Senior Vice
President of BDO Unibank and President of BDO Rental. She was formetly connected with City
Trust Banking Corporation for 16 years and the Bank of the Philippine Islands for 7 years. Her
banking career spanned several functions including: Branch Manager — Consumer Banking
Relationship Manager — Corporate Bank (where she grew from Assistant Manager to Vice President),
and Remedial Management Head. Prior to joining BDOLE, she was the President of BPI Leasing
Corporation, a subsidiary of Bank of the Philippine Islands for 7 years. She holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Economics from De La Salle University whete she finished Summa Cum Laude and
received her Master of Arts in Economics from the University of the Philippines.

JESSE H.T. ANDRES
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
49 YEARS OLD, FILIPINO

Atty. Jesse H.T. Andres was elected as Independent Director of the Company on September 20,
2005, and is presently a member of the Company’s Board Audit Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee, and Chairman of the Nomination Committee. In September 2004, he was appointed
member of the Board of Trustees of the Government Service Insurance System (GSIS) where he
also served as the Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee. Since July 1, 2011, he is the
Managing Partner of the Andres Padernal & Paras Law Offices. He was also a Partner in the
PECABAR Law Offices from 1996 to 2003 where he became Co-Head of the Litigation
Department in 2001. Previously, he was Senior Manager of the Philippine Exporters’ Foundation.
Atty. Andres holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from the UP. School of Economics and
a Bachelor of Laws degtee from the UP. College of Law.
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ANTONIO N. COTOCO
DIRECTOR
65 YEARS OLD, FILIPINO

Mt. Antonio N. Cotoco was elected to the Board of the Company on January 25, 2001. He currently
serves as Senior Executive Vice President and a member of the Board Credit Committee of BDO
Unibank, and Director of BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc., BI)() Remit Limited, Express Padala (Hong
Kong) Limited, BDO Remit (Macau) Ltd., BDO Remit (USA), Inc., and Express Padala I'rankfurt
GmbH. He is the Chairman BDO Rental. He has been involved in Investment Banking, Corporate
Finance, Treasury, Consumer Banking, Credit, Business and Development & Account Management
over the past 36 years. He currently also sctves as a Director of OAC Realty & Development

Cotpotation. Mt. Cotoco holds a Mastet’s degtree in Business Administration from the University of
the Philippines.

MA. LEONORA V. DE JESUS
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
63 YEARS OLD, FILIPINO

Ms. Ma. Leonora V. De Jesus was elected as Independent Director of the Company on May 12, 2008
and is presently the Chairperson of the Company’s Board Audit Committee, and a member of the
Nomination Committee. She is also an Independent Director of BDO Capital & Investment
Corporation, BDO Elite Savings Bank, Inc. (formerly GE Money Bank, Inc)), and SM Development
Corporation. She also serves as President/Ditector of ROAM, Inc. She was formerly Independent
Director of Equitable Savings Bank and PCI Capital Corporation. She was a professorial lecturer at
the University of the Philippines, Diliman. In addition, she conducts training programs and
consultancies on corporate governance best practices for banking institutions and other corporations.
Ms. De Jesus was a trustee of the Government Service Insurance System (GSIS) from 1998 until
2004, and was a member of the Cabinet of President Corazon C. Aquino, President Fidel V. Ramos
and President Joseph E. Estrada. She holds Bachelor’s, Masteral and Doctoral degrees in Psychology
from the University of the Philippines.

LUIS S. REYES JR.
DIRECTOR
56 YEARS OLD, FILIPINO

Mr. Luis S. Reyes, Jr. was elected as Director of the Company on April 18, 2012 and appointed as
Treasurer of the Company on January 29, 2014, with effect on February 16, 2014 (subject to the
clearance and/or approval of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas). He is Senior Vice President for
Investor Relations and Corporate Planning of BDO Unibank. He is also the Officer-in-Charge of
BDO Leasing — Treasury Department, and Director and Treasurer (subject to the clearance and/or
approval of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas) of BDO Rental. He is currently a Director of BDO
Strategic Holdings, Inc., PCI Insurance, Brokets, Inc., PCI Management Consultants, Inc. and PCI
Travel Corporation. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Economics from the
Univetsity of the Philippines. He was First Vice President of Far East Bank & Trust Company, Trust
Banking Group before joining BDO Unibank.
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NESTOR V. TAN
DIRECTOR
56 YEARS OLD, FILIPINO

Mr. Nestor V. Tan was elected Director of the Company on January 23, 2007. He was elected
President of BDO Unibank in July 1998. He also concurrently holds vice chairmanships and/or
directorships in the following subsidiaties of BDO Unibank: BDO Capital & Investment
Cotrporation, BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc, BDO Private Bank, Inc, BDO Remit (USA), Inc.
Generali Pilipinas Life Assurance Company, Inc.,, Generali Pilipinas Tnsurance Co., and SM I<eppel
Land, Inc. He also concurrently holds the Chairmanship of BDO Strategic Holdings Inc. He is a
Trustee of BDO Foundation, Inc., Pinoy Me Foundation, De La Salle University Board of Advisors,
and Asian Institute of Management. He is also a Ditector of the Asian School of Business &
Technology, Bankers Association of the Philippines and Megalink, Inc. Mr. 'lan had a 15-year
banking career with the Mellon Bank (now Bank of New York — Mellon) in Pittsburgh PA, the
Bankers Trust Company (now Deutsche Bank) in New York, and the Barclays Group in New York
and London. Prior to joining the Bank, he was Chief Operating Officer for the Financial Institutions
Services Group of BZW] the investment banking subsidiary of the Barclays Group. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Commertce from De La Salle University and received his MBA from Wharton
School, University of Pennsylvania.

JESUS G. TIRONA
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
73 YEARS OLD, FILIPINO

Mr. Jesus G. Tirona has been elected Independent Director to the Board of the Company since July
30, 2007 and is currently a member of its Board Audit Committee. He is an Independent Director of
BDO Capital & Investment Corp. and Armstrong Securities, Inc., and also formerly of American
Express Bank Philippines (A Savings Bank, Inc)) and EBC Investments, Inc. (now BDO Strategic
Holdings Inc.). He is a Trustee of the BDO Foundation, Inc. He was formetly the President/CEO
of LGU Guarantee Cortp. - a private sector led credit guarantee institution jointly owned by the BAP,
the DBP the ADB - whose mandate is to provide creditworthy LGUs and the utilities sector access
to the capital markets through LGUGC-enhanced local debt instruments. He was also Managing
Director/CEO of the Guarantee Fund for SMEs and the BAP Credit Guaranty Corp., - both entities
promoting SME development. He has a long extensive experience in banking and finance, having
built a career with Citibank as well as with other large domestic financial institutions. He is a scholar
of the Asian Productivity Organization in Corporate Social Responsibility and is a Fellow of the
Institute of Corporate Directors.

EXEQUIEL P. VILLACORTA, JR.
DIRECTOR
68 YEARS OLD, FILIPINO

Mr. Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr. was elected Director of the Company on May 24, 2006. He was
previously director of Equitable PCI Bank, Inc. from 2005 to 2006, and EBC Insurance Brokerage,
Inc., and Maxicare Healthcare Cotporation. He was formerly the Chairman of EBC Strategic
Holdings Cotporation, EBC Investments, Inc. (now BDO Strategic Holdings Inc.), Jardine Equitable
Finance Corporation, Strategic Property Holdings, Inc., PCIB Properties, Inc.,, Equitable Data
Center, Inc. and PCI Automation Center, Inc. He was previously President and CEO of BDO
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Unibank and TA Bank of the Philippines, and was Vice President of Private Development
Corporation of the Philippines (PDCP). He was Senior Adviser and BEP Controller of Equitablc
PCI Bank, Inc. and PBCom; and Adviser ta the Board of PCT Capital Corporation

WALTER C. WASSMER
DIRECTOR
56 YEARS OLD, FILIPTNO

Mr. Walter C. Wassmer was elected Director of the Copmany on November 17, 1999. He is the
Senior Executive Vice President and Head of the BDO Unibank’s Institutional Banking Group. He
is currently the Chairman and Officer-In-Charge of BDO Elite Savings Bank, Inc. |formerly GE
Money Bank, Inc. (A Savings Bank), Inc]. He also serves as Director of MDB Land, Inc., and

Mabuhay Vinyl Corporation. He is also the President of L.P. Wassmer Trading, Inc. and Treasurer
of WT' & T, Inc.

JOSEPH JASON M. NATIVIDAD
CORPORATE SECRETARY
41 YEARS OLD, FILIPINO

Atty. Joseph Jason M. Natividad was appointed Corporate Secretaty of the Company on May 31,
2010. He is also the Assistant Corporate Secretary of BDO Capital & Investment Corporation,
BDO Securities Corporation and BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc. He likewise served as Assistant
Corporate Secretary of Equitable PCI Bank prior to its merger with Banco de Oro from September
2006 to June 2007. He serves as the Corporate Secretary of BDO Rental and the Agility Group of
Companies in the Philippines. He has been in law practice for fifteen (15) years, most of which have
been devoted to the fields of corporation law and environmental law. He is currently a member of
the Factoran & Associates Law Offices. He holds a Bachelor’s Degtee in Management, Major in
Legal Management, from the Ateneo de Manila University, and obtained his Juris Doctor Degree
from the Ateneo de Manila University School of Law.

ANGELITA L. ORTEGA-CORTEZ
ASSISTANT CORPORATE SECRETARY
59 YEARS OLD, FILIPINO

Atty. Angelita L. Ortega-Cortez was appointed Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Company on
April 17, 2013. She is concurrently the Senior Vice President and Assistant Cotporate Secretary of
BDO Unibank. She is also the Assistant Corporate Secretary of BDO Private Bank, Inc., BDO
Rental, Armstrong Securities, Inc., and Equimark-NFC Development Corp. She is the Corporate
Secretary of PCIB Securities, Inc., BDO Strategic Holdings Inc., and the Sign of the Anvil, Inc. She
has had exposure to litigation, arbitration and labor law practice during her stint as Head of BDO
Unibank’s Legal Setvices Group. Before joining BDO, she was Vice President/Legal Compliance
Officer of BPI Capital Corporation and Director of BPI Securities Cotporation. She graduated from
the College of Education and finished law at the University of the Philippines. She is a member of Pi

Gamma Mu Honor Society and Order of the Purple Feather (Honor Society of the UP College of
Law).

GERARD M. AGUIRRE
FIRST VICE-PRESIDENT
58 YEARS OLD,FILIPINO

Mr. Gerard M. Aguirre is currently the First Vice President of the Company. He is responsible for
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the leasing and loan portfolio in the Luzon and Visayas/Mindanao provincial divisions. He handles
eight (8) hranches of the Company with a complement of more than sixty (60) personnel. He is also
a Director of BDO Rental. He was the Area Head of BDO (Formetly EPCIB) Combank
North/Central Luzon before joining the Company. Mr. Aguirre earned his BS Degree in Business
Management from the Ateneo De Manila University.

RENATO G. ONATE (resigned effective February 16, 2014)
FIRST VICE-PRISIDENT/ IREASURER
51 YEARS OLD, EILIPINO

Mr. Renato G. Ofiate served as I'irst Vice President of the Company until his tesignation etfective
February 16, 2014. As First Vice President, he was responsible for the financial liquidity of the
company, including treasury and cost management. He also oversaw HR-Admin, I'T. and Special
Projects, Marketing Communications and Marketing Support. He was a Director of BDO Rental.
He was the Head of Funds Management Group of PCI Capital Corp. before joining the Company.
Mr. Ofiate graduated from Philippine Airforce College of Aeronautics with a degree in Aircraft

Maintenance Engineering and has taken up MBA units from the Ateneo Graduate School of
Business.

RODOLFO M. CARLOS JR. (transferred to BDO Unibank effective end of January 31, 2014)
VICE-PRESIDENT/CHILF RISK AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER
48 YEARS O1.D, FILIPINO

Mt. Rodolfo M. Catlos Jr. was appointed as the Chief Risk Officer of BDO Leasing and Finance,
Inc. on October 5, 2011 and as Compliance Officer on October 3, 2012 and served in such capacities
until his transfer to the Parent Company effective end of January 31, 2014. He was also formerly
Credit Risk Control Officer of the Risk Management Group of BDO Unibank. He is a Certified
Public Accountant and graduated Cum Laude from the Polytechnic University of the Philippines.

(2) Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Ditectors (including Nominees for
Independent Directors)

The following incumbent directors were re-nominated by BDO Unibank:

Teresita T. Sy

Antonio N. Cotoco
Roberto E. Lapid

Luis S. Reyes, Jr.

Nestor V. Tan

Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr.
Walter C. Wassmer

Nownkw =

In addition to thos named above, Mr. Jeci A. Lapus was likewise nominated by BDO Unibank as a regular
director of the Company.

Mr. Jeci A. Lapus, 60, is cutrently an Adviser to the Board of the Company. He was formerly

Independent Director of PCI Leasing and Finance, Inc. (now BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.) from
2005 to 2006. He was a member of House of Representatives representing the third district of Tarlac
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from 2007 - 2013. He was formerly a Director of PNOC-Exploration Corp.; President of TODO
Foundation, Inc.; and Vice President & OIC — Finance Administration of the National Agri-Busness
Corporation. He also served as a Reserved Officer with rank of Lieutenant Colonel in the Philippine
Air Force. Mr. Lapus holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering from the Mapua
Institute of Technology and passed the CE Board in 1975.

The following individuals were nominated as independent directors by Ms. Mannerre T). Vicente, a
shareholder of the Company:

1. Jesse H.T. Andres
2. Ma. Leonora V. De Jesus
3. Jesus G. Titona

To the Company’s knowledge, Atty. Jesse H.T. Andres, Ms. Ma. Leonora V. De Jesus, and Mr. Jesus G. Tirona
do not have any business or other relationship with Ms. Vicente. Moreover, Atty. Andres, Ms. De Jesus, and
Mr. Titona are not related to the Board of Directors of BDO Unibank as members thereof.

The nominees may be elected to the Board of Directots in the coming meeting. Pursuant to the Company’s
By-Laws, the nominations for election as regular and independent directors wetre submitted to the Corporate
Secretary in accord with Section 8.b. thereof. Thereafter, in accord with Section 8.a. of the same by-laws, the
evaluation of nominations for independent and regular directors was conducted by the Nomination
Committee prior to the stockholder’s meeting. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Atty. Jesse H. T.
Andres and its members are Mr. Antonio N. Cotoco and Ms. Ma. Leonora V. De Jesus.

Only a stockholder of record, including a minority stockholdet, entitled to notice of and to vote at the

regular or special meeting of the stockholders for the election of ditectors shall be qualified to be nominated
and elected as a director of the Regjstrant.

The independent directors of the Registrant were chosen and elected as such based on the definition and
criteria set forth under existing regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (“BSP”). The procedure for the election of independent directors conforms to
the procedures set forth in relevant BSP and SEC circulars.

The Directors hold office for one (1) year until their successors shall have been elected and have qualified.

(3) Significant Employees

There is no person, other than the executive officers, who is expected by the Registrant to make significant
contribution to the business.

(4) Family Relationships

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity among
directors, executive officers, or persons nominated or chosen by the registrant to become directors or
executive officets.
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(5) Involvement of Directors and Executive Officers in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company is not aware of any legal proceedings of the nature required to be disclosed under Part T,
paragraph C of “Annex C” of SRC Rule 12 with respect to directors and executive officers.

The Company is not awatc of any bankruptcy proceedings filed by or against any bustness which a director
or executive officer is a party or of which any of their property is subject.

The Company is not aware of any conviction by final judgment in a ctiminal proceeding, domestic or foreign,
ot being subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of any of its ditectors or executive
officers which occurred during the past five (5) years up to February 28, 2014.

The Company is not aware of any order, judgment, or decree not subsequently reversed, superseded, or
vacated, by any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining,
barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting the involvement of a director or executive officer in any type of
business, securities, commodities, or banking activities.

The Company is not aware of any findings by a domestic ot foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil
action), the Commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic

marketplace or self regulatory organization, that any of its directors or executive officers, have violated a
securities or commodities law..

ITEM 6. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Summary Compensation Table
NAMED GROUP

Name and Pfiriﬂlba/ Position { ! N ‘

.. {CEO & Exeoutive Officers) .. . Year .~ Sabary . . Bomwses
The President and four most highly

compensated executive officers

2012: ;
Geotrgiana A. Gamboa (President) 5

Gerard M. Aguitre (First Vice President)

Renato G. Onate (First Vice President)

Rosalisa K. Alindahao (Vice President)

Jennifer E. So (Vice President)

2013:

Georgiana A, Gamboa (President)

Gerard M. Aguirre (First Vice President)

. Renato G. Ofiate (First Vice President)

.~ Rosalisa B. Kapuno (Vice President)
Jennifer E. So (Vice President)

TOTAL SALARY 2012 Php 16,240,532 Php 8,266,781
2013 17,317,125 9,141,000
2014% | 19,048,837 10,055,100

o Estimated amount for 2014
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UNNAMELD GROUP
Year . Salafy . " Bonuses
" Directots and all other 2012 Php 72,665,954 : Php 18,846,511
Officers as a group Unnamed 2013 77,329,191 19,355,430
2014 85,062,110 21,290,973

% Estimated ﬂmou/z;ﬁr 2014

There are currently no separate employment contracts between the Company and its named executive officers
other than the regular employment agreements that all officers are subject to. There are no outstanding
warrants or stock options held by the Registrant’s directors or executive officers. There are no price or stock
warrants or options that are adjusted or amended.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services ot obligations between the group (the Company
and its subsidiaties, collectively referred to as the “Group”) and its related parties, regardless whether a price
is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. These parties include:
(a) individuals owning, directly ot indirectly through one or more intermediaties, control or are controlled by,
or under common control with the Group; (b) associates; (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an
interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence over the Group and close
members of the family of any such individual; and (d) the Group’s retirement plan.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship and not merely on the legal form.

ITEM 7. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The present external auditor of the Company, the accountancy and auditing firm of Punongbayan &
Araullo, CPAs (P&A), will be recommended to be re-appointed as the external auditor of the Registrant for
the ensuing ycar. P&A has been the Company’s Independent Public Accountants for the past five (5) years.
Representatives of P&A will be present during the annual meeting and will be given the opportunity to make
a statement if they desire to do so. They are also expected to respond to approptiate questions if needed.
There was no event in the past where P&A and the Company had any disagteement with regard to any matter
telating to accounting ptinciples ot practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.

Pursuant to existing BSP and SEC regulations more particulatly SRC Rule 68, paragraph 3 (b)(iv), the
Registrant shall change its external auditor or rotate the engagement partners every five years. The change
shall be reflected in a current report (SEC Form 17-C). A description of any disagreement with respect to the
transfer of the account or other accounting/auditing issues shall be included in the report.

The Registrant’s Board Audit Committee is chaired by Ms. Ma. Leonora V. De Jesus, with Atty. Jesse H.T.
Andres and Mr. Jesus G. Tirona as members, and Ms. Shirley M. Sangalang as Adviser.
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C. OTHER MATTERS

ITEM 8. ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS

The following shall be submitted to the stockholders for approval:

a, Minutes of the Annual Stockholders” Meeting held on April 17, 2013 at 9:30 in the morning at the
Francisco Santiago Hall, Mezzanine Floor, BDO Corporate Centet, 7899 Makati Avenue, Makati
City,

b. Presentation of the 2013 Annual Report;

c. Approval of the Audited Financial Statements for the Year 2013;

d. Approval and Ratification of Acts and Proceedings of the Board of Directors, the duly Constituted

Committees, and the Corporate Officers during the fiscal year 2013.

Except with respect to Item 9 below, there are no specific acts or proceedings which, by law, are required to
be approved or ratified by the stockholders. Nevertheless, acts and proceedings covered by resolutions duly
adopted by the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Board Audit Committee and other Committees of
the Board in the normal course of business pertaining to credit transactions, approving authorities,
designation of corporate signatories, regulatory compliances, and similar matters shall I subiuitted (o the
stockholders for their notation. These acts and proceedings are described in the minutes of the Board and
Board committee meetings which are available for inspection at reasonable hours on any business day.

ITEM 9. AMENDMENT OF CHARTER, BY-LAWS OR OTHER DOCUMENTS

The proposed amendment to the Third Article of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation changing the
principal place of business of the Corporation from “Metropolitan Manila” to “BDO Leasing Center,
Corinthian Gardens, Ortigas Avenue, Quezon City, Philippines” will be submitted to the stockholders for
approval. The amendment is being proposed to comply with the directive of the Securities and Exchange
Commission under Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series of 2014 requiring that the specific address of a
company’s principal office be stated in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

ITEM 10. OTHER PROPOSED ACTION

The Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of the Company held on Aptil 17, 2013 shall be submitted
for the approval of the stockholders.

Summary of the Minutes of the April 17, 2013 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting

The Annual Stockholders' Meeting of the Company was held on April 17, 2013, where mote than 85% of the
stockholders were present in person or represented by proxy and participant brokers. Mr. Nestor V. Tan
acted as Chairman of the Meeting, while Atty. Joseph Jason M. Natividad, Corporate Sectetary, recorded the
minutes of the meeting,

The first item in the agenda was the consideration of the President's Report on the results of the Company's
opetations for the year ended December 31, 2013 and the 2013 Financial Statements, which were duly noted
and approved by the stockholders.

Thereafter, the stockholders ratified the actions taken by the Board of Directors, the duly constituted

Page 16



committees, the management and the officers of the Company since the last annual meeting of the
stockholders.

Further, the following were elected as regular directors of the Company:

Antonio N. Cotoco
Georgiana A. Gamboa
Roberto E. Lapid

Luis S. Reyes, Jr.
Teresita T. Sy

Nestor V. Tan

Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr.
Walter C. Wassmer

XN R W=

with the following elected as Independent Directors:

1. Jesse H.T. Andres
2. Ma. Leonora V. De Jesus
3. Jesus G. Tirona

Subsequently, the Accountancy and Auditing Firm of Punongbayan and Araullo, CPAs was appointed as
external auditor of the Company for the year 2013.

In other business, the stockholders noted the Board of Directors' declaration of cash dividends of Php 0.15
pet share.

Finally, the Annual Stockholders' Meeting of the Company was adjourned.

ITEM 11. VOTING PROCEDURES

Except as otherwise provided by law, each stockholder of record shall be entitled at every meeting of
stockholders to one vote for each share of stock standing in his name on the stock books of this Company,
which vote may be given personally or by attorney or authorized in writing, In accordance with the process on
proxy validation, the instrument authorizing an attorney or proxy to act shall be exhibited to the Secretary if
he shall so request. In the election of Directors, each stockholder entitled to vote may cumulate and distribute
his votes in accordance with the provisions of the Corporation Code. The eleven (11) directors receiving the
highest number of votes shall be declared elected. As regards the other items of the agenda, a majority vote
of the shares present and constituting a quorum will be required to approve the matter under consideration.

The Canvassing Committee, chaired by the Corporate Secretary, will be responsible for counting votes based
on the number of shares entitled to vote owned by the stockholdets who ate present or represented by
proxies at the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders. Stock Transfer Service, Inc., the Company’s stock transfer
agent, in conjunction with Punongbayan & Araullo, the Company’s external auditor, both independent

patties, are tasked to count votes on any matter property brought to the vote of the shareholders, including
the election of directors.
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D. SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, T certify that the information set
forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Makati on

L4y Tt GNa;
YN AR A AT R

BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC.

By:

JOSEPH JASON M. NATIVIDAD

Corporate Secretary
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MANAGEMENT REPORT




BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC.

MANAGEMENT REPORT TO STOCKHOLDERS

PART |- BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Marketing of Products/Services

The Company markets its products through its Head Office located in Ortigas, Quezon City and its branch
network nationwide. The Company has an extensive branch network in the leasing and financing industry, with nine
(9) branches, located in Cagayan de Oro City (Misamis Oriental), Cebu City (Cebu), Dagupan City (Pangasinan),
Davao City (Davao), lloilo City (lloilo), Imus (Cavite), Angeles City (Pampanga), San Pablo City (Laguna) and Makati
City (Metro Manila). In October 2009, the company obtained a Certificate of Authority to operate the Makati branch
from the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

The company has a wholly-owned subsidiary, BDO Rental, Inc. It is licensed by the Philippine SEC to engage
in renting and leasing of equipment and real properties. It started its commercial operations on June 30, 2005.

As part of the Group, the Company enables to gain name recognition and marketing referrals provided by its
Parent Company, BDO Unibank, via the latter's nationwide branches and institutional banking group. The Parent

Company’s well-established presence throughout the country helps the Company in understanding the local business
environment and finding potential borrowers.

Competition

The Philippine SEC's licensing requirements allow financing companies to engage in both leasing and
financing activities. As a matter of practice, financing companies are classified based on their product specializations
and target markets.

Some financing companies may focus on consumer leasing and financing, while others, like the Company,
concentrate on commercial leasing and financing clients. Among financing companies targeting commercial clients,
there are differences in the market segment being served, with certain financing companies focusing on established
prime companies, and others focusing on smaller clients.

The Company competes with other financing company affiliated with other banks, independent financing
companies, and other financing companies affiliated with diversified financial services firms. However, its key
competitors are those firms engaged in servicing the leasing or financing requirements of commercial clients in the
broader “Top 5,000” Philippine companies which include small-and medium-enterprises (SMEs).

The principal competitors of BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. are Orix Metro Leasing & Finance Corporation,
BPI Leasing Corporation, LBP Leasing Corporation, Japan PNB Leasing & Finance Corporation, UCPB Leasing and
Finance Corporation, First Malayan Leasing and Finance , Allied Leasing and Toyota Financial. The market strengths
of our competitors are their competitive pricing of interest rates and fast turn around time. However, the company
believes it can effectively compete with other companies by its wide branch network, wherein each branch offers the
same leasing and financing product lines as the head office.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

The Company is not dependent upon one or limited number of suppliers/dealers for essential raw materials,
equipment, energy or other items.

Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Group enters into transactions with BDO Unibank and other affiliates.
Under the Group's policy, these transactions are made substantially on the same terms as with other individuals and



businesses of comparable risks.

The Group’s and Parent Company’s related parties inciude BDO Unibank, affiliates, key management
personnel and the retirement benefit fund as described below.

The summary of the Group's significant transactions with its related parties in 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as
follows:

Amount of Transaction
Related Party Category Notes 2013 2012 2011

Ultimate Parent Company
(BDO Unibank)
Interest income on savings

and demand deposits (a) P 02 P 03 P 0.8
Interest expense on bills payable (b) 148.5 98.3 86.7
Rent expense (d) 10.7 11.0 11.5
Management fees (e) 24 2.4 -

Subsidiary (BDO Rental)
Interest income on loans (b - 0.7 0.7
Service fees (c) 5.3 8.4 9.9
Rent income (d) 0.4 04 04
Management fees (e) 04 0.4 0.8
Affiliate (BDO Capital)
Service Charges & Fees 4] 2.2 2.8 -
Key management personnel
Short-term benefits (9) 61.7 57.7 447
Post-employment benefits (9 - 17.0 13.2

Advances to officer (9 0.9 17



QOutstanding Balance
Related Party Cateqory Notes 2013 2012

Parent Company
(BDO Unibank)
Savings and demand
deposits (a) P 119.2 P 52.7

Bills payable (b) 6,119.8 6,731.7

Key Management personnel
Advances Employees (h) 2.2 1.6

Retirement benefit fund
Loans to officers and

employees (h) 34 34
Loans to members and

beneficiaries (h) 24 2.4

Shares of stock () 0.9 0.9

A The Group maintains savings and demand deposit accounts with BDO Unibank. As of December 31,
2013 and 2012, savings and demand deposit accounts maintained with BDO Unibank are included under
Cash and Cash Equivalents account in the statements of financial position. Interest income earned on
deposits in 2013, 2012 and 2011 is included under Interest and Discounts as part of Revenues in the
statements of comprehensive income.

A The Group obtain short-term, unsecured bills payable from BDO Unibank. The amount outstanding from
borrowings as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 is presented under Bills Payable account in the
statements of financial position. Interest expense incurred on these bills payable in 2013, 2012 and 2011
is included under Interest and financing charges account as part of Operating Costs and Expenses
account in the statements of comprehensive income. Also, the Parent Company grants short-term,
unsecured loans to BDO Rental. There is no outstanding balance arising from this transaction as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012. Total interest income earned by the Parent Company on these loans in
2013, 2012 and 2011 is included under Interest and Discounts as part of Revenues in the statements of
comprehensive income.

A On January 4, 2010, the Parent Company and BDO Rental entered into a Service Agreement whereby
BDO Rental will handle the collection of certain factored receivables of the Parent Company, for a fee as
agreed by the Parent Company and the sellers of the factored receivables. Under the Service
Agreement, BDO Rental shall perform the monitoring of the payment due dates of the factored
receivables, remit to the Parent Company all collections made and send monthly statement of accounts
to customers. The related expense charged to the Parent Company based on the Service Agreement is
included under Other Operating Costs and Expenses in the Parent Company's statements of
comprehensive income. There are no outstanding intercompany payable and receivable from this
transaction as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,

A The Parent Company leases its head office premises and certain branch offices from BDO Unibank for
terms ranging from one to five years, renewable for such period and under such terms and conditions as
may be agreed upon with the Parent Company and BDO Unibank. Related rent expense incurred in
2013, 2012 and 2011 is presented as part of Occupancy and equipment-related expenses under
Operating Costs and Expenses account in the statements of comprehensive income. On the other hand,
the Parent Company charges BDO Rental for the spaces that the latter occupies in the head office
premises. Rent changed to BDO Rental in 2013 and 2012 is presented as part of Other Income in the
statements of comprehensive income. There are no outstanding receivable and payable on these
transactions as of the end of 2013 and 2012.



4 In 2013, the Parent Company entered into a service level agreement with BDO Unibank wherein BDO
Unibank will charge the Parent Company for certain management services that the former provides to the
latter. Management fees paid by the Parent Company to BDO Unibank is shown as part of Other
Operating Costs and Expenses in the statement of comprehensive income. Also, the Parent Company
charges BDO Rental for the management services it renders to BDO Rental. This is presented as part of
Other Income in the 2012 statement of comprehensive income of the Parent Company. There are no
outstanding receivable and payable on these transactions as of the end of 2013.

A The Parent Company engaged the services of BDO Capital and Investment Corporation (BDO Capital), a
wholly owned subsidiary of BDO Unibank for underwriting services related to the Parent Company’s
issuance of bills payable in 2012. Service charges and fees paid by the Parent Company to BDO Capital
related to this transaction is included as part of Other Operating Costs and Expenses in the statement of

comprehensive income. There is no outstanding payable related on this transaction as of the end of
2013 and 2012.

A Compensation of key management personnel (covering officer positions starting from Assistant Vice
President and up) is included as part of Employee Benefits under Operating Costs and Expenses in the
statements of comprehensive income of the Group and Parent Company. Short-term employee benefits
include salanes, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, profit sharing and bonuses, and non-monetary
benefits. The Group also incurred post-employment benefit expense related to key management
personnel included as part of Employee Benefits under Operating Costs and Expenses. The Group also
granted cash advances to an officer.

A The Group maintains a retirement benefit fund with BDO Unibank covering all regular full-time
employees. In the normal course of business, the retirement benefit fund grants salary and housing
loans to certain officers and employees of the Parent Company, and members and beneficiaries of the
fund who are also officers of the Parent Company. The housing loans are secured by the mortgage on
the property and bear interest at 9% per annum and have terms ranging from 13 to 20 years. The salary
loans on the other hand, are unsecured and bear interest ranging from 9% to 10% per annum and have
terms ranging from 18 months to 3 years. There is no impairment loss recognized on this loan.

A The retirement fund holds 442,750 shares of stocks of BDOLFI as an investment, which has a market
value of P2.00 per share as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Employees

As of Dec. 31, 2013, the Company had 184 employees — eighteen (18) senior officers, seventy seven (77)
junior officers and eighty nine (89) rank & file employees. Of the total personnel, Executive Office is composed of two
(2) employees; one hundred fifteen (115) under the Marketing group, and sixty two (62) under the Operations group
(Comptroller ship and Operations, Risk Management and HR & Admin) and three (3) Treasury and two (2) under the
company's subsidiary, BDO Rental, Inc. In 2014, the Company anticipates twenty seven (27) additional employees.
The Company believes that it has maintained good relationship with its employees. Rank & file employees receive
benefits similar to those granted to the rank & file employees of the Parent Company under the terms of a
Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between the Parent Company and NUBE-BDO, a legitimate labor
organization duly registered with the Department of Labor and Employment. CBA expires on October 31, 2015.
Coverage of the CBA includes wage increases, allowances, bonuses, loans and other benefits.

RISK FACTORS
Portfolio Concentration Risks

As of December 31, 2013, 86.15% of the Company's leasing and financing portfolio consisted of exposure in
firms in the following sectors: transportation and communication, manufacturing, real estate, construction, mining and
quarrying and trade. The Company maintains a general policy of avoiding excessive exposure in any particular sector
of the Philippine Economy. The Company actively seeks to increase its exposure in industry sectors which it believes



possess attractive growth opportunities. Conversely, it actively seeks to reduce its exposure in industry sectors where
growth potential is minimal. Although the Company’s leasing and financing portfolio is composed of transactions with
a wide variety of businesses, the results of operations and financial condition of the Company may be adversely
affected by any downturn in these sectors as well as in the Philippine economy in general.

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risk which results from both its operating and investing
activities. The Company’s risk management is coordinated in close cooperation with the BOD, and focuses on
actively securing the Company’s short-to-medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.

The Company does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it
write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed to are described below.

Risk Management

Risk management of the Company's credit, market, liquidity, and operational risks is an essential part of
Company's organizational structure and philosophy. The risk management process is essentially a top-down process
that emanates from the Board of Directors. The Board approves the overall institutional tolerance risk, including risk
policies and risk philosophy of the Company.

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

Most of the Company'’s transactions are carried out in the Philippine peso, its functional currency. Exposures
to currency exchange rate on financial assets arise from an insignificant portion of the Company’s leasing and
financing portfolio, cash and cash equivalents and lease deposits which are denominated in US dollars.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company follows a prudent policy on managing its assets and liabilities so as to ensure that exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates are kept within acceptable limits. The current composition of the Company’s assets and
liabilities results in significant negative gap positions for repricing periods under one year. Consequently, the
Company maybe vulnerable to increases in market interest rates. However, in consideration of the substantial net
interest margins between the Company’s marginal funding cost and its interest-earning assets; and favorable lease
and financing terms which allow the Company to reprice annually, and to reprice at anytime in response to
extraordinary fluctuations in interest rates, the Company believes that the adverse impact of any interest rate increase

would be limited. In addition, during periods of declining interest rates, the existence of a negative gap position
favorably impacts the Company.

Credit Risk

The Company manages credit risk by setting limits for individual borrowers, and groups of borrowers and
industry segments. The Company maintains a general policy of avoiding excessive exposure in any particular sector
of the Philippine economy.

Concentrations arise when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities
in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the
relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographic
location.

Liquidity Risk
The primary business of financing companies entails the borrowing and re-lending of funds. Consequently,
financing companies are subjected to substantial leverage, and may therefore be exposed to the potential financial

risks that accompany borrowing.

The Company expects that its continued asset expansion will result in the higher funding requirements in the
future. Like most financing companies in the Philippines, the Group does not have a license to engage in quasi-



banking function, and as such, is precluded from engaging in deposit-taking activities. In addition, it is precluded
under the General Banking Act from incurring borrowings from more than 19 lenders at any one time, which to some
extent, restricts its access to the public debt markets.

The Company believes that it currently has adequate debt funding from banks, other financial institutions, and
through the issuance of Short Term Commercial Papers (STCPs). The Company has a license from the SEC to
issue R15 billion STCPs.

The Company manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for
long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflow due in a day-to-day business.

Taxation

Relevant Tax Regulations

Among the significant provisions of the National Internal Revenue Code (NIRC) that apply to the Group are
the following:

a. The RCIT tax of 30% (effective January 1, 2009) is imposed on taxable income net of applicable deductions

b. Fringe benefits tax of 32% is imposed on the grossed-up value of the benefits given by employers to their
managerial and supervisory employees (this is a final tax to be paid by the employer);

¢. Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) of 2% based on gross income, as defined under the Tax Code, is required
to be paid at the end of the year starting on the fourth year from the date of registration with the Bureau of
Internal Revenue (BIR) whenever the RCIT is lower than the MCIT; On October 19, 2007, the BIR issued RR No.
12-2007 which requires the quarterly computation and payment of the MCIT beginning on the income tax return
for the fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2007. This RR amended certain provisions of RR No. 9-98 which
specifically provides for the computation of the MCIT at end of each taxable year. Thus, in the computation of the
tax due for the taxable quarter, if the computed quarterly MCIT is higher than the quarterly normal income tax, the
tax due to be paid for such taxable quarter at the time of filing the quarterly corporate income tax return shall be
the MCIT which is 2% of the gross income as of the end of the taxable quarter

d. Net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) can be claimed as deduction against taxable income within three years
after NOLCO is incurred;

e. Effective July 2008, Republic Act 9504 was approved giving corporate taxpayers an option to claim itemized
deduction or optional standard deduction (ODS) equivalent to 40% of gross sales. Once the option to use OSD is
made, it shall be irrevocable for the taxable year for which the option was made.; and

f. The amount of interest expense allowed as income tax deduction is reduced by an amount equal to 33% of the
interest income subjected to final tax.

g. October 2012, BIR prescribed the rules on deductibility of depreciation expenses as it relates to purchase of
vehicles and other related thereto, and input taxes allowed thereto through RR No. 12-2012. Revenue
Memorandum Circular No. 2-2013 was issued December 28, 2012 clarifying certain provisions on the
deductibility of depreciation expense as it relates to purchase of vehicles and other related thereto, and the Input
Taxes allowed.

h. Effective November 2012, BIR issued RR No. 14-2012 for proper tax treatment of interest income earnings on
Financial Instrument and other related transaction. Subsequently, BIR also issued RMO No. 27-2012 for the
creation of alphanumeric tax code and RMO No. 84-2012 for the clarification on tax treatment of interest income
earnings on loans that are not securitized, assigned or participated out.

i. RR No. 18-2012 was issued for the Processing of Authority to Print Official Receipts, Sales Invoices, and Other
Commercial Invoices using the On-line ATP System and providing for the Additional Requirements in the Printing
thereof.

j. RR No. 9-2013 was issued May 10, 2013 amending certain provisions of RR No. 30-2002 relative to the payment



of the amount offered as compromise settlement. Under Section 6 of the National Internal Revenue Code “ The
compromise offer shall be paid by the taxpayer upon filing of the application for compromise settiement. No
application for compromise settlement shall be processed without the full setttement of the offered amount. In
case of disapproval of the application for compromise settlement, the amount paid upon filing of the aforesaid
application shall be deducted from the total outstanding liabilities.

k. Effective June 01, 2013, BIR issued RR No. 10-2013 amends further pertinent provisions of RR No. 2-98, as last
amended by RR No. 30-2003, providing for the inclusion of Real Estate Service Practitioners (RESP's), (i. e. real
estate consultants, real estate appraisers, and real estate brokers) who passed the licensure examination given
by the Real Estate Service pursuant to RA 9646 “The Real Estate Service Act of the Philippines” among those
professionals falling under Sec. 2.57.2 (A)(1) of RR No. 2-88, as amended subject to the 10% and 15%
creditable (expanded) withholding tax and to amend Section 2.57.2 (G) of RR 14-2002 to include real estate
practitioners who did not pass or did not take up licensure examinations given by the Real Estate Service. These
regulations s shall cover income payments to be paid or payable starting June 01, 2013which are required to be
remitted within the month of July 2013.

I.  Beginning of the calendar year 2013, RR No. 11-2013 prescribes the filing/submission of hard copy of the
Certificate of Compensation Payment /Tax Withheld (BIR Form 2316) covering employees who are qualified for
substituted filing thereby amending RR No. 2-98 as last amended by RR No. 010-08. In cases covered by
substituted filing, the employer shall furnish each employee with the original copy of BIR Form No. 2316 and
file/submit to the BIR the duplicate copy not later than February 28 following the close of the calendar year.

m. RR No. 12-2013 issued last July 12, 2013 amends Section 2.58.5 of RR No. 2-98, as amended, Relative to the
Requirements for deductibility of Certain income Payments. No deduction will be allowed notwithstanding
payments of withholding tax at the time of audit investigation or reinvestigation / reconsideration in cases where
no withholding of tax was made in accordance with Secs. 57 and 58 of the Code.

n. On September 17, 2013, the BIR issued RR No. 17-2013, prescribes the guidelines on the preservation of Books
of Accounts and other accounting records. Under Section 2 all taxpayers are required to preserve their books of
accounts, including subsidiary books of accounts and other accounting records, for a period of ten (10) years
reckoned from the day following the deadline from the date of the filing of the return, for taxable year when the
last entry was made in the books of accounts.

0. RR No. 18-2013 which was issued November 28, 2013 amends certain sections of RR No. 12-99 relative to the
due process requirement in the issuance of Deficiency Tax Assessment. RR 18-2013 introduced New
Assessment Phase which removes requirement for issuance of informal conference, mandates issuance of FAN
15 days from receipt of reply to PAN and if Taxpayer fails to reply to PAN within 15 days, he is in default and FAN
issued right away. In terms of protesting and administrative appeal it requires indication of which kind of protest
whether reinvestigation or reconsideration otherwise void. Other changes imposed by RR 18-2013 is the
imposition of 20% delinquency interest, in addition to the 20% deficiency interest.

Gross Receipts Tax (GRT) / VAT

Beginning January 1, 2003, the imposition of VAT on banks and financial institutions became effective
pursuant to the provisions of Republic Act 9010. The Parent Company became subject to VAT based on their gross
receipts, in lieu of the GRT under Sections 121 and 122 of the Tax Code, which was imposed on banks, non-banks
financial intermediaries and finance companies in prior years.

On January 29, 2004, Republic Act 9238 reverts the imposition of GRT on banks and financial institutions.
This law is retroactive to January 1, 2004. The Parent Company complied with the transitional guidelines provided by
the BIR on the final disposition of the uncollected Output VAT as of December 31, 2004,

On May 24, 2005, the amendments on RA 9337 was approved amending, among others, the gross receipts
tax on royalties, rentals of property, real or personal, profits from exchange and on net trading gains within the taxable
year of foreign currency, debt securities, derivatives and other similar financial instruments from 5% to 7% effective
November 1, 2005.



Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations (RR) 15-2010 and 19-2011

The Bureau of Internal Revenue issued Revenue Regulations 15-2010 and 198-2011 which required certain
supplementary information to be disclosed as part of the notes to financial statements. The supplementary
information is, however, not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards; it is neither a required disclosure under the Philippine Securities and Exchange

Commission rules and regulations covering the form and content of financial statements under Securities Regulation
Code Rule 68.

Properties

The Company leases its head office premises from the Parent Company for a period of five years until June
2015. Head office address is at BDO Leasing Centre, Corinthian Gardens, Ortigas Avenue, Quezon City. In 2013
and 2012, the consolidated rent expense amounted to P15.7 million and P16.2 million, respectively. Cagayan de Oro,
Dagupan, San Pablo, Cavite, Davao, lloilo, Pampanga, and Cebu branches lease their premises from the Parent
Company.

These are the details of the branches’ office premises:

Cagayan:
A Operates at the 2" Floor, BDO-Lapasan Branch, National Highway, Lapasan, Cagayan de Oro City for a

period of five years and will expire on January 2014. Monthly rental amounts to P27,378.00 with no
escalation clause.

Dagupan:
A Operates at the 2" Floor BDO Bldg., AB Fernandez Ave., Dagupan City for a period of five years and
will expire on December 2013. Monthly rental amounts to P35,244.00 with no escalation clause.

San Pablo:

A Operates at the 3" Floor, BDO Bldg., Rizal Street corner P. Alcantara St., San Pablo City, Laguna for a

period of five years and will expire on September 2017. Monthly rental amounts to P37,686.00 with no
escalation clause.

lloilo:
A Operates at the 2™ Floor, BDO Corporate Center, BDO Valeria Branch, Valeria St., lloilo City for a period

of five years and will expire on November 2018. Monthly rental amounts to P11,500.00 with no escalation
clause.

Davao:

A Operates at the 4" Fir., BDO Davao-Claveria No. 30 C.M. Recto Avenue, Poblacion, Davao City for a
period of five years and will expire on May 31,2018. Gross monthly rental amounts to P14,313.00 with no
escalation clause..

Cavite:

A Operates at the 2™ Fir., BDO Imus Building., Anabu |, Imus Cavite City for a period of five years and will
expire on December 14, 2018. Gross monthly rental amounts to P 11,289.00 with no escalation clause.

Cebu:

A Operates at the Mezzanine Floor, BDO Bldg., Gorordo Ave. Lahug, Cebu City for a period of five years
and will expire on May 2014. Monthly rental amounts to P30,748.00 with no escalation clause.

Pampanga:

A Operates at the 3™ Fir., BDO Angeles-Balibago Branch Building, Ramon Tang Avenue, Diamond
Subdivision, Balibago, Angeles City for a period of five years and will expire on December 14, 2018,
Gross monthly rental amounts to P22,800.00 with no escalation clause.



Makati:

A Operates at the Ground FIr., Pacific Star Bidg., Sen. Gil Puyat corner Makati Avenue, Makati City for a
period of three years and will expire on February 28, 2014. Monthly rental amounts to P290,892.71 with
escalation of 10% per annum beginning on the second year of the lease term.

The Company's facilities, office furniture, fixtures and equipment are in good condition. Distribution of office
furniture fixture and equipment are as follows: Head office — P22.4 million; Makati — P0.3 million; Cebu — P1.6 million;
Davao — P0.6 million; Dagupan — P1.4 million; San Pablo — P0.7 million; Cagayan — P1.0 million; lloilo — P0.9 million;
Cavite — P0.7 million; Pampanga — P1.0 million.

Legal Proceedings

The Company is party to various legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of its operations. No
such legal proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, are expected to have a material adverse effect on the
Company or its consolidated financial condition.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the calendar year
covered by this report.

PART II-OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Market for Issuer’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

On July 15, 2003, the Board approved a program to buy-back shares from the stock market. The Board
authorized the Chairman or Vice-Chairman and the President to determine the amount and the timing of the program.
The buy-back program was approved on the rationale that the market prices did not reflect the true value of the
shares and therefore remaining shareholders would benefit from a buy-back into treasury. Purchase of shares are
covered by guidelines which include buy-back of shares when the share prices is undervalued, the purchase prices

shall be at prevailing market prices, and the cash expenditure for the buy-back will not adversely affect the liquidity
requirements of the company for its business transactions.

Total treasury shares as of December 31, 2013 was 62,693,718 shares or a total value of R81,776,628.

Dividends

On April 17, 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the declaration of cash dividends at 20.15
per share in favor of stockholders of record as of May 17, 2013 paid on June 13, 2013. Total dividends in 2013
amounted to P324.37 million.

Dividends declared by the Company on its shares of stocks are payable in cash or in additional shares of

stock. The payment of dividends will depend upon the earnings, cash flow and financial condition of the Corporations
and other factors.

There are no restrictions that will limit the ability to pay dividends on common equity.
Market Information

The principal market for the Company’s common equity is the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)

The market prices of the Company’s share are as follows:



2014 High Low 2013 High Low
January 2.05 2.05 1% quarter 2.01 2.00
February 2.20 213 2™ quarter 2.02 2.00

3" quarter 1.90 1.87
4™ quarter 2.00 2.00

2012 High Low 2011 High Low
1% quarter 1.65 1.64 1% quarter 1.90 1.90
2™ quarter 1.78 1.78 2™ quarter 1.60 1.60
3 quarter 2.03 1.99 3" quarter 1.61 1.42
4" quarter 2.00 2.00 4™ quarter 1.65 1.60

As at March 14, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the closing price of the Company’s share were at P 2.01 and

P 2.00, respectively.

Total number of stockholders as of February 28, 2014 was one thousand one hundred seventy two (1,172)
and as of December 31, 2013 was one thousand one hundred seventy four (1,174). Common shares outstanding as
of February 28, 2014 and December 31, 2013 totaled 2,162,475,312,

Holders

The Company's common stockholders, with their respective shareholdings, as of February 28, 2014 and

December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Name

Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. (Parent Company)

Various Stockholders

No. of Shares Held

% to Total

1,840,116,632
322,358,680

85.093070%
358, 14.906930%
2.162,475,312 100.00000%

The top twenty (20) stockholders of the Company as of February 28, 2014 are as follows:

Name of Stockholders Securities | Shares Held | Total Qutstanding

Banco De Oro Unibank, Inc. Common 1,840,116,632 85.093070%
| PCD Nominee Corporation(Filipino) Common 230,975,702 10.681079%
Samuel Uy Chua Common 21,000,000 0.971109%
Equitable Computer Services,Inc. A/C Common 12,320,000 0.569717%
Panfilo Castro Jr. Common 6,140,000 0.283934%
Felly G. Castro Common 5,100,480 0.235863%
Marylen Castro Mateo common 3,795,000 0.175493%
Jesselen Castro Mateo Common 3,795,000 0.175493%
Samuel Uy Chua Common 3,011,150 0.139246%
Constantino Chua Common 2,497,200 0.115479%
Equitable Computer Services,Inc. Common 2,070,200 0.095733%
PCD Nominee Corporation(Foreign) Common 1,547,978 0.071584%




Victor Barranda Common 1,157 475 0.053525%
Mercury Group of Companies,Inc. Common 1,089,165 0.050367%
Constantino Chua &/or Willington Chua &/or George |Common 1,020,000 0.047168%
W. Chua

Nardo R. Leviste Common 759,000 0.035098%
Yok Bing S. Pua Common 721,050 0.033344%
Oscar M. Lopez Common 683,100 0.031589%
Willington/Constantino Chua/George W. Chua Chua |Common 584,430 0.027026%
Willington Chua Common 508,530 0.023516%

The top twenty (20) stockholders of the Company as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Name of Stockholders Securities | Shares Held | Total Outstanding
Banco De Oro Unibank, Inc. Common 1,840,116,632 85.093070%
PCD Nominee Corp (Filipino) Common 230,937,752 10.679324%
Samuel Uy Chua Common 21,000,000 0.971109%
Equitable Computer Services, Inc. A/C Equitable Common 12,320,000 0.569717%
Panfilo Castro Jr. Common 6,140,000 0.283934%
Felly G. Castro Common 5,100,480 0.235863%
Marylen Castro Mateo Common 3,795,000 0.175493%
Jesselen Castro Versoza Common 3,795,000 0.175493%
Samuel Uy Chua Common 3,011,150 0.139246%
Constantino Chua Common 2,497,200 0.115479%
Equitable Computer Services Inc. Common 2,070,200 0.095733%
PCD Nominee Corporation(Foreign) Common 1,547,978 0.071584%
Victor Barranda Common 1,157,475 0.053525%
Mercury Group of Companies Common 1,089,165 0.050367%
Constantino Chua &/or Willington Chua &/or George |Common 1,020,000 0.047168%
W. Chua
Nardo R. Leviste Common 759,000 0.035099%
Yok Bing S. Pua Common 721,050 0.033344%
Oscar M. Lopez Common 683,100 0.031589%
Willington/Constantino Chua/ George W. Chua Chua | Common 584,430 0.027026%

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities, Including Recent Issuance of Securities
Constituting an Exempt Transaction

There were no recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities including recent issuance of securities
constituting an exempt transaction.



PART Il - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation
2013 Compared to 2012

For the year-on-year comparison of the financial and operating results, the 2012 balances have been restated
to include the impact of the changes in PAS 19 that were made effective in 2013.

Gross income for the year ended December 31, 2013 was P1.90 billion, an increase of P141.4 million, or
8.03% from P1.76 billion in 2012. Interest and discounts for the year ended December 31, 2013 were P1.30 billion, an
increase of P25.7 million or 2.02% from P1.27 billion in 2012. Rent Income for the year ended December 31, 2013
were P380.8 million, an increase of P151.0 million or 65.71% from P229.8 million in 2012. The increase was due to
higher operating lease income from our subsidiary, BDO Rental, Inc. The Company’s leasing and financing portfolio
as of December 31, 2013 was at P21.20 billion, a P3.83 billion increase, or 22.05% from P17.37 billion as of
December 31, 2012 with leasing portfolio improving by 30.73% or increase of P3.2 billion.

Interest and financing charges for 2013 amounted to P418.6 million, consisting of finance charges from
borrowings of P414.4 million and interest expense on lease deposits of P4.2 million. Decrease of P42.7 million in
financing charges is attributed to the decrease in interest rate from 4% to 2.5%, even while Bills Payable increased
from P12.70 billion last year to P16.45 billion this year. Interest expense on leased deposits in 2013 amounted to
P4.2 million or a decrease of P0.3M from 2012's P4.5 million.

As of December 2013, total provision for impairment losses amounted to P126.0 million, an increase of P13.5
million from last year's P112.5 million. A total of P86.0 million provision for credit loan receivable losses was set up
during the year due to more conservative provisioning policies of the company. There were no accounts written off in
2013.

Taxes and licenses amounted to P148.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, an increase of P14.0
million, or 10.39% from P134.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase was mainly the result of
higher Documentary Stamp Tax in 2013 vis a vis 2012, by P12.3 million.

Salaries and employee benefits expense amounted to P183.4 in 2013 as compared to P164.6 million in 2012
(restated balance). Occupancy and equipment related expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 amounted to
P350.1 million, an increase of P129.3 million, or 58.56% from December 2012’s P220.8 million (restated balance).
This was brought about by the improved operating lease business of BDO Rental, Inc.

Litigation/assets acquired expenses decrease by 64.51% or from P47.9 million in 2012 to P17.0 million in
2013.

Other expenses increased to P91.2 million in 2013 as compared to P90.9 million as of 2012,
The Company registered a net income of P420.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Total assets amounted to P25.34 billion in December 2013, an increase of P4.66 billion from the P20.67
billion from the (restated) balance of December 2012. Available-for-sale financial assets of P2.09 billion is comprised
of investments in San Miguel Corporation (SMC) and First Gen Corporation preferred shares purchased last
September 2012 and July 2011 respectively. Leasing and Financing portfolio increased by 22.05% represents an
increase of P3.83 billion from last year. Property and Equipment-net amounted to P1,424.2 million as of 2013, or an
increase of P780.5 million over last year's P643.7 million. This is due to the increase in booked leases of BDO Rental
Inc. Investment properties-net decreased to P145.7 million from 2012's P379.5 million primarily due to the sale of
foreclosed properties during the year. Other assets stood at P560.8 million in 2013, primarily consisting of Non-
current asset held-for-sale, with net amount of P237.4 million; creditable withholding tax totaling P85.9 million; and
prepaid expense-VAT of P163.1 million.

Accounts Payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities increase to P300.7 million from P217.3 million
restated balance last year. ,



Lease deposits, amounting to P3.82 billion in 2013, increased by P645.9 million or 20.37% from last year's
P3.17 billion. This was also due to the increase volume of lease transactions of the Company.

Stockholders’ equity (restated balance) increased by P182.2 million or 3.97%, mainly from the increase in
Net Income year-on-year.

The Company'’s five (5) key performance indicators are the following:

December 2013 December 2012 restated

Current Ratio 0.43:1 0.43:1
Quick asset ratio 0.40:1 0.41:1
Debt to Equity Ratio 4.31:1 3.51:1
Net Profit Margin 22.09% 23.32%
Return on Equity 8.98% 9.23%

Increase in current ratio (computed as current assets divided by current liabilities) is attributed v the P2.87
billion increase in net loans & receivables financed that are expected to be collected within the year. The decrease in
quick asset ratio (quick asset divided by current liabilities) is due to this year's reclassification of some ROPA
accounts as non-current assets held for sale. Debt to equity ratio, computed as total liabilities divided by total equity,
increased from 3.51:1 in 2012 (restated balance) to 4.31:1 in 2013 because of more corporate and bank funding
availed to finance the increase in lease/loan portfolio during the year. Net profit margin which is computed as Net
Income over Gross Revenue, decreased this year from last year due to higher Occupancy & Equipment Related
Expense from BDORI bookings. Return on equity, which is Net Income over Average Equity, stood at 8.98% in 2013.

2012 Compared to 2011

Gross income for the year ended December 31, 2012 was P1.76 billion, an increase of P123.2 million, or
7.52% from P1.64 billion in 2011. Interest and discounts for the year ended December 31, 2012 amounted to P1.27
billion, an increase of P103.0 million or 8.83% from P1.17 billion in 2011. This increase was due to the increase in
lease/loan portfolio from last year to this year. Rent Income for the year ended December 31, 2012 was P226.7
million, a decrease of P17.8 million or 7.28% from P244.5 million in 2011. The decrease was due to the decline in
2012 operating lease income of our subsidiary, BDO Rental, Inc. The Company'’s leasing and financing portfolio as of
December 31, 2012 was at P18.49 billion, a P2.87 billion increase, or 18.40% from P15.62 billion as of December 31,
2011 with leasing portfolio improving by 40.47% or increase of P3.0 billion.

Interest and financing charges for 2012 amounted to P461.6 million, consisting of finance charges from
borrowings of P457.1 million and interest expense on lease deposits of P4.5 million. Increase of P81.4 million in
financing charges is attributed to the increase in Bills Payable which went up to P12.67 billion in 2012 compared to
P10.58 billion 2011. Interest expense on leased deposits in 2012 amounted to P4.5 million or a decrease of P7.5M
from 2011's P12.06 million.

As of December 2012, total provision for impairment losses amounted to P112.5 miillion, a decrease of P26.6
million from last year's P139.1 million. A total of P87.3 million provision for credit loan receivable losses was set up

during the year due to more conservative provisioning policies of the company. Total accounts written off in 2012
amounted to P31 million.

Taxes and licenses expenses amounted to P134.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, an
increase of P12.1 million, or 9.87% from P122.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. This was mainly due
to the increase in Gross Receipts Tax expenses of P10.6 million in 2012,

Salaries and employee benefits expense amounted to P178.2 in 2012 as compared to P163.9 miillion in 2011.
Occupancy and equipment related expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012 amounted to P220.8 million, a



decrease of P108.4 million, or 32.93% from December 2011’s P329.2 million. This is due to the sale of assets from
matured operating leases.

Litigation/assets acquired expenses increased by 88.58% or from P25.4 million in 2011 to P47.9 million in
2012.

Other expenses increased to P91.0 million in 2012 as compared to P85.9 million as of 2011. The increase of
P5.1 million, or 6.0% increase, is primarily due to the increase in Entertainment and Representation expenses of P5.1
million.

The Company registered a net income of P402.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Total assets amounted to P20.74 billion in December 2012, resulting in an increase of P2.89 billion from the
December 2011 balance of P17.85 billion. Available-for-sale financial assets of P2.02 billion is comprised of
investments in San Miguel Corporation (SMC) and First Gen Corporation preferred shares purchased last September
2012 and July 2011, respectively. Leasing and Financing portfolio increased by 18.40%. Property and Equipment-net
amounted to P643.7 million as of 2012, or an increase of P140.5 million over last year's P503.2 million. This is due to
the increase in assets for lease of BDO Rental Inc. Investment properties-net decreased to P379.5 million from
2011's P428.9 million primarily due to sale of foreclosed properties during the year. Other assets stood at P376.3
million in 2012 primarily consisting of Non-current asset held-for-sale, with net amount of P94.4 million; creditable
withholding tax totaling P89.6 million; and prepaid expense-VAT of P65.3 million.

Accounts Payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities decreased by P218.0 million or 45.44% due to
payment in 2012 of dividends declared in 2011 amounting P216.2 million.

Lease deposits, amounting P3.17 billion in 2012, increased by P745.3 million or 30.72% from last year's
P2.42 billion. This was also due to the higher volume of lease transactions of the Company.

Stockholders’ equity increased by P272.9 million or 6.26%, mainly from the increase in Net Income year-on-
year.

The Company’s five (5) key performance indicators are the following:

December 2012 December 2011

Current Ratio 0.42:1 0.78:1
Quick asset ratio 0.41:1 0.771
Debt to Equity Ratio 3471 3.00:1
Net Profit Margin 22.84% 18.54%
Retum on Equity 8.94% 6.96%

Decrease in current ratio (computed as current assets divided by current liabilities) and quick asset ratio
(quick asset divided by current liabilities) can be attributed to the P2.87 billion increase in net loans & receivables
financed that are expected to be collected for more than one year. Increase in individual/corporate and bank financing
resulted to an increase in the debt to equity ratio, computed as total liabilities divided by total equity, from 3.09:1 in
2011 to 3.47:1 in 2012. Net profit margin which is computed as Net Income over Gross Revenue, increased this year
from last year due to lower operating expenses in 2012. Return on equity, which is Net Income over Average Equity,
increased from 6.96% in 2011 to 8.94% in 2012,

Policy on Revenue Recognition — Other Income

Income related to the administration and servicing a loan are recognized as revenue as the services are
rendered, these are included under Other Income such as Service Fees, Gain on disposal of property, etc. These are
recognized as they are earned.



Key Variable and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors

There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that will have any material impact on the Company’s
liquidity.

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company,
including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations and other relationships of the
company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There were no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales or revenues or income from continuing operations. There were
also no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing operations.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of operations.

Internal and Externals Sources of Liquidity

The Company’s internal liquidity comes from the daily collections from various clients. External sources
range from credit facilities extended by various banks, corporate and individual placers. The Company is confident to
meet its current and long-term obligations as they mature.

Material Commitments for Capital Expenditures
There were no material commitments for capital expenditures.
Projections

Total Assets is projected to grow to P30.0 billion or 18% in 2014 with Net Loans and Other Receivables
increasing from P20.8 billion in 2013 to P25.2 billion in 2014 or up to 21%. Total Revenue is estimated at P2.2 billion

by year-end 2014 while Interest and Financing Charges and Operating Lease-related Depreciation total P549.2
million and P376.2 million, respectively.

Projected Net income is P440 million, an increase of 5% versus the P420.3 million Audited 2013
Performance.

Funding will be mainly sourced from the short-term commercial papers (STCP), bank lines and collections.
The Company secured an approval in 2013 for P15 Billion worth of STCP.

Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company included in the 2013 Annual Report to Stockholders are
incorporated herein by reference. The schedules listed in the accompanying Index to Supplementary Schedules are
filed as part of this Form.

INFORMATION ON INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT
Information on Independent Accountant and Other Related Matters
(1) External Audit Fees and Services
(a) Audit and Audit-Related Fees

(P000’s)
The aggregate fees paid by the Company 2013 2012



Audit fee P 888 P 610

There were no other assurance and related services by the external auditor that are reasonably
related to the performance of the audit or review of the registrant’s financial statements.

(b) Tax fees

There were no professional services rendered by the external auditor for tax accounting, compliance,
advice, planning and any other form of tax services in each of the last two fiscal years.

(c) All other fees

There were no other professional services rendered by the external auditors for each of the last two
fiscal years other than item (a) above

(d) The Board Audit Committee has the oversight responsibility over the audit function and activities of
Internal and External auditors. It provides assurance that (a) financial disclosures made by the
management as presented in the Internal Auditor's report reasonably reflect the financial condition;
the results of operation; and the plans and long-term commitments; and (b) internal controls are
operaling as intended and whether modifications are necessary.

The Board Audit Committee has the responsibility to select and recommend to the Board the External
Auditors. It reviews the audit coverage of the External Auditors and deliberates on their audit report
prior to endorsement to the Board of Directors for approval. It reports to the Board of Directors audit-
related matters requiring the Board's action.

(2) Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

In 2013, the auditing firm of Punongbayan & Araullo, CPAs (P&A) has been appointed as the Company’s
Independent Public Accountant. There was no event in the past where P&A and the Company had any
disagreement with regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or practices, financial statement
disclosure or auditing scope and procedures.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted a Manual of Corporate Governance, which was filed with and duly approved by
the Commission. Pursuant to the Manual, the Company established an evaluation system to measure or determine
the level of performance of the Board of Directors and top level management. The rating form, which is duly
approved by the Board of the Company, is accomplished on an annual basis.

The Company requires its directors and senior officers to attend seminars conducted by reputable service
providers and conduct its own training and seminars to fully comply with the adopted leading practices on good
governance.

There has been no deviation from the Company’s Manual of Corporate Governance.

The Company will continue to send its directors and senior officers to attend training programs and seminars
to further improve the corporate governance of the Company.



UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE ANNUAL REPORT

The Reglstrant undertakes to provide without charge each stockholder with a copy of its Annual
Report upon written request to the Registrant addressed to the:

OFFICE OF THE CORPORATE SECRETARY
14™ FLOOR, NORTH TOWER

BDO CORPORATE CENTER

7899 MAKATI AVENUE

MAKATI CITY 0726 PHILIPPINES
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
CITY OF MAKATI ) SS.

CERTIFICATION

I, JOSEPH JASON M. NATIVIDAD, Filipino, of legal age and with office address at the
14™ Floor, North Tower, BDO Corporate Center, 7899 Makati Avenue, Makati City, under oath, do
hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly appointed Co-porate Secretary of BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC,
(BDOLF), a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the
Republic of the Philippines, with prindpal office and business address at BDO Leasing Centre,
Corinthian Gardens, Ortigas Avenue, Quezon City, and in that capacity, I 1ave custody of the
corporate records of BDOLF;

2. As Corporate Secretary and based on the ccrporate records on file, I hereby certify
that none cf the Directors, Independent Directors, Officers and Employees of BDOLF, and none of
the nominees for election as Directors and Independent Directcrs of BDOLF, have been elected to
any Government position, or appointed to any Government department, agency, bureau or office,
that would disqualify them from serving as director, indepandent director, oficer or employee of
the company.

3. 1 am executing this certificate for whatever legal purpose it may serve.

MAR T 42014
a

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto &ffixed my signature this | t
Makati City, Philippines.
/7
p Aga,,,__ A ChECS s 7
JOSEPE JASON M. NA'I'IVI/DAD
Corporate Secretary
TMAR 1 i
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me ths __ day of at Makati City,
affiant exhibiting to me his Community Tax Certificate No. 02289815 issued at Makatj City on
March 5, 2014, and his Driver's License No. C05-89-C38680 issued on 06 Septentb 011 with
validity up to 02 September 2C14.
Doc. No. 4%%
Page No.
Book No. !
Series of 2014.
Cardat
BDO Leasing & Finance, Inc. -
BDO Leasing Certre / G2
Corinthian Gardens, Ortigas Avenue < L\_i.; e 3
29/ PLE3 1

Quezon City, Phisippines
Tel +63(2) 635 6416
Fax +63(2) 635 5811, 635 5806, 635 3898

Leasing
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CERTIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

[, MA. LEONORA V. DE JESUS, Filipino, of legal age and residing at Unit 2900-A Ritz Towers, 6745
Ayala Avenue, Makati City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1. | am an independent director of BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. (“BDOLF”)
2. | am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:
Company/Organization * Position/Relationship - Period of Service

BDO Capital & Investment Independent Director August 28, 2010 - present
Corporation
BDO Elite Savings Bank, Inc. Independent Director August 24, 2009 - present
ROAM, Inc. President/Director November 2011 - present
SM Development Corporation | Independent Director August 2, 2011 - present

3. | possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an Independent

Director of BDOLF, as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code and its
implementing Rules and Regulations.

4, | shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as independent
director under the Securities Regulation Code.

5. | shall inform the corporate secretary of BDOLF of any changes in the abovementioned

information within five days from its occurrence.

Done, this___dayof__TEB L& 200 9014 4t Makati City, Philippines.

% /

MA. LEONORA)/ DE JESUS
Affiant

FEB 747
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME his ____ day of - o 20__ at Makati City,
Philippines, affiant exhibiting to me her Community Tax Certificate No. 15377736 issued on 14 January 2013
at City of Manila, and her Passport No. EB9270181 issued at DFA-Manila with validity up to September 30,
2018.

NOTARY PUBLIC
Doc. No. 463 puty. REAGAN
Page No. ; Notary Putd pines
BookNo. L ; Lt

Series of 2014.
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CERTIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

[, JESUS G. TIRONA, Filipino, of legal ag= and residing at No. 14 Fabia1 de la Rosa St., Loyola
Heights, Quezon City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1. | am an independent director of BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. (“BDOLF”)
2. | am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:
Company/Organization Position/Relationship Period of Service

BDO Capital & Investment Independent Director Aug. 7, 2007 — present
Corporation
Armstrong Securities, Inc. Independent Director May 24, 2006 — present
BDO Foundation, Inc. (non- Trustee January 9, 2010 - present
stock, non-profit organization)

3. | possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualificztions to serve as an Independent
Director of BDOLF, as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code and its
Implemeniting Rules and Regulations.

4. | shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and resporsibilities as independent
director under the Securities Regulation Code.

5. I shall inform the corporate secretary of BDOLF of any changes in the abovementioned
information within five days from its occurrence.

e
vk 02

Done, this day of e d 403§z,at Makati City, Philippines.

J‘@-"t/—/
JESUS G. TIRONA
Affiant

SUBSCRIBED and sworn to before me this ___ day of FEB 2 1 204 in the City of

Pk , Philippines, affiant exhibited to me his Community Tax Certificate No. 10902234 issued on

February 13, 2014 at Makati City, and his Passport No. EB0205886 issued on 12 May 2010 at DFA — Manila
and is valid up to 11 May 2015.

Doc.No. 46t Notary Public fgr Makar City, Philipoines

Page No. ﬁ?} : until 31 Decemiber 2014

Book No. T - Appointment No, M-239

Ser f 2014 ' 14/ BDO North Tower, BDO Corporate Center
eries o : 7899 Makati Avenue, Maxzti City

fioll No. 43288
TE® No. 915810, 17372912, Quazon City
TTE Mo, 2673399, 1/- 13, Makat Oty
7omlianes No. 10007090, 4,16/2013




CERTIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

[, JESSE H. T. ANDRES, Filipino, of legal age and residing at No. 39 Mt Rainer Street,
Mountainview Village, New Marikina Subdivision, Marikina City, after having been duly sworn to in
accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1. | am an independent director of BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. (“BDOLF”)
2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:
Company/Organization | Position/Relationship Period of Service |
Andres Padernal and Paras Law | Managing Partner July 1, 2011 - presentJ
Offices
3. | possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an Independent

Director of BDOLF, as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations.

4, | shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as independent
director under the Securities Regulation Code.

5. | shall inform the corporate secretary of BDOLF of any changes in the abovementioned
information within five days from its occurrence.

Done, this ___ dayof_ €8 2 6 238014, at Makati City, Philippines.

JESSE H. T. ANDRES

Affiant
FEB 2 6 2014
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME this day of 20___ at Makati City,
Philippines, affiant exhibiting to me his Community Tax Certificate No. 10894669 issued at Pasay City on
January 7, 2014, and his Passport No. EB7982910 issued at DFA-Manila with validity up to April 25, 2018.

Doc. No. S

Page No. Ty, WAV
BookNo. i"" . , W
Series of 2014. 1 _

. 03084, Pampanga
; . i, !/6’4013 Makatt City
M(‘m’lpliwr., B, TV - 0019279, 4/26/20113
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. and Subsidiary the Group), is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), including the following additional

supplemental information filed separately from the basic financial statements:

a. Supplementary Schedules Required under Annex 68-E of the Szcurities Regulation

Code Rule 68;

oo o

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Decla-ation;
Schedule of PFRS Effective as of December 31, 2013;

Schedule of Financial Indicators for December 31, 2013 and 2012;

Map Showing the Relationship Between and Among the Company and its Related Entities;

Management responsibility on the financial statements includz designing and implementing internal controls
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial stazements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statemeats, and the additional supplementary

information, and submits the same to the stockholders.

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has examined the financial
statements of the Group in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and, and in its report to the
Board of Directors and stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion

of such examination.

> -

Signature: ‘ D
TEREBITA T.SY K
Chairperson

Signature: 4*

ROBERTO E. LAPID
Vice Chairman/Officer In Charge

~

Signature: // '
@ko LISA B. KAPUNO f
Comptroller

Signed this 10™ day of March 2014,

BDO Leasing & Finance, Inc.

BDO Leasing Centre

Corinthian Gardens, Ortigas Avenue
Quezon City, Philippines

Tel +63(2) 635 6416

Fax +63(2) 635 5811, 635 5805, 635 3898
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SUBSCEIBED and SWORN to me before this day of . 2014 affiant exhibiting to me
his/her Social Security Number, as follows:
NAMES SSS NUMBER
Teres:ta T. Sy 03-2832705-4
Roberto E. Lapid 03-5034078-2

Rosalisa B. Kapuno 03-5894505-3
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and to the Stockholders
BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.

(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)

BDO Leasing Centre, Corinthian Gardens

Ortigas Avenue, Quezon City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BDO Leasing and
Finance, Inc. and subsidiaty (the “Group”) and BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.

(the “Parent Company”) which comprise the statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, and the statements of income, statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows
for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
etror.
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Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit mvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those nisk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present faitly, in all matenal respects, the
financial position of BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. and subsidiaty and of BDO
Leasing and Finance, Inc. as at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, and their financial
petformance and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.



Punongbay< J& Araullo )

An instinct for growth’

Empbasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 21 to the financial statements, the Parent Company presented
the supplementary information required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2013 in a supplementary schedule filed separately from the
basic financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of
management. The supplementaty information is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards; it is neither a required
disclosure under the Philippine Secutities and Exchange Commission rules and
regulations covering the form and content of financial statements under Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

CPA Reg. No. 0095626
TIN 906-174-059
PTR No. 3671457, January 2, 2013, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 0628-AR-2 (until Sept. 5, 2016)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-3 (entl Jan. 18, 2015)
BIR AN 08-002511-22-2011 {untl Feb. 3, 2014)
Fiema’s BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (undl Dec. 31, 2015)

February 26, 2014
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BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2611
(Amounts in Millions of Philippine Pesos)

Group Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 011
7As Restated - (s Restared - {\s Restared - (As Researed -
Notes 2013 see Note 2) see Note 2) 2013 see Note 2) see Note 2)
ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7 P 1380 1 694 D 2.7 P 1291 P 635 T 863
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 8§ 2,093.5 2,022.0 2,043.1 2,093.5 2,022.0 2,043.1
LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - Net 9 20,975.0 17,245.0 145713 20,971.2 17,242.3 14,563.1
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - Net o 1,424.2 643.7 503.2 7.5 110 125
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - Net n 145.7 3795 428.9 145.7 379.5 4289
OTHER ASSETS - Net 12 561.0 3147 215.1 720.8 562.1 484.6
TOTAL ASSETS P 25,3374 D 20,6743 P 178493 P 24,067.8 P 20,2804 P 17,618.5
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

BILLS PAYABLE 13 P 16,4485 T 126970 P 10,3826 P 15,5174 P 125314 P 10,529.5
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES 14 258.1 126 219.2 196.5 99.6 2111
DIVIDENDS PAYABLE - - 216.2 - 216.2
INCOME TAX PAYABLE 27.5 9t.7 28.8 27.5 91.7 8.7
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY Net 21 15.2 110 624 15.2 12.9 69.6
LEASE DEPOSITS 15 3,817.1 3,171.2 24259 3,774.6 3,127.6 2,381.9

Total Liabilites 20,566.4 16,085.5 13,533.1 19,531.2 15,863.2 13,437.0
CAPITAL STOCK 16 2,225.2 22252 22252 2,225.2 22252 2,225.2
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 5711 3711 5711 571 571.1 5711
TREASURY SHARES { Blgy
RETAINED EARNINGS 2 1,986.2 1,890.3 1,587.7 1,751.8 1.718.7 14550
UNREALIZED FAIR VALUE GAIN

ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 8 112.2 41.1 62.0 112.2 411 62.0
NET ACCUMULATED ACTUARIAL LOSSES 2 4 i FIVET

Total Equity 4,771.0 4,588.8 43142 4,536.6 +417.2 4,181.5
TOTAL LYABILITIES AND EQUITY P 25,3374 P 20,6743 P 17849.3 P 24,0678 T 202804 T 17.618.5

See Notes to Financial Statements.



REVENUES
Interest and discounts
Rent

Other income

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Interest and financing charges
Occupancy and equipment-related expenses
Employee benefits
Taxes and hicenses
Impairment and credit loss

Litigation/asscts acquired expenses
Others

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

TAX EXPENSE

NET PROFIT

Basic / Diluted Eamings Per Share

BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Millions of Philippine Pesos, Except Per Share Data)

Group Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
(\s Restated - (As Restated - “\s Restared - f\s Resrated -
Notes 2013 see Note 2 see Note 2) 2013 see Note 2 see Note 2

9 12969 I 1,271.2 P 1,166.4 P 1,296.8 P 12718 P 1,166.7

18 380.8 2298 2445 1.2
17 225.2 260.5 227.4 198.3 251.2 199.0
1,902.9 17615 1,638.3 1,496.3 1,523.0 1,363.7
13,15 418.6 463.2 391.0 400.2 +58.4 384.6
10, 11,12 352.2 220.8 329.2 61.1 45.6 92.2
9 183.4 164.6 154.0 183.4 164.6 1534.0
ot 148.7 1347 1226 144.0 132.2 1147
9,11, 12 126.0 1253 139.1 126.0 125 139.1
17.0 47.9 254 17.0 47.9 25.4
20 91.2 90.9 85.9 88.9 90.6 60.4
1,337 1,234.6 1,247.2 1,020.6 10518 970.4
565.8 326.9 3911 475.7 471.2 395.3
21 145.5 116.2 82.8 118.2 99.4 82.1
4203 P 410.7 D 3083 P 3572.5 D 3718 P 313.2
22 019 P 019 P 014 P 017 1 017 P 0.14

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDQ Unibaak, Inc.)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Millions of Pbilippine Pesos)

Group Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 011
(As Resrated - (As Restaced - {\s Reseated - {As Restated -
Nores 2013 see Note 2) sce Note 2) 2013 see Nore 2) see Notwe 2
NET PROFIT P 420.3 r 410.7 ? 308.3 P 357.5 r 3718 P 3132

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items that will not be reclassified subscquently to profit or loss

Remeasurements of pust-employment defined benefir plan 219 217 EEE I L : ¥
Tax mcome (expense) 21 < L wma 3.0 1.7 3.0 1.7
15.2 T A 15.2
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Unrealized faic value gains Josses) on cevaluation
of available-for-sale financial assers 8 i o
Tax ncome (expensc) kil 0.1 H 0.1
g 8Y b 71
Other Comprchensive Income (Loss) - net of tax 86.3 86.3
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 5066 P 3827 T 967 P 4438 P 338 P 1016

See Notes to Financial Sttements.



Balance at January 1, 2013
As previously reported
Prior period adjustments, net of tax
As restated

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends

Balance at December 31, 2013

Balance at January 1, 2012
As previously reported
Prior period adjustments, net of tax
As restated
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Cash dividends

Balance at December 31, 2012

Balance at January 1, 2011
As previously reported
Prior period adjustments, net of tax
As restated
Tutal comprehensive income (loss)
Cash dividends

Balance at December 31, 2011

BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Millions of Philippine Pesos)

Group
Unrealized
Fair Value
Gains on
Net Available-for-
Additional Treasury Accumulated Sale
Paid-in Shares, Retained Actuarial Financial
Notes Capital Stock Capital At Cost Earnings Losses Assets Net Equity
16 P 2,225.2 P 5711 % P 1,878.7 P P 41.1 P 4,634.3
2 ...... 116 o
2,225.2 571.1 1,890.3 : . 4,588.8
4203 152 711 506.6
16 b e e . :
P 2,225.2 P 5711 ¢ ¥ K18y P 1,986.2 P itey P 112.2 P 4,771.0
16 P 2,225z P 5711 P 1,584.5 T P 62.0 P 4,361.0
2,2252 5711 P 1,587.7 62.0 4,314.2
410.7 . 3827
16 - RN
P 22252 P 571.1 P 1,890.3 P 41 P 4,588.8
16 P 22252 P 571.1 ® P 1,605.2 P Iy 246.1 P 4,565.8
2 { : Q i - U v
22252 5711 " 1,603.8 246.1 4,541.9
308.3 REE 6.7
I(’ ..... - ke
P 2,225.2 P 57t.1 p P 1,587.7 P 62.1) 1 4,314.2

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Balance at January 1, 2013
As previously reported
Priot period adjustments, net of tax
As restated

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends

Balance at December 31, 2013

Balance at January 1, 2012
As previously reported
Prior petiod adjustments, net of tax
As restated
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Cash dividends

Balance at December 31, 2012

Balance at January 1, 2011
As previously reported
Prior period adjustments, net of tax
As restated
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Cash dividends

Balance at December 31, 2011

BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Millions of Philippine Pesos)

Parent Company

Unrealized
Fair Value
Gains on
Net Available-for-
Additional Treasury Accumulated Sale
Paid-in Shares, Retained Actuarial Financial
Notes Capital Stock Capital At Cost Earnings Losses Assets Net Equity
15 iy 22252 P 5711 i srgy P 1,7071 P P 411 P 4,462.7
2 . 11.6 e B
22252 5711 ¢ i 1,7187 - v 1 44172
357.5 152 711 443.8
15 : "E e e :
P 2,2252 P 5711 ¥ r 17518 ¥ diby P mza2 p 4,536.6
15 r 22252 P 5711 ¥ digs P 1,451.8 P P 626 P 42233
2 3.2 N
22252 5711 - N 1,455.0 62.0 4,181.5
371.8 : 343.8
15 i
P 2,225.2 P 5711 i B )i 1,718.7 P 41.1 P 44172
15 P 2,2252 P 5711 i P 1,467.6 P P 246.1 P 44282
22252 5711 xiat 1,466.2 246.1 4,404.3
3132 . 101.6
15 i B -~ S R
P 2,2252 I 571.1 ¢ M P 1,455.0 P 62.0) P 4,181.5

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Millions of Philippine Pesos)

Group Parent Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
(\s Restared - (As Restared - (-\s Resrared - ’As Restared -
Nutes 2013 see Nute 2) see Note 2) 2013 see Note 2) see Note 2}
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before rax r 5658 T 5269 T 911 P 4757 P 4712 P 395.3

Adjusements for:

Interest received 13115 1,193.8
Interest income 9 { : P
Taterest and financing charges paid H FEOC 4
Taeerest and financing charges 13,13 418.6 391.0 400.2 3846
Deprecition and amornzition 11,12 3246 3015 33.7 644
Tmpaiement and credic losses 9.11.12 126.0 139.1 126.0 139.1
Gain on sale of property and equipment and 10,11
mvestment properucs Pl 17
Day one loss (gain) N 3.0 .
Operating profit before chunges in operaring assets and liabilities 8584 639.0 594.0
Increase in loans and other receivables H T
Increase in other assets LR B
Tnerease (decreasce) in accounts payable and other liabilities 4129 96.9 4103
137.0

Tncrease in lease deposirs

Cash used in operations

Cash paid for income tases

Ner Cash Used in Operating Activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets 8 -
JAcquisition of property and equipment 10 EEH o 38 LR .
Net decrease in investment propertics 1 192.3 63.8 192.3 63.8 270.3
Proceeds from disposal of property and
cquipment and investment properties 10,11 104.1 86 23.0 .7
Net Cash From (Used in) Investing Activities 260.5 573
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net availments of bills payable 13 3,756.2 2,093.4 2,530.0 2,997.9 1,981.3
Payments of cash dividends 16 3 i ) KPS IR B i
Net Cash From Financing Activines 3,431.8 1,769.0 2.205.6 2,673.5 1,056.9 2,189.9
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 68.6 H 15.8 65.6 Tt 17.1
CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 694 87.7 9 63.5 86.3 69.2
BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 7 P 1380 1 694 T 817 P 1291 P 635 P 86.3
END OF YEAR

See Notes to Financial Statements.




Report of Independent Auditors

to Accompany Supplementary
Information Required by the Bureau
of Internal Revenue Filed Separately
from the Basic Financial Statements

The Boatd of Ditectors

BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.

(A Subsidiary of Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc.)
BDO Leasing Centre, Corinthian Gardens
Ortgas Avenue, Quezon City

We have audited the financial statements of BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. on which
we have rendered our report dated February 26, 2014. Our audit was made for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying supplementary information for the year ended December 31, 2013,
required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepated in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standatds; it is neither a required
disclosure under Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission tules and regulations
covering the form and content of financial statements under Secunities Regulation Code
Rule 68, as amended. The supplementary informaton is required to be presented in the
notes to the financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility
of management. The supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated in all matetial respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By: Romualdo V. Murcia 111
Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0095626
TIN 906-174-059
PTR No. 4225011, January 2, 2014, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 0628-AR-2 (untl Sept. 5, 2016)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-3 (untl Jan. 18, 2015)
BIR AN 08-002511-22-2013 (until Nov. 7, 2016)
Firm’s BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2015)

February 26, 2014
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BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Millions of Philippine Pesos, Except Per Share Data,
Exchange Rates and As Indicated)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.01 Incotporation and Operations

BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. (BDO Leasing or the Parent Company) is a
domestic cotporation incorporated in 1981. Its shares were listed in the Philippine
Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) on January 6, 1997. The Parent Company operates as a
leasing and financing entity which provides direct leases, sale and leaseback
arrangements and real estate leases. Financing products include amortized
commercial and consumer loans, installment paper putchases, floor stock financing,
receivables discounting, and factoring.

The Parent Company is a subsidiary of BDO Unibank (“Ultimate Parent
Company”), a universal bank incorporated and doing business in the Philippines.
BDO Unibank offers a wide range of banking services such as traditional loan and
deposit products, as well as treasury, remittance, trade services, credit card services,
trust and others.

BDO Rental, Inc. (BDO Rental), a wholly owned subsidiary of BDO Leasing,
is registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) to
presently engage in renting and leasing of equipment. It started its commercial
operations on June 30, 2005.

The Parent Company’s principal office is located at BDO Leasing Centre, Corinthian
Gardens, Ortigas Avenue, Quezon City. It has nine branches located in the cities of
Makati, Cebu, Davao, Dagupan, San Pablo, Cagayan de Oro and Ilodlo and in the
provinces of Pampanga and Cavite. The registered addtess of BDO Unibank is
located at BDO Corporate Center, 7899 Makati Avenue, Makati City.

1.02 Approval of Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of BDO Leasing and Subsidiary

(the “Group”) and of the Parent Company as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2013 (including the comparatives as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011) were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors
(BOD) on February 26, 2014.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
financial statements are summarized in the succeeding sections. These policies have

been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.01 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(@)

()

()

Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the separate financial
statements of the Parent Company have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PEFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases
specified by PERS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that
follow.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Group
presents the statements of comprehensive income separate from the
statements of income.

The Group presents a third statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or
makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a
material effect on the information in the statement of financial position at the
beginning of the preceding period. The related notes to the third statement of
financial position are not required to be disclosed.

The Group’s adoption of PAS 19 (Revised), Employee Benefits, resulted in
naterial retrospective restatements on certain accounts as of

December 31, 2012 and 2011 [see Note 2.02(a)(i1)]. Accordingly, the Group
presents a third statement of financial position as of December 31, 2011
without the related notes, except for the disclosures required under PAS 8,
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Group’s
functional and presentation cutrency, and all values represent absolute amounts
except when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the
Group's functional cutrency. Functional currency is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates.
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2.02 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

(@)

Effective in 2013 that are Relevant to the Group

In 2013, the Group adopted the following new PFRS, revisions and thereto that
are relevant to the Company and effective for financial statements for the
annual period beginning on or after July 1, 2012 or January 1, 2013:

PAS 1 (Amendment)

PAS 19 (Revised)
PFRS 7 (Amendment)

PFRS 10
PFRS 12

PAS 27 (Revised)
PAS 28 (Revised)

PEFRS 10, 11 and PFRS 12
(Amendment)

PAS 34 (Amendment)

PFRS 13

Annual Improvements

Financial Statements Presentation —
Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits

Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetung Finaacial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associate and Joint
Venture

Amendments to PFRS 10, 11 and 12-
Transition Guidance to
PFRS 10, 11 and 12

Interim Financial Reporting —
Interim Financial Reporting and
Segment Information for Total
Assets and Liabilities

Fair Value Measurements

Annual improvements to

PFRS (2009-2011 Cycle)

Discussed below are the relevant information about these amended standards.

() PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial Statements — Presentation of Items of

Other Comprebensive Income (effective from July 1, 2012). The amendment
requires an entity to group items presented in other comprehensive income
into those that, in accordance with other PFRS: (a) will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss, and, (b) will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. The amendment has been
applied retrospectively, hence, the presentation of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. In 2013, the Company
also opted to present two separate statements for the statement of income
and statement of comptehensive income. Prior pefiod comparatives have
been restated as a consequence of this change in presentation.
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() PAS 19 (Revised), Employee Benefits (effective from January 1, 2013). This
revised standard made a number of changes to the accounting for employee
benefits. The most significant changes relate to defined benefit plans as
follows:

e climinates the cortidor approach and requires the recognition of
remeasurements (including actuarial gains and losses) arising in the
reporting period in other comprehensive income;

e changes the measurement and presentation of certain components of
the defined benefit cost. The net amount in profit or loss is affected by
the removal of the expected return on plan assets and interest cost
components and their replacement by a net interest expense or income
based on the net defined benefit liability or asset; and,

e enhances disclosure requitements, including information about the
characteristics of defined benefit plans and the risks that entities are
exposed to through participation in those plans.

The Group has applied PAS 19 (Revised) retrospectively in accordance with
its transitional provisions. Consequently, it restated the comparative
amounts disclosed in prior years and adjusted the cumulative effect of the
changes against the 2012 and 2011 balances of the affected assets, liabilities,
and equity components as shown below.

Group
December 31, 2012
Effect of
As Previously Adoption of
Reported PAS 19 As Restated
Change in asset and liability:
Retirement benefit assct* P 619 (P 612) P 0.7
Deferred tax lability ( 28.7) 15.7 ( 13.0)
Net decrease in equity (.. 455)
Changes in components of equity:
Accumulated actuarial
losses — net of tax r - (P 57.1) (P 57.1)
Retained earnings 1,878.7 11.6 1,890.3
Net decrease in equity (2 _455)
December 31, 2011
Effect of
As Previously Adoption of
Reported PAS 19 As Restated
Clange in asset and liability:
Retirement benefit obligation (P 27) (P 66.9) (P 69.6)
Deferred tax liability ( 825) 201 ( 62.4)
Net decrease in equity (P _468)
Changes in components of equity:
Accumulated actuarial
losses — net of tax r - (P 50.0) (P 50.0)
Rerained earnings 1,584.5 3.2 1,587.7
Net decrease in equity (B 46.8)

* included as part of Other Assets — net account



Parent Company

Change in aswet and lability:
Retirement benefit assett
Deferred tax liability

Net decrease 1n equity

Changes in components of equity:
Accumulated actuarial
losses — net of tax

Retained carnings

Net decrease in equity

Change in assel and lability:
Retirement benefit obligation
Deferred tax hability

Net decreasc in equity
Changes in components of cquify:
Accumnulated actuarial
losses — net of tax

Retained carnings

Net decrease in equity

* included as part of Other Assels — nel account

December 31,2012

Fffeet of
Adopnon of

As Previously

Reported PAS 19 As Restated
P 619 (D 612) P 0.7
( 28.6) 15.7 12.9)
(P _45.3)
P (r 57.1) (P 57.1)
1,707.1 116 1,718.7
(P 455)

December 31, 2011

Effect of

As Previously Adoption of

Reported PAS 19 As Restated
(P 27) (P 66.9) (P 69.6)
( 89.7) 201 ( 69.6)
(P 46.8)
r - (P 50.0) (P 50.0)
1,451.8 32 1,455.0
(P 468)

The effects of prior period adjustments on certain line items in the
statements of income and statements of comprehensive income for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are summarized below.

Group

Changes in profit or loss:
Employee benefits
Interest and financing charges

Net increasc in profit

Clanges in other comprebensive income:
Remeasurements of
post-employment defined
benefit plan — net of tax

December 31, 2012

Effect of
As Previously Adoption of
Reported PAS 19 As Restated
r 1782 (P 13.6) P 164.6
461.6 1.6 463.2
(B______120)
Jud - hud A Ju 71




Group

Changes in profit or loss:
Limployee bencefits
Interest and financing charges

Net increase in profit

Changes in other comprebensire income:
Remeasurcments of
post-employment defined
benefit plan — net of tax

Parent Company

Changes in profit or loss:
Employce benefits
Interest and financing charges

Net increase in profit

Changes in other comprehensie income:
Remeasurements of
post-employment defined
benehit plan — net of tax

Changer in profit or loss:
Employce benefits
Interest and financing charges

Net increase in profit

Changes in other comprebensive income:
Remeasurements of
post-employment defined
benefit plan — net of tax

December 31, 2011

Lffect of
As Previously Adoption of
Reported PAS 19 As Restated
P 1639 (P 99y P 154.0
387.7 3.3 391.0
(2 6.6)
P - Jid 274 D 274

December 31, 2012

Effect of
As Previously Adoption of
Reported PAS 19 As Restated
r 1782 (P 136) P 164.6
456.8 1.6 458.4
(P 120)
P - P 7.1 P 71

December 31, 2011

Effect of
As Previously Adopuon of
Reported PAS 19 As Restated
P 1639 (P 929) P 154.0
381.3 3.3 384.6
(L 66)
Jid - )i 274 P 27.4

The prior period adjustments have the following effect on the statements of
cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Group

Profit before tax
Adjstments for:
Other assets
Interest and financing charges

December 31, 2012

Effect of
As Previously Adoption of
Reported PAS 19 As Restated
P 5149 P 1200 P 526.9
1782 ( 13.6) 164.6
461.6 1.6 463.2
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Group
December 31, 2011
Liffect of
As Previously Adoption of
Reported PAS 19 As Restated
Profit before tax P 3845 P 66 P 3911
Adjustments for:
Accounts payable and other liabilities 1639 ( 9.9) 154.0
Interest and financing charges 387.7 33 3910
) -
Parent Company
Deccember 31, 2012
Effect of
As Previously Adoption of
Reported PAS 19 As Restated
Profit before tax P 4592 P 1200 P 471.2
Adjustments for:
Other asscts 178.2 ( 13.6) 164.6
Tnterest and financing charges 456.8 16 4584
P -
December 31, 2011
Effect of
As Previously Adoption of
Reported PAS 19 As Restated
Profit before tax P 3887 P 66 P 395.3
Adjustments for:
Accounts payable and other habilities 1639 ( 9.9) 154.0
Interest and financing charges 381.3 33 384.0
P__-

(i) PFRS 7 (Amendment), [Financial Instruments: Disclosnres — Offsetting of Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities (effective from January 1, 2013). The
amendment requires qualitative and quantitative disclosures relating to gross
and net amounts of recognized financial instruments that are set-off in
accordance with PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation. The amendment
also requires disclosure of information about recognized financial
instruments which are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements
or similar agreements, even if they are not set-off in the statement of
financial position, including those which do not meet some or all of the
offsetting criteria under PAS 32 and amounts related to a financial collateral.
These disclosures allow financial statement users to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting atrangements, including rights of set-off
associated with recognized financial assets and financial liabilities on the
entity’s statement of financial position. This amendment did not have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements as the Group 1s not
setting off financial insttuments in accordance with PAS 32 and does not
have relevant offsetting arrangements.
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(iv) Consolidation, Associates and Disclosures

This package of consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
standards comprise of PFRS 10, Consolidated I'inancial Statementy, PERS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, PAS 27 (revised 2011), Separate Financial
Statements and PAS 28 (revised 2011), Investments in Associates and Joint 1/ entures.

e PFRS 10 changes the definiton of control focusing on three elements
which determines whether the investor has control over the mnvestee
such as the (a) power over the investee, (b) exposure or rights to
variable returns from involvement with the investee, and, (c) ability to
use such power to affect the returns. This standard also provides
additional guidance to assist in detetmining controls when this is
difficult to assess, particulatly in situation where an investor that owns
less than 50% of the voting rights in an investee may demonstrate
control to the latter.

e PFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosure requirements for
entities that have interest in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates,
special purpose entities and unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
this requires more extensive disclosures about the risks to which an entity
is exposed from its involvement with structured entities.

o PAS 27 (Amendment), Separate [Financial Statements. This amended
standard now covers the requirements pertaining solely to separate
financial statements after the relevant discussions on control and
consolidated financial statements have been transferred and included in

PFRS 10.

e PAS 27 (Revised) deals with the requitements pertaining solely to separate
financial statements while PAS 28 (revised) includes the requirements for
joint ventures, as well as for associates, to be accounted for using the

equity method.

Subsequent to the issuance of these standards, amendments to PFRS 10 and
PFRS 12 were issued to clatify cettain transidonal guidance for the first-time
application of the standards. The guidance clatifies that an entity is not
required to apply PFRS 10 retrospectively in certain circumstances and
clarifies the requirements to present adjusted comparatives. The guidance
also made changes to PFRS 10 and PFRS 12 which provide similar relief
from the presentation or adjustment of comparative information for periods
prior to the immediately preceding period. Further, it provides relief by
removing the requirement to present comparatives for disclosures relating
to unconsolidated structured entities for any period before the first annual
period for which PFRS 12 is applied.

The Group has evaluated the various facts and citcumstances related to its
interesis 1 other entities and hae detertnined that the adoption of the
foregoing standatds, revisions and amendments had no matetial impact on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements.
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(v) PERS 13, Fair |“alue Measurement (effective from January 1, 2013). This new
standard clanfies the definition of fair value and provides guidance and
enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements. The requirements under
this standard do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied to both finandal instrument items and
non-financial items for which other PFRS’ require or permit fair value
measuremnents or disclosures about fair value measurements, except in certain
circumstances. This new standard applies prospectively from annual period
beginning January 1, 2013, hence, disclosure requitements need not be
presented in the comparative information in the first year of application.

Other than the additional disclosures presented in Note 6.02, the application
of this new standard had no significant impact on the amounts recognized and
disclosures presented in the financial statements of the Group.

(vi) PAS 34 (Amendment), Interim Financial Reporting and Segment Information for
Total Assets and Liabilities (effective from January 1, 2013). This standard
clarifies the requirements on segment information for total resources and
liabilities for each reportable segment to enhance consistency with the
requirements in paragraph 23 of IFRS 8, Operating Segments. It also clatifies
that the total resources and liabilities for a particular reportable segment are
required to be disclosed if, and only if: (a) 2 measure of total resources or of
total liabilities (or both) is regulatly provided to the chief operating decision
maker; and, (b) there has been a material change from those measures
disclosed in the last annual financial statements for that reportable segment.
The adoption of this atnendment did not have an effect on the Group’s
financial statetuents as the form and content of these complete set of
financial statements conform to the requirements of PAS 34.

(vii) 2009-2011 Annual Improvements to PFRS. Annual improvement to PFRS
(2009-2011 Cycle) made minor amendments to a number of PFRS. Among
those improvements, the following are relevant to the Group.

(a) PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial Statements — Clarification of the
Reguirements for Comparative Information. The amendment clarifies that a
statement of financial positon as at the beginning of the preceding petiod
(third statement of financial position) is required when an endty applies an
accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification of items that has a material effect on the information in the
third statement of financial position. The amendment specifies that other
than disclosure of certain specified information in accordance with
PAS 8, related notes to the third statement of financial position are not
required to be presented.

Consequent to the Group’s adopton of PAS 19 (Revised) in the cutrent
year which resulted in retrospective restatement of the prior years’ financial
statements, the Group has presented a third statement of financial position
as of December 31, 2011 without the related notes, except for the
disclosure requirements of PAS 8 and the SEC for listed entities.
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(b) PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments — Presentation — Tax Effect of
Distributions to Holders of Equity Instruments. The amendment clarifies that
the consequences of income tax relating to distributions to holders of an
equity instrument and to transaction costs of an equity transaction shall
be accounted for in accordance with PAS 12. Accordingly, income tax
relating to distributions to holders of an equity instrument 1s recognized
in profit or loss while income tax related to the transaction costs of an
equity transaction is recognized in equity. This amendment had no
effect on the Group’s financial statements as it has been recognizing the
effect of distributions to holders of equity instruments and transaction
costs of an equity transaction in accordance with PAS 12.

Effective in 2013 that are not Relevant to the Group
The following amendments, annual improvements and interpretations to PFRS

are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on of after January 1, 2013 but
are not relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

PFRS 1 (Amendment) : First-titme Adoption of PFRS —
Government Loans
PFRS 11 : Joint Arrangements
Annual Improvements:
PFRS 1 (Amendment) : First-time Adoption of PFRS —

Repeated Application of PFRS 1
and Borrowing Costs

PAS 16 (Amendment) . Property, Plant and Equipment —
Classification of Servicing
Equipment

PAS 38 (Amendment) : Tntangible Assets

Philippine Interpretations
International Financial
Reporting Interpretations
Committee 20 : Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

Effective Subsequent to 2013 but not Adopted Early

There are new PFRS, amendments, annual improvements and interpretations to
existing standards that are effective for periods subsequent to 2013.
Management has initially determined the following pronouncements, which the
Group will apply in accordance with their transitional provisions, to be relevant
to its financial statements:

) PAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans - Employee
Contributions (effective from January 1, 2014). The amendment clarifies that
if the amount of the contributions from employees or third parties is
dependent on the number of years of service, an entity shall attribute the
contributions to periods of service using the same attribution method
(ic., either using the plan’s contribution formula or on a straight-line basis)
for the gross benefit. Management has inidally determined that this
amendment will have no impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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() PAS 32 (Amendment), Iinancial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Financial

Avssets and Financial I zabilities (effective from January 1, 2014). The
amendment clarifies that the requirements for the disclosure of information
about the recoverable amount of assets or cash-generating units is limited
only to the recoverable amount of impaired assets that is based on fair value
less cost of disposal. It also introduces an explicit requirement to disclose the
discount rate used in detetrnining impairment (or reversals) where recoverable
amount based on fair value less cost of disposal is determined using a present
value technique. The Group does not expect this amendment to have a
significant impact on its financial statements since there are no significant
items of financial assets and liabilities that are offset.

() PAS 36 (Amendment), Impairment of Assets — Recoverable Amount Disclosures for

Non-financial Assets (effective from January 1,2014). The amendment
clarifies that the requirements for the disclosure of information about the
recoverable amount of assets or cash-generating units is limited only to the
recoverable amount of impaired assets that is based on fair value less cost of
disposal. It also introduces an explicit requirement to disclose the discount
rate used in determining impairment (or reversals) where recoverable
amount based on fair value less cost of disposal is determined using a
present value technique. Management will reflect in its subsequent years’
financial statements the changes atising from this relief on disclosure
requirements, if the impact of the amendment will be applicable.

(V) PAS 39 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

(v)

— Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Acconnting (effective from
January 1, 2014). The amendment provides some relief from the
requirements on hedge accounting by allowing entities to continue the use
of hedge accounting when a derivative is novated to a clearing counterparty
resulting in termination or expiration of the original hedging instrument as a
consequence of laws and regulations, or the introduction thereof. As the
Group neither enters into transactions involving derivative instruments nor
it applies hedge accounting, the amendment will not have an impact on the
financial statements.

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement. This 1s the first
part of a new standard on financial instruments that will replace PAS 39,
Financial Initruments: Recognition and Measurement, in its entirety. The first
phase of the standard was issued in November 2009 and October 2010 and
contains new requirements and guidance for the classification, measurement
and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. It requires
financial assets to be classified into two measurement categories: amortized
cost or fair value. Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows that represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortized cost. All other debt instruments and equity
instruments are measured at fair value. Tn addition, PFRS 9 allows enaties
to make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity instrument that is not held for trading in other
comprehensive income.




), @)

-12-

The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that are financial
assets is simplified by removing the requirement to consider whether or not
they are closely related, and, in most arrangement, does not require
separation from the host contract.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which
include amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with
bifurcation of embedded detivatives. The main change is that, in case where
the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value
change due to the liability’s credit risk is recognized in other comprehensive
income rather than in profit or loss, unless this creates an accounting
mismatch.

In November 2013, the IASB has published amendments to International
Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9 that contain new chapter and model
on hedge accounting that provides significant improvements principally by
aligning hedge accounting more closely with the risk management activities
undertaken by entties when hedging their financial and non-financial risk
exposures. The amendment also now requires changes in the fair value of
an entity’s own debt instruments caused by changes in its own credit quality
to be recognized in other comprehensive income rather in profit or loss. It
also includes the removal of the January 1, 2015 mandatory effective date of
TIFRS 9.

To date, the remaining chapter of IFRS 9 and PFRS 9 dealing with
impairment methodology is still being completed. Further, the IASB is
currently discussing some limited modifications to address certain
application issues regarding classification of financial assets and to provide
other considerations in determining business model.

The Group does not expect to implement and adopt PFRS 9 until its
effective date. In addition, management is currently assessing the impact of
PFRS 9 on the financial statements of the Group and it plans to conduct a
comprehensive study of the potential impact of this standard prior to its
mandatory adoption date to assess the impact of all changes.

(vi) Annual Improvements to PFRS. Annual improvements to PFRS
(2010-2012 Cycle) and PFRS (2011-2013 Cycle) made minor amendments to
a number of PFRS, which are effective for annual period beginning on or
after July 1, 2014. Among those improvements, the following amendments
are relevant to the Group but management does not expect a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements:

Annunal Improvements to PERS (2010-2012 Cyct)

(a) PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipment. The amendments
clarify that when an item of propetty, plant and equipment is revalued,
the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with
a revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset.
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(b) PAS 24 (Amendment), Related Party Disclosures. The amendment clarifies
that entity providing key management services to a reporting entity is
deemed to be a related party of the latter. It also requires and clarifies
that the amounts incurred by the reporting entity for key management
personnel services that are provided by a separate management entity
should be disclosed in the financial statements, and not the amounts of
compensation paid or payable by the key management entity to its
employees or directoss.

(¢) PFRS 13 (Amendment), Fair Value Measurernent. The amendment,
through a revision only in the basis of conclusion of PFRS 13, clarifies
that issuing PFRS 13 and amending certain provisions of PFRS 9 and
PAS 39 related to discounting of financial instruments, did not remove
the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables with no stated
interest rate on an undiscounted basis, when the effect of not
discounting is immaterial.

Annnal Improvements to PERS (2011-2013 Cyck)

(a) PFRS 13 (Amendment), Fair Value Measurement. The amendment
clarifies that the scope of the exception for measuring the fair value of a
group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis
(the portfolio exception) applies to all contracts within the scope of, and
accounted for in accordance with, PAS 39 or PFRS 9, regardless of
whether they meet the definitions of financial assets or financial

liabilities as defined in PAS 32.

(b) PAS 40 (Amendment), Investment Property. The amendment clarifies the
interrelationship of PFRS 3, Business Combinations, and PAS 40 in
determining the classification of property as an investment propetrty ot
owner-occupied property, and explicitly requires entity to use judgment
in determining whether the acquisition of an investment property is an
acquisition of an asset or a group of asset, or a business combination in
reference to PFRS 3.

2.03 Basis of Consolidation and Investment in a Subsidiary

The Group obtains and exercises control through voting rights. The Group’s
financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent Company and its
subsidiary, after the elimination of material intercompany transactions. All
intercompany balances and transactions with its subsidiary, including income,
expenses and dividends, are eliminated in full. Unrealized profits and losses from
intercompany transactions, if any, that are recognized in assets are also eliminated in
full. Intercompany losses that indicate impairment is recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

The financial statements of the subsidiaty are prepated for the same reporting petiod
as the Parent Company, using consistent accounting principles.
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A subsidiary 1s an entity over which the Group has the power to control the former’s
financial and operatng policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voung rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable and convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. A subsidiary is consolidated from the date the Group
obtains control until such time that such control ceases.

The acquisition method is applied to account for any acquired subsidiaries. This
requires recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, if
any. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a conungent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred and subsequent change in the fair value of contingent
consideration is recognized directly in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain putchase, the difference is
recognized directly in profit ot loss as gain.

The results of subsidiary acquited or disposed of during the year, if any, are included
in profit or loss from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as
appropriate.

The Parent Company’s investment in a subsidiaty is accounted for in these separate
financial statements at cost, less any impairment loss (see Note 12).

2.04 Segment Reporting

A husiness segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing
products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other business segments. The Group’s operating businesses are organized and
managed separately according to the nature of the products and services provided,
with each segiment representing a strategic business unit that offers different
products and serves different matkets.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Group’s chief operating decision-maker. The strategic steering
committee is responsible for allocating resoutces and assessing performance of the
operating segiments.
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In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s
products and services as disclosed in Note 4, which tepresent the main products and
services provided by the Group.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of these service lines
requires different technologies and other resources as well as marketing approaches.
All inter-segment transfers are carried out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under PFRS 8 are
the same as those used in its consolidated financial statements.

2.05 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
terms of the financial instrument. Financial assets, other than those designated and
effective as hedging instruments are classified into the following categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity (HTM) investments and available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets.
Financial assets are assigned to the different categoties by management on initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All
financial assets that are not classified as at FVTPL are inidally recognized at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at
FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in
profit or loss.

The categories of financial instruments relevant to the Group are more fully
described below.

(a)  Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-detivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They atise
when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to the debtor with
no intention of trading the receivables.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment loss, if any. Impairtment loss is
provided when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due to it in accordance with the otiginal terms of the
teceivables. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the
difference between the assets’ cartying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred), discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate ot
current effective interest rate determined under the contract if the loan has a
variable interest rate.
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The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented
as Cash and Cash Equivalents and Loans and Other Receivables in the
statement of financial position. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible to known amounts of cash.

(6)  AFS Financial Assets

This category includes non-derivative financial assets that are either designated
to this category or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets. The Group’s AFS financial assets include listed equity
secutfities, corporate bonds and gold club shares.

All financial assets within this category are measured at fair value, unless
otherwise disclosed, with changes in value recognized in other comprehensive
income, net of taxes. Gains and losses arising from securities classified as AFS
are recognized in other comprehensive income when these are sold or when
the investment 1s impaired.

In case of impairment, any loss previously recognized in equity is transferred to
other comprehensive income. Losses recognized in other comprehensive
income on equity instruments are not reversed through other comprehensive
income. Losses recognized in prior period statement of comprehensive
income resulting from the impairment of debt instruments are reversed
through the statement of comprehensive income, when there is recovery in the
amount of previously recognized impairment losses.

AFS financial assets are presented as a separate line item in the statement of
financial position.

Impairment losses recognized on financial assets are included as part of Impairment
and Credit Losses under Operating Costs and Expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income.

For investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets, fair value is
determined by reference to stock exchange-quoted market closing prices on each
reporting date. For investments where there is no quoted market price, fair value is
determined by reference to the cutrent market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same or is calculated based on the expected cash flows

(such as dividend income) of the underlying net asset base of the investment.

A financial asset is considered as being traded in an active market if quoted prices or
market values are readily and periodically available from stock or debt markets,
exchanges, dealers, brokers, industty groups, pricing service entities ot regulatory
agencies. In such cases, those prices or values represent actual and regularly
occurting market transactions on an arm’s length basis. Otherwise, the market is
regarded as being inactive. Indications that a market is inactive when there are few
recent transactions or market participants have not engaged in transactions for at
least one year.

Non-compounding interest, dividend income and other cash flows resulting from
holding financial assets are recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of
how the related carrying amount of financial assets is measured.
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The financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash
flows from the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all
substantial risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party.

2.06 Other Assets

Other assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Group as a result of past
events. They are recognized in the financial statements when it is probable that
the future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the asset has a cost or
value that can be measured reliably.

2.07 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation
and amortization and any impairment in value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase ptice and directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for
additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs
and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. When assets are sold, retired or
otherwise disposed of, their cost and related accumulated depreciation and
amortization and any impairment losses ate removed from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss is reflected in profit or loss for the petiod.

Depreciation 1s computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the depreciable assets as follows:

Transportation and other equipment 3-5 years
Tarniture, fixtures and others 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the tertns of the leases or the estimated
useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount

(see Note 2.19).

The residual values and estimated useful lives of property and equipment are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property and equripment, including the related accumulated depreciation
and impatrment losses, if any, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the catrying amount of the item) is included
in profit or loss in the year the item is derecognized.

2.08 Non-current Assets Held-for-Sale

Asscts held-for-sale (presented under Other Assets) include chattel ot personal
propetties acquired through repossession ot foreclosure that the Group intends to
sell and will be disposed of within one year from the date of classification as
held-for-sale.
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Assets classified as held-for -sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts
immediately prior to their classification as held for sale and their fair value less costs
to sell. Assets classified as held-for-sale are not subject to depreciation or
amortization. The profit or loss arising from the sale of held-for-sale assets is
recognized in profit or loss in the year the asset is disposed.

2.09 Investment Propetties

Investment properties are stated at cost. The cost of an investment property
compuses its purchase price and directly attributable cost incurred. This also
includes properties acquired by the Group from defaulting borrowers not held for
sale in the next twelve months. For these properties, the cost is recognized initially
at the fair market value. Investment properties except land are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over a period of ten years.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment propetties are stated at cost less
accumnulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Depteciation and
impairment loss are recognized in the same manner as in Property and Equipment.

The fair value of investment properties, as disclosed in Note 11, are based on
valuations provided by independent and/or in-house appraisers, which are matket
value for land and building and related improvements and reproduction cost for
certain building and improvements.

Investment properties are derecognized upon disposal or when permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal.
Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of investment properties is recognized
in profit ot loss in the year of retitement or disposal.

Direct operating expenses related to investment propetties, such as repairs and
maintenance, and real estate taxes are normally charged against current operatons in
the petiod in which these costs are incutred.

2.10 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, which include bills payable, accounts payable and other liabilities
{except tax-related payables), dividends payable and lease deposits, are recognized
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual tetms of the instrument. All
interest-related charges are included as part of Interest and Financing Charges under
Operating Costs and Expenses in the statement of income.

Bills payable are raised for support of long-term funding of operations. They are
recognized at proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are charged to
profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest method and are added to
the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the
petiod in which they arise.

Accounts payable and other liabilities are initially tecognized at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amottized cost less settlement payiments.
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Lease deposits are initially recognized at fair value. The excess of the principal
amount of the deposits over its present value at initial recognition is immediately
recognized and is included as part of Day One Gain under Other Income account in
the statement of income (see Note 17). Meanwhile, interest expense on the
amortization of lease deposits using the effective interest method is included as part
of Interest and Financing Charges under Operating Costs and Expenses in the
statement of income.

Dividend distabutions to shareholders are recognized as financial liabilities upon
declaration by the Group.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the statement of financial position only
when the obligations ate extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.11 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow
of economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or
amount of the outflow may stll be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the
presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most teliable evidence available at the end of the reporting
period, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation.
Whete there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be requited in settlement is determined by consideting the class of obligations as a
whole. When time value of money is matetial, long-term provisions are discounted
to their present values using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
1s recognized as interest expense. Provisions ate reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the cutrent best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of
present obligations is considered improbable or remote, ot the amount to be
provided for cannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial
statements. Sitnilatly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do
not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets,
hence, are not recognized in the financial statements. On the other hand, any
reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party
with respect to the obligation is recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the
amount of the related provision.

2.12 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities ate offset and the resulting net amount is reported in
the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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213 Residual Value of Leased Assets

The residual value of leased assets, which approximates the amount of lease deposit
paid by the lessee at the inception of the lease, is the estimated proceeds from the
disposal of the leased asset at the end of the lease term. At the end of the lease term,
the residual value of the leased asset is generally applied against the lease deposit of
the lessee.

2.14 Equity
Common stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been 1ssued.

Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the issuance of capital
stock. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted
from additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits.

Treasury shares are stated at the cost of reacquiting such shares.

Unrealized fair value gain (loss) on AFS financial assets pertains to cumulative
mark-to-market valuation of AFS financial assets.

Net accumulated actuarial losses arises from the changes in the actuary’s assumptons
in the valuation of the Group’s retirement benefits.

Retained earnings represent all current and prior period results as reported in the
statement of income, reduced by the amounts of dividends declared.

2.15 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue compiises interest income on loans and receivables financed and rent
income from operating lease contracts, measured by reference to the fair value of
consideration received or receivable by the Group for products sold and services

rendered, excluding value-added tax (VAT).

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following
specific recognition critetia of income and expenses must also be met before revenue
is recognized:

(a)  Interest income on finance lease recervables — The intetest income on finance
lease is allocated over the lease tertn on a systematic and rational basis.
The recognition of interest income on finance lease is based on a pattern
reflecting a constant periodic rate of retutn on the Group’s net investment in
the finance lease. Lease payments relating to the period, excluding costs for
services, are applied against the gross investment in the lease to reduce both
the principal and the unearned finance income.

(b)  Interesi— Interest income and expenses ate recognized in profit or loss for all
insttuments measuted at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of
a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estumated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrtument or, when approptiate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written
down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

Rent — Revenue from operating lease contracts is recognized in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, or on another systematic basis which is
more representative of the time pattern in which the use or benefit derived
from the leased asset 1s diminished.

Service fees — Fees related to the administration and setvicing a loan are
recognized as revenue as the services are rendered. This account is included
under Other Income.

Operating costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization of the
assets or services or at the date they are incurred.

2.16 Leases

The Group accounts for its leases as follows:

(@)

Group as a Lessor

Finance leases, where the Group transfers substantially all the risk and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item to the lessee, are included in the
statement of financial position under Loans and Other Receivables account. A
lease receivable is recognized at an amount equal to the net investment in the
lease. The difference between the gross lease receivable and the net investment
in the lease is recognized as unearned finance income. Finance income is
recognized based on the pattern reflecting a constant petiodic rate of return on
the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

All income resulting from the receivable is included as part of Interest and
Discounts in the statetnent of income.
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Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from
operating leases is recognized as income in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term, or on a systematic basis which is more representative of
the time pattern in which the use or benefit derived from the leased asset is
diminished.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the
same basis as the rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in
the year in which they are earned.

(b)  Group as a Lessee

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substandally all the risks and
benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating
lease payments (net of any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as
expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Assoclated
costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease based on
the substance of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. ’

2.17 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

The accounting records of the Group are maintained in Philippine pesos. Foreign
currency transactions during the period are translated into the functional currency at
exchange rates which approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of
income.

2.18 Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if,
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event) and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about certain loss events,
including, among others: significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor; a
breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization; the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because
of fimanaial difficulties; or observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the
initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial assets in the group.

(a)  Assets carried at amortized cost. The Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant and individually or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of umpairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, the Group includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit tisk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impaitment. Financial assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there 1s objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and other
receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss.

If a loan has a variable interest rare, the discount rate for measuting any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. When practicable, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from
foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are
grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics
are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by
being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated
for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the
assets and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk charactetistics
sitnilar to those in the group.
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Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to
reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which
the historical loss experience 1s based and to remove the cffects of conditions
in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect
and be consistent with changes in related observable data from period to
period. The methodologies and assumptions used for estimating future cash
flows are reviewed regulatly by the Group to reduce any differences between
loss estitnates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for
loan impairment. Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures
including approval from the management and the BOD has been completed
and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off dectease the amount of the impairment loss in
profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent pertod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases

and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment is recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the previously recognized impaittent loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

In addition, under Section 9(f) of the Rules and Regulations to implement the
provisions of Republic Act No. 8556, The Financing Company Act of 1998, a
100% allowance should be set up for the following:

(a) Clean loans and advances past due for a period of more than six months;

(b) Past due loans secured by collateral such as inventories, receivables,
equipment and other chattels that have declined in value by more than 50%,
without the borrower offeting additional collateral for the loans;

(¢) Past due loans secured by real estate mortgage the tite to which is subject to
an adverse claim rendering settlement through foreclosure doubtful;

(d) When the borrower, and his co-maker or guarantor, is insolvent or where
their whereabouts is unknown, or their earning power is permanently
impaired;

(¢) Accrued interest receivable that remains uncollected after six months from
the maturity date of the loan to which it accrues; and

() Accounts receivable past due for 361 days or more.

These requirements and conditions wete accordingly considered by the Group
in the determination of impairment loss provision on assets carried at
amortized cost patticularly loans and other receivables.
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(b)  Assets carried at fair value with changes chavged to other comprebensive income. In the
case of investments classified as AFS financial assets, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in
determining whether the assets are impatred. If any such evidence exists for
AFS financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
fmancial asset previously recognized in other comprehensive income as part of
equity — 1s reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognized in other comprehensive income on equity
instruments arc not reversed duovugh vther comprehensive income.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as AFS
increases and the inctease can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

(c)  Assets carried at cost. The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that any of the unquoted equity securities
and derivative assets linked to and required to be settled in such unquoted
equity instruments, which are carried at cost and for which objective evidence
of impairment exists. The amount of impairment loss is the difference
between the carrying amount of the equity sccurity and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return of a
similar asset. Impairment losses on assets carried at cost cannot be reversed.

2.19 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s property and equipment, investment properties and other assets and
the Parent Company’s investment in a subsidiaty are subject to itnpairment testing.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result,
somme assets are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at
cash-generating unit level.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset or
cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs
to sell and value in use, based on an internal discounted cash flow evaluation.
Impairment loss is charged pro-tata to the other assets in the cash generating unit.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indicatons that an impairment loss
previously recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is
adjusted to the recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of the impairment loss.
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2.20 Employee Benefits

The Group provides post-employment benefits to employees through a defined
benefit plan, as well as a defined contribution plan.

(@)

®)

Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The
legal obligation for any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan
remains with the Group, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit
plan have been acquired. Plan assets may include assets specifically designated
to a long-term benefit fund, as well as qualifying insurance policies. The
Group’s post-employment defined benefit pension plan covers all regular
full-time employees. The post-employment plan is tax-qualified,
noncontributory and administered by a trustee.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position for a defined
benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligaton is calculated annually by independent actuaties using the projected
unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using a discount
rate derived from the interest rates of a zero coupon government bonds as
published by Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corporation, that are
denominated in the cutrency in which the benefits will be paid and that have

terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related post-employment
Liability.

Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) is reflected immediately in the statement of
financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Net interest is calculated by applying
the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset and is included as part of finance costs or finance income.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the petiod of a
plan amendment.

Defined Benefit Contribution Plan

A defined conttibution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed conttibutions into an independent entity (such as the Social Security
System). The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions after payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions
recognized in respect of defined contribution plans are expensed as they fall
due. Liabilities and assets may be recognized if underpayment or prepayment
has occurred and are incdluded in current liabilities or current assets as they are
normally of a short-term nature.
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(¢)  Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the
Group before the notmal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either:

(i) terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed
formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or (ii) providing termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of each reporting
petiod are discounted to present value.

(d)  Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of each reporting period.
They are included in Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities account in the
statement of financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Group
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitletnent.

2.21 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comptises the sum of deferred tax and
current tax not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if
any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting petiod, that are uncollected or
unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and
tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method, on temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
cartying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with
certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting petriod and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will be available to allow such
deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such
tax rates have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

petiod.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
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Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of
tax expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectvely.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.

2.22 FEarnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic earnings per common share is determined by dividing net income by the
weighted average number of common shares subscribed and issued during the year,
adjusted retroactively for any stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split
declared during the current period. The Group does not have dilutive common
shares.

2.23 Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Related party transactions are transfer of resources, services or obligations between
the Group and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under
common control with the Group; (b) associates; () individuals owning, directly or
indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them significant
influence over the Group and close members of the family of any such individual;
and, (d) the Group’s retirement plan.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the reladonship and not metely on the legal form.

2.24 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional informaton about the Group’s
financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in
the financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any,
are disclosed when material to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group’s financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS require
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

3.01 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made
the following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a)  Distinguishing Operating and Finance L eases

The Group has entered in various lease arrangements as a lessee. Critical
judgment was exercised by management to distinguish each lease arrangement
as either an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the
agreements. Failure to make the right judgment will result in either
overstatement or undetstatement of assets and liabilities.

The Group has determined that it has transferred all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the properties which are leased out on finance lease
arrangements. The subsidiary’s operations involve operating leases. The
Group has determined that it retains all the significant risks and rewatds of
ownership over the properties which are leased out on operating lease
arrangements.

(b)  Evaluating Impairment of AFS Financial Assets

The Group follows the guidance of PAS 39 in determining when an
investment is permanently impaired. This determination requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost; and the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and sector petformance, changes in
technology and operational and financing cash flows. No impairment loss is
recognized in 2013 and 2012 for AFS financial assets.

(¢)  Distinction Between Investment Properties and Owner-managed Properties

The Group determines whether a propetty qualifies as investment propetty.
In making its judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates
cash flows largely independent of the other assets held by an entity.
Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only
to the property but also to other assets used in the supply process.
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Some properties comprise a portion that is held to eatn rental or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production and
supply of goods and services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under finance lease), the Group
accounts for the portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately,
the property is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in making its
judgment.

Classtfication of Acquired Properties and Fair Value Determination of Non-current Assets
Held-for-Sale and Investment Properties

The Group classifies its acquired properties as Non-current Assets
Held-for-Sale if expected that the properties will be recovered through sale
rather than use, and as Investment Propetties if intended to be held for capital
appreciation or for rental to others. At initial recogniton, the Group
determines the fair value of the acquired properties through internally or
externally generated apptraisal. The appraised value is determined based on the
cutrent economic and matket conditions as well as the physical condition of
the properties.

Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on tecognition and disclosures of provisions and
contingencies are discussed in Note 2.11 and relevant disclosures ate ptesented

in Note 24.

3.02 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of each repotting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the catrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

()

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment and Investment Properties

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and
investment properties based on the period over which the assets are expected
to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of propetty and equipment
and investment properties are reviewed petiodically and are updated if
expectations differ from previous esdmates due to physical wear and teat,
technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of
the assets. The cartying amounts of property and equipment, and investment
properties ate presented in Notes 10 and 11, respectively. Based on
management’s asscssment as of December 31, 2013, there is no change in
estimated useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties
during the year. Actual results, however, may vaty due to changes in estimates
brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.
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Determining Allowance for Inpairment of Loans and Other Receivables

Allowance 1s made for specific and groups of accounts, where objective
evidence of impairment exists. The Group evaluates these accounts based on
available facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, the length of
the Group’s relattonship with the customers, the customers’ current credit
status based on third party credit reports and known matrket forces, average age
of accounts, collection expetience and historical loss experience. The Group
also considers the loan loss provisioning requirements of the BSP and The
Financing Company Act.

The carrying value of loans and other receivables and the analysis of allowance
for impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 9.

Estimating Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s policy on estimaring the impairment of non-financial assets is
discussed in detail in Note 2.19. Though management believes that the
assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the financial
statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these
assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any
resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the results of
opetations.

Impairment losses recognized on investment properties and other assets are
presented in Notes 11 and 12, respectively.

Determining Fair Value Measurement for Financial Instruments

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
financial instruments where active market quotes are not available. This
requites management to develop estimates and assumptions based on market
inputs, using observable data that market participants would use in pricing the
instrument. Where such data is not observable, management uses its best
estimate. Estimated fair values of financial instruments may vary from the
actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the
reporting date.

The carrying values of the Company’s financial instruments are disclosed in
Notes 6.

Determining Realizable Amount of Deferred Taxe Assets

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting petiod
and reduces the cartying atnount (o the cxtent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all ot patt of the deferred tax
asset to be utilized. Management assessed that some of the deferred tax assets
recognized as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 may not be actually recoverable.
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Accordingly, in 2013 and 2012, the Group partially derecognized its deferred
tax asset arising from the setting up of general loan loss provision on loans and
recetvables. The carrying value of the remaining deferred tax assets as of the
end of 2013 and 2012 is disclosed in Note 21.

() Determining Post-employment Defined Benefity

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of pension and other
retirement benefits is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used
by actuaries in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include, among
others, discount rates, expected return on plan assets and salary increase rate.
In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the assumptions are
accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect
the expense and obligation to be recognized in such future periods.

The amounts of retitement benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of
the movements in the estimated present value of retitement benefit obligation
are presented in Note 19.02.

SEGMENT REPORTING
4.01 Business Segments

The Group is organized into different business units based on its products and
services for purposes of management assessment of each unit. For management
purposes, the Group is organized into three major business segments, namely:
leasing, financing and others. These are also the basis of the Group in reporting to
its chief operating decision-maker for its strategic decision-making activities.

The products under the leasing segment are the following:
¢ Operating leases; and
e Finance leases.

The products under the financing segment are the following:
e Amortized commercial loans;
¢ Amortized retail loans;
¢ Installment paper purchases;
¢ Floor stock financing; and
¢ Factoring of receivables.

The Group’s products and services are marketed in the Metto Manila head office
and in its nine branches.
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4.02 Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets are allocated based on their use or direct association with a specific

segment and they include all operating assets used by a segment and consist
principally of operating cash, and loans and receivables, net of allowances and
provisions. Similar to segment assets, segment liabilities are also allocated based on
their use or direct association with a specific segment. Segment liabilities include all
operating liabilities and consist principally of accounts, wages, taxes cutrently payable
and accrued liabilities. Segment assets and liabilities do not include deferred taxes.

4.03 Intersegment Transactions

Intersegment transactions in 2013 and 2012 pertain to service fees charged by
BDORI to the Parent Company.

4.04 Analysis of Segment Information

Segment information can be analyzed as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Statement of Income
Segment revenues

External
Inter-segment

Segment expenses
External
Inter-segment

Segment results

Tax expense

Net profit

December 31, 2013

Statement of Financial Position

Scgment asscts
Unallocated asscts

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated labilitics

Total habilitics

Other segment information:
Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment losses

Leasing Financing Others Eliminations Group
P 1,0323 P 629.6 TP 2410 P r 1,902.9
- - 53 ( 5.3) -
10323 629.6 246.3 ( 5.3) 1.902.9
725.2 442.3 169.6 1,337.1
- - 53 ( 5.3) -
725.2 442.3 1749 5.3) 13371
jud 3071 P _1873 P 714 P 565.8
( 145.5)
P____ 4203
P 136785 P 8,5458 P - )il P 22224.3
31131
P 253374
il 119919 P 82836 P - r P 20,275.5
290.9
E__20,5664
P 1,0874 P - P 35 P P 1,090.9
290.9 - 6.9 297.9
- 126.0 126.0
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Leasing Financing Others Eliminations Group
For the year ended December 31, 2012
Statement of EIncome
Segment revenues
External P 7189 P 767.1 P 2755 P - P 1,761.5
Inter-segment - - 84 ( 8.4) -
718.9 767.1 2839 ( 8.4) 1.761.5
Segment expenscs
Tixternal 508.8 543.0 182.8 - 1,234.6
Inter-segment - - 84 ( 84) -
508.8 543.0 1912 ( 8.4) 1.234.6
Segment results P 2101 P 2241 D _927 D - 526.9
“T'ax expense { 116.2)
Net profit > 410.7
December 31, 2012
Statement of Financial Position
Segineul dsscls ju Jqu24 L L4 P - P - Y 17,4229
Unallocated assets 32514
Total assets | id 20,6743
Scgment liabilities P 87930 P 70465 P - r - r 15,839.5
Unallocated liabilites 246.0
Total kabiliues P 160855
Other segment mformation:
Capital expenditures r 3275 P - P 65 TP - r 334.0
Depreciation and amortization 175.2 - 199 - 1951
Tmpairment losses - - 1125 - 112.5

Segment expenses are allocated on the basis of gross income.

Net segment assets are comprised of the following:

2013
Leasing Financing
Receivables P 98234 P 8,864.4
Residual value of leased assets 3,782.6 -
Uneatned income ( 1,137.2) { 97.7)
Client’s equity - ({ 34.1)
12,468.8 8,732.6
Equipment under lease 1,416.7 -
13,885.5 8,732.6
Allowance for impairment ( 207.0) ( 186.8)
P 13,6785 P 8,545.8




-35.
2012
Leasing Financing

Receivables P 7279.0 P 8.086.4
Residual value of leased assets 3,128.8 . -
Unearned income ( 919.5) ( 168.1)
Client’s equity - ( 35.3)

9,488.3 7,883.0
Equipment under lease 360.2 -

9,848.5 7,883.0
Allowance for impairment ( 146.1) ( 162.3)

P 97024 P 7.720.7

Bills payable to RNO Linibank amounting to I°6,119.8 and I"6,731.7 as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, is allocated between the leasing and
financing scgments based on the carrying amounts of receivables of these segments.
Depnsits on lease amounting to P3,817.1 and P3,171.2 as of December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively, are included in the leasing segment.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Management of the Group’s credit risks, market tisks, liquidity risks and operational
risks is an essential part of the Group’s organizational structure and philosophy. The
risk management process is essentially a top-down process that emanates frotm the
BOD. The BOD approves the overall institutional tolerance risk, including risk
policies and risk philosophy of the Group.

The Group is exposed to a vatiety of financial tisk which results from both its
operating and investing activities. The Group’s tisk management is coordinated in
close cooperation with the BOD, and focuses on actively securing the Group’s
short-to-medium term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.

‘The Group does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes
nor does it write options. The most significant financial tisks to which the Group 1s
exposed to are described in the succeeding pages.

5.01 Foreign Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are cattied out in Philippine pesos, its functional
currency. Exposures to currency exchange rates on financial assets arise from a
portion of the Group’s lcasing and financing portfolio, cash and cash equivalents and
lease deposits which are denominated in United States (U.S.) dollars.
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The Group’s foreign-currency denominated financial assets and liabilities translated
into Philippine pesos at the closing rate at December 31, 2013 and 2012 and
Philippine peso-denominated financial assets and liabilities as of

December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013
UsS Philippine
Dollar Peso Total
Cash and cash cquivalents P 191 P 1189 P 138.0
Loans and other receivables 1,083.5 19,891.5 20,975.0
Bills payable ( 1,011.5) ( 15,437.0) ( 16,448.5)
Lease deposits ( 30.4) ( 3,786.7) ( 3817.1)
P 607 P 786.7 P 847.4
2012
uUs Philippine
Dollar Peso Total
Cash and cash equivalents P 143 P 551 P 69.4
Loans and other receivables - 17,245.0 17,245.0
Icase deposits ( 11.5) ( 3.159.7) ( 3.171.2)
D 28 D 14,1404 P 14,143.2

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the currency exchange rates used to translate
U.S. dollar denominared financial assets and liabilities to the Philippine pesos is
approximately P44.40 and P41.05, respectively.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the net result for the year and equity
with regard to the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities and the U.S. dollar
— Philippine peso exchange rate. It assumes a +/-24.00% change and +/-14.00%
change of the Philippine peso/U.S. dollar exchange rate at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively. These percentages have been determined based on the average
market volatility in exchange rates in the previous 12 months. The sensitivity analysis
is based on the Group’s foreign currency financial instruments held at the end of
each reporting period.

2013 2012
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
exchange exchange exchange exchange
rate rate rate rate
Profit before tax (P 14.6) P 14.6 (P 04) P 0.4
Equity ( 14.6) 14.6 ( 0.4) 0.4

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary duting the year depending on the volume
of foreign curtency denominated trapsactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is
considered to be representative of the Group’s cutrency risk.
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5.02 Interest Rate Risk

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest
rates through its bills payable and a portion of BDO Leasing’s loans and other
receivables, which are subject to petiodic interest rate repticing. All other financial
assets and liabilities have fixed rates.

The Group follows a prudent policy on managing its assets and liabilities so as to
ensure that exposure to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within acceptable limits.
The cutrent composition of the Group’s assets and liabilities results in significant
negative gap positions for repricing petiods under one year. Consequently, the
Group 1s vulnerable to increases in market interest rates. However, in consideration
of the substantial net interest margins between the Group’s marginal funding cost
and its interest-earning assets, and favorable lease and financing terms which allow
the Group to reprice annually, and to reptice at anytitne in response to extraordinary
fluctuations in interest rates, the Group believes rthat the adverse impact of any
interest rate increase would be limited.

In addition, during periods of declining interest rates, the existence of a negative gap
position favorably impacts the Group.

The table in the succeeding page illustrates the sensitivity of the net result for the
yeat and equity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates for bills payable of
+/-0.39% at December 31, 2013 and +/-0.25% at December 31, 2012 and loans and
other receivables of +/-1.30% at December 31, 2013 and +/-1.10% at

December 31, 2012. These changes are considered to be teasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions for the past 12 months. The
calculations are based on the Group’s and Parent Company’s financial instruments
held at the end of each reporting period. All other variables are held constant.

2013
Loans and other receivables +1.30% -1.30%
Bills payable +0.39% -0.39%
Group
Increase (decrease) in:
Profit before tax P 164 (P 16.4)
Equity 115 ( 11.5)
Patent Company
Increase (decrease) in:
Profit before tax P 14.0 (P 14.0)
Equity 9.8 ( 9.8)
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Loans and other receivables +1.10% -1.10%
Bills payable +0.25% -0.25%

Group

Increase (decrease) in:
Profit before tax P 13.7 (P 13.7)
Equity 9.6 ( 9.6)

Parent Company

Increase (decrease) in:
Profit before tax P 128 (P 12.8)
Equity 2.0 ( 9.0)

5.03 Credit Risk

Credit sk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group manages
credir risk by setting limits for individual borrowers, and groups of borrowers and
industry segments. The Group maintains a general policy of avoiding excessive
exposure in any particular sector of the Philippine economy.

The Group actively seeks to increase its exposure in industry sectors which it
believes possess attractive growth opportumities. Conversely, it actively seeks to
reduce its exposure in industry sectors where growth potential is minimal.

Although the Group’s leasing and financing portfolio is composed of transactions
with a wide variety of businesses, the results of operation and financial condition of
the Group may be adversely affected by any downturn in these sectots as well as in
the Philippine economy in general.

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities, ot activities in the same geographic region, or have similar
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in economic, politcal or other conditions.
Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to
developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location.
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The concentraton of credit risk for the Group and the Parent Company follows:

Group

2013 2012
Cash and Loans and Cash and Loans and
Cash Other Cash Other
Equivalents Receivables LLquivalents Receivables

Concentration by sector:

Financial intermediarics P 1380 P 8347 TP 694 D 1,537.9
Manufacturing - 3,676.9 - 2,685.1
T'ransportation,

communication and cnergy - 4,307.6 - 2,717.0
Wholesale and retail trade

and personal acttvities - 2,336.6 - 2,142.4
Real estate, renting and

business activities - 5,657.7 - 4,328.1
Agriculture, fishing

and forestry - 94.4 - 263.1
Other communiry, social

and personal activities - 4,067.1 - 35714

P 1380 P 209750 P 694 D 17.245.0

Parent Company

2013 2012
Cash and Loans and Cash and Loans and
Cash Other Cash Other
Equivalents Receivables _Fguivalents Receivables

Concentration by sector:

Financial intermediarics P 1291 P 8347 P 635 P 1,537.9
Manufacturing - 3,676.9 - 2,685.1
Transportation,

communication and energy - 4,307.6 - 2,717.0
Wholesale and retail trade

and personal activities - 2,336.6 - 2,142.4
Real estate, renting and

business activities - 5,657.7 - 4,328.1
Agriculture, fishing

and forestry - 94.4 - 263.1
Other community, social

and personal activities - 4,063.3 - 3.568.7

P 12914 P 209712 P 635 P 17,242.3

Loan classification and credit risk rating ate an integral part of the Group’s
management of credit risk. On an annual basis, loans ate reviewed, classified and
rated based on internal and external factors that affect its performance. On a
quarterly basis, loan classifications of impaired accounts are assessed and the results
are used as basis for the review of loan loss provisions.
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The Group’s definition of its loan classification and corresponding credit risk ratings
are described below:

e Current/Unclassified : Grades AAAto B
¢ Watchlisted : Grade B
¢ Loans Especially Mentioned : Grade C
e Substandard : Grade D
e Doubtful : Grade E
e Loss : Grade F

Once an account is Watchlisted or Adversely Classified, the resulting risk rating
grade is aligned based on the above classification.

(%)

(%)

Unclassified

These are individual credits that do not have a greater-than-normal risk and do
not possess the charactetistics of adversely classified loans as to be defined below.
These ate credits that have the apparent ability to satisfy their obligations m tull
and therefore, no loss in ultimate collection is anticipated. These are adequately
secured by readily marketable collateral or other forms of support security or are
supported by sufficient credit and financial information of favorable nature to
assure repayment as agreed.

Watchlisted

Since early identification of troublesome or potental accounts is vital in portfolio
management, a “Watchlisted” classification of credit accounts is maintained.
These accounts are not adversely classified but they require more than notmal
attention to prevent these accounts from deteriorating to said category.

Past due or individually impaired financial assets comprise accounts under the
following risk ratings:

(i) Adversely Classified

a.  Loans Especially Mentioned (I.LEM)

Accounts classified as LEM are individual ctedits that have potential
weaknesses particularly on documentation ot credit administration that
deserve management’s close attention. These potential weaknesses, if left
uncorrected, may affect the repayment prospects of the loan and thus
heighten the credit risk to the Group.

A credit may also be classified as “LEM? if there is evidence of weakness in
the borrower’s financial condition or credit worthiness, or the credit is subject
to an unrealistic repayment program or inadequate source of funds.
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b Substandard

Accounts classified as “Substandard” are individual credits or portions
thereof, which appear to involve a substantial and unreasonable degree of risk
to the Group because of unfavorable record or unsatisfactory charactenstics.
There exists in such accounts the possibility of future loss to the Group unless
given closer supervision. Those classified as “Substandard” must have a
well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize their liquidation. Such
well-defined weaknesses may include adverse trends or development of
financial, manageiial, economic vr polineal nature, or a significant weakness in
collateral.

¢. Doubtful

Accounts classified as “Doubtful” are individual credits or portions theteof
which have the weaknesses inherent in those classified as “Substandard”, with
the added characteristics that existing facts, conditions and values make
collection or liquidation in full highly improbable and in which substantial loss
is probable. Positive and vigorous action is required to avert or minimize
losses.

d Losr

Accounts classified as “Loss” are individual credits or portions thereof which
are considered uncollectible or worthless and of such little value that their
continuance as bankable assets is not warranted although the loans may have
some recovery or salvage value. The amount of loss 1s difficult to measure
and it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off these basically worthless
assets even though partial recovery may be obtained in the future.

In addition to the above, credit portfolio review is another integral part of the
Group’s management of credit risk. This exercise involves the conduct of periodic
post approval review of individual credits whose main objective is to help monitor
and maintain sound and healthy risk asset portfolio. Parameters of the credit
portfolio review are structured so as to reflect both sides of the tisk management
equation such as credit quality and process. This function actuates the philosophy
that credit quality is derived from sound risk management process. The credit
quality of financial assets is managed by the Group using internal credit ratings.
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The following table shows the exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2013 and
2012 for each internal risk grade and the related allowance for impairment:

Group Parent
2013 2012 2013 2012
Carrying Amount P_ 209750 D 72450 P 209712 D 7,242.3
Individually impaired:
Grade C: LEM 51.9 11.3 51.9 11.3
Girade T): Substandard 2428 145.8 242.5 145.8
Grade E: Doubttul 166.0 97.6 166.0 97.6
Grade I¥: Loss 159.6 56.3 159.6 56.3
Gross amount 620.0 311.0 620.0 311.0
Allowance for impairment ( 171.8) ( 126.9) ( 171.8) ( 126.9)
Carrying amount 448.2 184.1 448.2 184.1
Past due but not impaired:
Aging of past due
30-60 days 3.7 - 3.7 -
61-90 days - - - -
91-180 days - - - -
More than 180 days - - - -
Carrying amount 3.7 - 3.7 -
Neither past due nor impaired
Grade B: Watchlisted 130.7 - 130.7 -
Uunclassified 20,392.4 17,060.9 20,388.6 17,058.2
Carrying amount 20,523.1 17.060.9 20,519.3 17.058.2
Total carrying amount P_ 20,975.0 20,971.2

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Tlhe carrying value of loans and receivables whose tettns have been renegotiated
amounted to P31.1 as of December 31, 2012. There was no similar transaction 1n
2013.

The Group holds collateral against loans and other receivables in the form of
mortgage interests over real and personal properdes. Estimates of fair value are
based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of botrowing, and are
periodically updated especially when a loan is individually assessed as impaired.
Collateral is held against available-for-sale securities amounting to P1,970.0 at
Deceinber 31, 2013 aud 2012 (see Note 13).

An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held
against loans and other receivables that are not impaired as of December 31, 2013
and 2012 is shown below.

2013 2012
Against neither past duc but
not impaired
Real property P 38173 P 2,972.0
Personal propetty 18.816.8 12.943.0
P 22,6341 P 15,915.0




-43 -

An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held
against loans and other receivables that are impaired as of December 31, 2013 and
2012 1s shown below.

2013 2012
Real property P 160.8 P 201.2
Personal property 670.7 1,578.3
P 8315 P 17795

The fair value of these collaterals somehow mitigates the credit risk to which the
Group is exposed to.

The Group’s manner of disposing the collateral for impaired loans and receivables is
normally through sale of these assets after foreclosure proceedings have taken place.
Aside from the foregoing, there are nn ather credit enhancements on the Group’s
financial assets held as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,

5.04 Liquidity Risk

The primary business of financing companies entails the borrowing and relending of
funds. Consequently, financing companies are subject to substantial leverage, and
are therefore exposed to the potential financial risks that accompany borrowing.

The Group expects that 1ts continued asser expansion will resnlt in higher funding
requirements in the future. Like most financing companies in the Philippines,

the Group does not have a license to engage in quasi-banking function, and as such,
it is precluded from engaging in deposit-taking activities. In addition, it is precluded
under the General Banking Act from incurring borrowings from more than

19 lenders at any one time, which to some extent, restricts its access to the public
debt markets.

The Group believes that it currently has adequate debt funding from banks, other
financial institutions, and through the issuance of Short-Term Commercial Papers
(STCPs). The Group cutrenty has a license from the SEC to issue P15.0 billion
STCPs. The SEC granted the license related to the P15.0 billion STCP on
December 12, 2013.

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt
servicing payments for short-term and long-term financial liabiliries ar well as cash
outflows due in its day-to-day business.
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Presented below are the financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2013 and
2012 analyzed according to when these are expected to be recovered or settled.

593

013

Group

Finanrial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Available-for-sale financial asscts
Loans and other recervables

Financial liabilities
Bills payable
Accounts payable and
other Labilites
Tcasc deposits

Parent Company

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Available-for-sale financial asscts
Loans and other receivables

Financial liabilities
Bills payable
Accounts payable and
other liabilities
Leasc deposits

2012

Group

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Available-for-sale financial assets
Loans and other receivables

Financial habilitics
Bills payable
Accounts payablc and
olher habilities
Lease deposite

One to Three One to More
Three Months to Three than Three

_ Months = _One Year Years Years Total
P 1380 P - P - P - P 138.0
2,093.5 - - - 2,093.5
2.754.8 5,517.5 9,161.4 3.541.3 20,975.0
P 49863 P 55175 P___91614 P 35413 P 232063
P 141955 P 22530 P - P P 164485
196.4 2.6 - - 199.0
568.6 525.1 1,977.2 746.2 3817.1
P 149605 P 27807 P_ 19772 P 7462 P__20.464.6
Iy 1291 1 - n - P - P 129.1
2,093.5 - - - 2,093.5
2.751.0 5.517.5 9.161.4 3,541.3 20971.2
P__49736 P__ 55175 P 91614 P 35413 P 23,1938
P 139709 P 1,546.5 P - P - P 155174
139.6 - - - 139.5
557.3 504.4 1.970.7 742.2 3.774.6
P 14,6678 P 20509 P 19707 P 7422 P 19,4315
P 694 T - Iy - r - r 69.4
2,022.0 - - - 2,022.0
2.158.6 3,558.1 7.190.8 4,337.5 17.245.0
P 42500 P 35581 P 71908 P 43375 P 193304
P 108197 P 1,547.5 P 3293 P 05 P 12,6970
101.4 7.0 3.0 - 112.6
3708 558.0 101340 (29,4 31712
P 11,2919 P 21131 P 19459 P 6299 P 15980.8
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One to Three One to More
Three Months to Three than Three
Months One Year Years Years Total
2012
Parent Company
Financial asscts
Cash and cash cquivalents P 635 P - P - P - P 63.5
Available-for-sale financial assets 2,022.0 - - - 2,022.0
Loans and other recervables 2,155.9 3,558.1 7,190.8 4.337.5 17,242.3

P 42414 D 35581 P__ 7908 P _ 43375 P 193278

Finaneial liahilities

Bills payable P 10,6541 P 15475 P 3293 P 0.5 P 125314
Accounts payable and

other habilities 88.4 7.6 3.5 - 99.6
Leasc deposits 3555 543.7 1,599.0 629.4 3.127.6

P_ 110980 20988 P 19318 P 6299 P __15758.6

The Group and the Parent Company’s maturing financial liabilities within the one to
three month period pertain to bills payable due to vatious ptivate entities and
individuals. Matuting bills payable arc usually sctded through repayments. When
maturing financial asscts are not sufficient to cover the related maturing financial
Labilities, bills payable and other currently maturing financial liabilities are rolled
over/refinanced or are settled by entering into new borrowing arrangements with
other counterparties.

5.05 Price Risk

The Group 1s exposed to the changes in the market values of AFS financtal assets
held as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. The Group manages its risk by identifying,
analyzing and measuring relevant or likely market price risks. To manage its price
risk arising from its AFS financial assets, the Group does not concentrate its
investment in any single counterparty.

If the prices of AFS financial assets changed by +/-2.86% in 2013, then other
comprehensive income would have increased/decreased by P60.0. If the prices of
AFS financial assets changed by +/-2.12% in 2012, then other comprehensive
income would have increased/decreased by P42.9. The analysis is based on the
assumption on the change of the correlated equity indices, with all other variables
held constant.
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CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
6.01 Carrying Amounts and Fair Values by Category
The following table summarizes by category the carrying amounts and fair value of

financial assets and liabilities. Where fair value is presented, such fair value is
determined based on valuation techniques described below.

2013
Group Parent
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial Assets
Loans and reccivables:
Cash and cash equivalents P 1330 P 138.0 P 1241 P 129.1
Loans and other receivables 20,975.0 21,998.2 20,971.2 21.994.3
21,113.0 22,136.2 21,100.3 22,123 .4
AF'S financial assets 2,093.5 2,093.5 2,093.5 2,093.5

P 232065 P 24,2297 P 23,1938 B 242169

Financial Liabilitics
At amortized cost:

Bills payable P 16,4485 P 16,3359 P 15,5174 P 15,427.8
Accounts payable and .
other liabilities 199.0 199.0 139.6 139.6
Lease deposits 3,817.1 38171 3.774.6 3.774.6
2012
Group Parent
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents P 694 P 694 P 635 P 63.5
Loans and other receivables 17,245.0 18,303.9 17,242.3 18.301.2
17,3144 18,373.3 17,305.8 18,364.7
AFS financial assets 2,022.0 2,022.0 2,022.0 2,022.0

)i 193364 P 20,3953 P 19.327.8 P 20.386.7

Financial Liabilities
At amortized cost:

Bills payablc T 126970 P 12,6209 P 125314 P 12.474.6
Accounts payable and

othier Habilities 112.6 112.6 99.6 99.6
Lease deposits 3,171.2 3.171.2 3,127.6 3,127.6

D_.159808 P 159047 P 157586 P 157018
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The methods and assumptions used by the Group in estimating the fair value of the
financial instruments are as follow:

() Cash and cash equivalents

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents approximate carrying amounts given
their short-term maturities.

(i) AFS financial assets

The fair value of available-for-sale securities is determined by direct reference to
published price quoted in an active market for traded securities.

{re) Loans and other receivabler

The estitnated fair value of loans and other receivables represents the discounted
amount of estimated future cash flow expected to be received. Expected cash
flows are discounted at curtent market rates to determine fair value.

(iv) Bills payable

The estimated fair value of bills payablc represents the discounted amount of
estimated future cash flows expected to be paid. Expected cash flows are
discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

(v) Accounts payable and other labilities

Fair values approximate carrying amounts given the short-term maturities of the
liabilities.

(vi) Lease deposits
Lease deposits are cartied at amottized cost which reptesents the present value.
6.02 Fair Value Hierarchy

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value are categotized in accordance
with the fair value hierarchy. This hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into
three levels based on the significance of inputs used in measuting the fair value of the
financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

(a) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities;

(b)) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable Lot the asset vt liability, either directy (.e., as prices) or indirecrly
(ie., derived from prices); and,

() Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).



Parent Company

December 31, 2013

Financial assets:
Cash and cash cquivalents
AFS financial assets
Fquity sccuritics - quoted
l.oans and other receivables

Financial liabilities:
Bills payable
Actounts payable and odier
liabilitics
Leasc deposits

Dccember 31, 2012

Fimancial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
AFS financial assets
F.quity sccuritics - quoted
Loans and other receivables

Financial liabilities:
Bills payable
Accounts payable and other
liabilities
Lease deposits
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Notes

13

14
15

14
15

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

P 1291 P - P - P 129.1
2,093.5 - - 2,093.5

- - 21,994.3 21,994.3

P 2226 P _ - P 219943 P 24,2169
P - P - P 15,427.8 I 15,427.8
- - 196.5 196.5

- - 3,774.6 3,774.6
P_- __ P - _ P 193989 P 19,3989
P 635 I - r - P 63.5
2,022.0 - - 2,022.0

- - 18.301.2 18,301.2
P_208.5 P _- . P2 18301.2 P 203867
P - P - P 12474.6 P 12,474.6
- - 99.6 99.6

- - 3.127.6 3.127.6

Jid - L - P 157018 P 15701.8

There have been no significant transfers among Levels 1 and 2 in the reporting

pedods.

Summarized below and in the succeeding pages arc the information on how the
fair values of the Group’s financial assets and financial habilities are determined.

(a) Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regulatly occurting market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group holds preferred
shares which are listed in the PSE and are classified as AFS financial assets and
are the only financial assets which are carried at Level 1. The quoted market
prices used by the Group are the closing share prices of the said preferred
shares in the PSE as of the cutoff dates.
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The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based
on the lowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are grouped
into the fair value hierarchy as presented in the following table. For purposes of
determining the market value at Level 1, a market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regulatly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Group
Notes Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2013
Financial assets:
Cash and cash cquivalents 7 P 1380 P - P - P 138.0
AFS financial assets
Equity sccurities - quoted 8 2,093.5 - - 2,093.5
T.oans and other receivables 9 - - 21,998.2 21,998.2
P 22315 P - P 219982 P 24,2297
Financial liabilities:
Rilly prayalle 13 P - ) L P 16,335.9 P 16,335.9
Accounts payable and other
liabilities 14 - - 256.9 256.9
Lcase deposits 15 - - 3,817.1 3,817.1
P__ - P__- P_20.4099 P _20.409.9
Dccember 31, 2012
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 7 P 694 P - P - P 69.4
AFS financial assets
E.quity securitics - quoted 8 2,022.0 - - 2,022.0
Loans and other receivables 9 - - 18303.9 18.303.9
P_20914 P__ - D 183039 P 20395.3
Financial liabilities:
Bills payable 13 P - P - P 126209 P 12,6209
Accounts payable and other
liabilities 14 : - 112.6 112.6
Lease deposits 15 - - 3.171.2 3171.2

P__- P P 159047 P 159047
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(b) Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques or by reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same or is calculated
based on the expected cash flows of the underlying net asset base of the
investment. When the Group uses valuation technique, it maximizes the usc of
observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine the fair value of
an fustrutnend are observable, the mstrument is included in Level 2. Otherwise,
it is included in Level 3.

Currently, the Group has no financial instruments carried under Level 2.

(¢) Financial instruments in Level 3
The Group classifies financial instruments that have no quoted prices or
observable market data where reference of fair value can be derived, hence, fair
value 1s determined based on their cost which management estimates to

approximate their fair values.

Details of the Gronp and Parent Company’s investment properties and the information
about the fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2013 are shown below.

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
Land P - P - P 2572 P 257.2
Building and improvements - - 57.1 57.1
r_ .- r. - L. 3143 P _.3143

The fait value of the investment properties of the Group and the Parent Company as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, determined under Level 3 measurement, was derived
on the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by either an
mndependent or internal appraiser having appropriate qualifications and recent
experierice in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The fair value of
investment properties was detived using the market approach that reflects the recent
transaction prices for similar properties in nearby locations, adjusted for differences in
property size, age, condition, and location. 1n estimating the fair value of the
propertes, the highest and best use of the propesties is theit cutrent use.

There hias been no change to tie valuatdon technique during the year and there were
no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of December 31:

Group Parent Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Cash on hand and in banks P 119.6 P 532 P 110.8 P 473
Cash cquivalents 18.4 16.2 18.4 16.2
P 1380 P 694 P 1291 P 63.5

Cash in banks earn interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Cash
cquivalents represent a special savings account and time deposit with annual interest
rates ranging from 0.3% to 1.5% in 2013 and 1.0% to 4.0% in 2012.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

The composition of available-for-sale financial assets for the Group and the Parent
Company as of December 31 pertains to the following:

2013 2012
San Miguel Corporation
preferred shares P 1,270.0 P 1,270.0.
Fitst Gen Com. Sertes “F”
preferred shares 700.0 700.0
Club shares and
other equity investments 0.8 0.8
1,970.8 1,970.8
Accumulated unrealized fair
value gains 122.7 51.2
P 20935 P 2.022.0

In August 2011, the Group acquired 7,000,000 perpetual Seties “F” preferred shares
issued by First Gen Corp. (First Gen shares) at P100 per share. The First Gen shares
carry an interest rate of 8% per annum and are curmulative, non-voting,
non-participating and non-convertible. On the seventh anniversary of the issue date
of any dividend payment thereafter, First Gen shall have the option, but not the
obligation to redeem all of the First Gen preferred shares outstanding. The First
Gen shares were listed at the PSF. on November 15, 2011. As of December 31, 2013
and 2012, the closing price of the First Gen sharee is at P113 and P108 per share,
respectively.

Accordingly, the Group recognized unrealized fair value gains on its investment in
First Gen pretetred shates ot P31.0 in 2013 and P52.2 in 2012, net of P4.0 and P3.8
deferred stock transaction tax, respectively, based on 1/2 of 1% of the total market
value of P791.0 and P756.0 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Also in August 2011, the Group purchased 8,466,600 each of Series “2B” and “2C”
Preferred Shares of SMC listed at the PSE at P75 per share or a total of P1,270.0 and
bear annual interest at 8%. The shares closed at the price of P76.30 for Series “2B”
and P77.5 for Series “2C” as of December 31, 2013 and P75.0 for Series “2B” and
P74.5 for Series“2C” per share as of December 31, 2012. Thus, the Group
recognized unrealized fair value gain of P29.9 and unrealized fair value loss of P20.9
in 2013 and 2012, respectively, net of deferred stock transaction tax at 1/2 of 1% of
the total market value 0f P1,302.2 and P1,265.8 or P6.5 and P6.3, as of

December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, as the unrealized fair value gain amounted
o P32.2 aud P4.1, 15 included under Unrealized Fair Value Gain on
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets account in the statements of financial position,
respectively while the deferred stock transaction tax was recognized in the statements
of comprehensive income and as part of Deferred Tax T.iabilities account as of

December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 21).
Club shares and other equity investments, consisting of Philippine Long Distance

Telephone Co. (PLDT) prefetred and golf and country club shares of stock, have fair
values of P0.4 and P0.3 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respecrively.

LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account consists of the following:

Group Parent Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Recceivable from customers:
[Financc lease receivables P 9,8234 T 7,279.0 P 9,823.4 P 7,279.0
Residual value of leased
assets 3,782.6 3,128.8 3,782.6 3,128.8
Unearned leascd income ( 1,137.2) ( 919.5) ( 1,137.2) ( 919.5)
12,468.8 9.488.3 12,468.8 9,488.3
Loans and receivablcs
financed 8,864.4 8,086.4 8,864.4 8,086.4
Unearned finance income ( 97.7) ( 168.2) ( 97.6) ( 168.1)
Client’s equity ( 34.1)( 35.3) ( 34.1) ( 35.3)
8,732.6 7.882.9 8,732.6 7,883.0
Other receivables:
Accrued interest receivable 88.2 102.9 88.2 102.9
Dividends receivable 51.4 514 51.4 51.4
Sales contract receivable 18.2 16.5 18.2 16.5
Accounts recetvable 8.6 12.3 8.7 11.7
Accrued rental receivable 4.0 22 - -
1701 185.3 166.5 182.5
Total 21,371.8 17,556.5 21,368.0 17,553.8
Allowance for impairment ( 396.8) ( 311.5) ( 396.8) ( 311.5)

P_ 209750 P 17,2450 P 209712 P 17,2423
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As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, 56°% and 88%, respectively, of the total
receivables from customers of the Group are subject to periodic interest repricing.

Remaining receivables from customers earn annual fixed interest rates ranging from
4% to 30% in 2013 and 6.5% to 30% in 2012.

Interest income on receivables pertaining to the residual value of assets under
finance lease accrued using the effective interest method amounted to P2.9, P1.9 and
P3.4,1n 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and is presented as part of Interest and
Discounts in the Group and Parent Company statements of income.

The breakdown of total loans as to secured and unsecured follows:

Group Parent Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Secared
Chattel mortgage 14,321.7 P 10,4789 P 14,321.7 P 10,478.9
Real estate mortgage 770.3 871.5 770.3 8715
Others 2,258.4 3,409.8 2,258.4 3.409.8
17,350.4 14,760.2 17,350.4 14,760.2
Unsccured 3.624.6 2484.8 3,620.8 2.482.1

P 209750 P 17,2450 P__ 20,9712 P 17,2423

An analysis of the Group’s and Parent Company’s finance lease receivables as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012 is shown below:

2013 2012
Maturity of gross investment in:
Finance lease receivables
Within one year P 6123 P 697.7
Beyond one yeat but not
beyond five years 9,205.2 6,553.1
Beyond five years 5.9 28.2
_9.8234 7.279.0
Residual value of leased assets
Within one year 1,060.8 897.8
Beyond one year but not
beyond five years 2,721.8 2,222.4
Beyond five years - 8.6
3,782.6 3,128.8
(5toss finance lease receivable 13,606.0 10,407.8
Uneatned lease income ( 1,137.2) ( 919.5)

Net investment in
finance lease recetvables P 12,4688 P 9.488.3
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An analysis of the Group’s and Parent Company’s net investment in finance lease
receivables follows:

2013 2012
Due within one year P 1,624.0 P 1,536.6
Due beyond one year but not
beyond five years 10,840.0 7,921.7
Beyond five years 4.8 30.0
P 12,468.8 P 9488.3

Past duc finance lease recetvahles amannted to P203.3 and P2092.5 as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Past due loans and recetvables financed amounted to P109.3 and P128.1 as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively

In 2012, the BOD approved the write-off of certain loans and receivables financed
and finance lease receivables with total amount of P31.5. There was no similar

transaction in 2U13.

Interest and discounts in the statements of income consist of interest on:

. Group
2013 2012 2011
Finance lease treceivables P 661.6 T 4942 P 111.3
Loans and receivable financed 634.8 776.4 721.1
Cash and cash cquivalents 0.5 0.6 1.0

P 12712 P 11664

Parent Company

2013 2012 2011
Finance lease receivables P 661.6 T 4942 P 4443
Loans and receivables financed 634.7 777.0 721.8
Cash and cash equivalents 0.5 0.6 0.6

P 11,2968 P 1,271.8 P 1,166.7

Interest income recognized on impaired loans and receivables amounted to P5.4 in
2013, P11.9 in 2012 and P12.2 in 2011.
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The changes in the allowance for impairment for the Group and the Parent
Company are summarized below.

2013 2012 2011
Balancc at beginning of year P 315 P 2851 P 2343
Impairment losses during
the year 86.0 87.3 117.1
Reclassification ( 0.7) - -
Accounts written off - ( 60.9) ( 66.3)
Balance at end of year P 396.8 P 3115 P 285.1

10. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMEN'T

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation and amortization of
property and equipment at the beginning and end of 2013 and 2012 are shown

below.
Trunsportavon Furniwre, I.easehold
and Other Fixtures Improve-
Equipment and Others ments Total
Group
December 31,2013
Cost P 2,0288 P 306 P 262 P 2,085.6
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization ( 612.1)( 25.3) ( 24.0) ( 661.4)
Net carrying amount P 1,416.7 P 53 P 22 P 1,424.2
Dccember 31, 2012
Cost P 1,128.8 P 280 P 255 P 1,182.3
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization ( 496.1) ( 22.2) ( 20.3) ( 538.6)
Nect carrying amount D 6327 P 58 P 52 P 6437
January 1, 2012
Cost P 8545 P 258 P 238 P 904.1
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization ( 363.8)( 21.1) ( 16.0) ( 400.9)
Net carrying amount P 4907 P 47 P_ 78 P 503.2
Parent Company
December 31, 2013
Cost P - P 306 P 262 P 56.8
Accumulated depreciation
and amortivation ( 25.3) ( 2409 ( 49.3)

Net carrying amount P - P 53 P 22 P 7.5




- 56 -
Transportation Furniture, Leasehold
and Other Fixtures Improve-
Equipment and Others ments Total
Parent Company
December 31, 2012
Cost P - P 280 P 255 P 53.5
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization - ( 22.2) ( 20.3) ( 42.5)
Ner carrying amount )i - hid 58 I U 11.0
January 1, 2012
Cost P - P 258 P 238 P 49.6
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization - ( 21.1) ( 16.0) ( 37.1)
Net carrying amount P - P 47 P 78 P __ 12.5

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property and equipment at the beginning
and end of 2013 and 2012 1s shown below.

Transportation Furniture, Leasehold
and Other Fixtures Improve-
Equipment and Others ments Total
Group
Balance at January 1, 2013,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
amortization R 632.7 P 58 P 52 P 642.7
Additions 1,087.5 2.8 0.7 1,091.0
Disposals ( 12.6) - - ( 12.6)
Depreciation
and amortization charges
for the year ( 290.9)( 3.3) ( 3.7 ( 297.9)
Balance at
December 31, 2013,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
amortization P 14167 P 53 P 22 P 14242




Group

Balance at January 1, 2012,
nct of accumulated
depreciation and
amortization

Addidons

Dispusals

Depreciation
and amortization charges
for the year

Balancc at
Decemher 31,2012,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
amortization

Parent Company

Balance at January 1, 2013,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
amortization

Additions

Depreciation
and amortization charges
for the year

Balance at
December 31, 2013,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
amortization

Balance at January 1, 2012,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
amortization

Additions

Depreciation
and amortization charges
for the year

Balance at
December 31, 2012,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
amortization
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Transportation Furniture, Leasehold
and Other Fixtures Improve-
Equipment and Others ments Total
P 4907 T 47 P 78 P 503.2
327.4 4.9 1.7 334.0
10.2) - ( 10.2)
175.2) ( 3.8) ( 4.3)( 183.3)
P 6327 P 58 DI 52 P _ 6437
P - P 58 P 52 P 11.0
- 2.8 0.7 35
- ( 3.3) ( 37) ( 7.0)
P - P 53 P 22 P15
P - P 47 P 78 P 12.5
- 4.8 1.7 6.5
- ( 3.7) ( 4.3) ( 8.0)
P - )id 58 P 52 P 11.0

The cost of fully depreciated assets that are stll being used in operations amounted
to P99.6 and P65.7 for the Group as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively,
and P20.4 and P1.7 for the Parent Company as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,

respectively.
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Depreciation and amortization charges for 2013 and 2012 are included as part of
Occupancy and Equipment-related Expenses account in the statements of income.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the net book value of transportation and other
equipment leased out by the Group (nil for the Parent Company) under operating
lease arrangements amounted to P1,416.7 and P632.7, respectively.

In 2013 and 2012, the Group disposed of certain transportation equipment with
cartying value of P12.6 and P10.2, respectively, resulting to gain on sale of P19.8 and
P3.0, respectively (see Note 17).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties include land and building and improvements held for rentals
and capital appreciation.

The cartying amounts and accumulated depreciation at the beginning and end of
2013 and 2012 in the Group and Parent Company financial statements are shown
below.

Building and
Improve-
Land ments Total

December 31, 2013

Cost P 175.0 P 462 P 221.2

Accumulated depreciation - ( 25.8) ( 25.8)

Accumulated tmpairment ( 49.7) - ( 49.7)

Net carrying amount P 125.3 P 204 P 145.7
December 31, 2012

Cost P 3896 P 1053 P 494.9

Accumulated depreciation - ( 59.2) ( 59.2)

Accumulated impairment ( 54.9) ( 1.3) ( 56.2)

Net carrying amount Jld 3347 P 448 D 379.5
January 1, 2012

Cost P 4611 P 1094 P 570.5

Accumulated depreciation - ( 50.0) ( 50.0)

Accumulated impairment ( 40.2) ( 51.4) ( 91.6)

Net carrying amount i 4209 D 80 P 4289
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2013 and 2012
of investment propetties in the Group and Parent Company financial statements is
shown below.

Building and
Improve-
Land ments Total

Balance at January 1, 2013,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
impatrment

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Depreciation and
amortization charges
for the year

Impairment losses during the year

Balance at
December 31, 2013,
nct of accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

Balance at January 1, 2012,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
impairment
Additions
Disposals
Dcpreciation and
amortization charges
for the year
Impairment losses during the year

Balance at
December 31, 2012,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

The appraised values of the investment properties as of December 31, 2013 and

2012 follow:

Land
Building and improvements

—

3347 P
7.9
23.4)
186.9)

—~ o~

7.0) (

118 P
6.2

6.9) (
19.6) (

41)

—

379.5
14.1
30.3)

206.5)

1253 P

204 P

145.7

4209 P
1.4
72.9)(

(
14.7) (

80 P
76.4
17.3) (

11.8) (
10.5) (

428.9
77.8
90.2)

11.8)
25.2)

r

3347 P

448 P

__379.5

2013

2012

257.2 P
57.1

748.9
127.4

P

3143 P

876.3
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Fair values have been determined based on valuations made by independent and/or
in-house appraisers, which are market value for land and building and related
improvements and reproduction cost for certain building and improvements.
Valuatons were derived on the basis of recent sales of similar properties in the same
area as the nvestment properties and taking into account the economic conditions
prevailing at the ume the valuations were made. In addition, there are certain
significant assumptions that are considered in the valuation of these propertes,
based on the following: (a) extent, character and utility of the properties; (b) sales or
listing of prices for similar properties; (c) highest and best use of the property; and
(d) accumulated depreciation for depreciable properties. Inteinal appraisals were
made for all properties with book value of P5 or less, while external appraisals were
made for all properties with book value exceeding P5.

Direct operating expenses incurred on investment properties recognized in profit or
loss are insignificant.

Gain on sale of investment properties of the Patent Company included under Gain
on sale of property and equipment and investment properties as part of Other
Income amounted to P4.7, P51.5 and P40.4 in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively
(see Note 17).

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following:

Group Parent Company
2012 2012
(As Restated - (As Restated -
Note 2013 see Note 2) 2013 sec Note 2)
Prepaid expenses P 1038 P 1073 P 268 P 21.6
Non-current asscts
held-for-sale — net 2374 94.4 2374 94.4
Deferred input
value-added tax (VAT) 163.1 65.3 - -
Retirement benefit asset 19 431 0.7 43.1 0.7
Repossessed chattels
and other
equipment - nct 2.8 29.2 2.8 29.2
Investment in a subsidiary - - 400.0 400.0
Miscellaneous - net 10.8 17.8 10.7 16.2
P 5610 P 3147 P 7208 P 562.1

In 2013 and 2012, the Group reclassified certain investment properties and
repossessed chattel and other equipment to non-current assets held-for-sale,
respectively. All chattel and personal properties repossessed in 2012 were also
recognized by the Group as assets held-for-sale. Management intends to dispose of
these properties within one year from the date of reclassification. These properties
are carried at the lower of cost and fair value less cost to sell.
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The gross carrying amounts and accumulated impairment loss of non-current assets
held-for-sale are shown below.

2013 2012
Cost P 3288 P 150.9
Accumulated impairment ( 91.4) ( 56.5)
P . 2374 P 94.4

A reconciltaton of the carrying amounts of non-current assets held-for-sale at the
beginning and end of 2013 and 2012 is shown bclow.

2013 2012

Balance at January 1, net of

accumulated impairment P 944 P -
Additions 31 155.5
Reclassifications 205.7 ( 54.2)
Disposals ( 32.8) ( 6.9)
Impairment loss for the year ( 33.0) -
Balance at December 31, net of

accumulated impairment loss P 2374 D 944

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation of repossessed chattels
and other equipment are shown below.

2013 2012
Cost P 539 P 56.1
Accumulated depreciation ( 51.1) ( 26.9)
I 28 P 29.2

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of repossessed chattels and other equipment

at the beginning and end of 2013 and 2012 is shown below.

2013 2012

Balance at January 1, net of

accumulated depreciation P 29.2 P 65.9
Reclassifications to held-for-sale - ( 9.8)
Disposals ( 3.8) -
Depreciation charges for the year ( 22.6) ( 26.9)
Balance at December 31, net of

accumulated depreciation P 28 P _29.2
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No impairment loss was tecognized on repossessed chattels and other equipment in

2013, 2012 and 2011.

Deferred input VAT pertains to the VAT due or paid by the Group on purchases of
capital assets for lease in the ordinary course of business wherein the application
against the output VA'l' 1s amortized over the useful life of the asset or 60 months

whichever is shorter.

Investment in a subsidiary represents 100% ownership of the Parent Company in

BDO Rental.

BILLS PAYABLE

This account consists of borrowings from:

Group __ Parent Company

2012 2012 2013 2012
Banks | 73379 T 10,3765 P 6,414.4 P 10,211.3
Others 9,086.7 2,291.9 9,086.7 2,291.9
Acemed infterest 23.9 28.6 16.3 28.2
P 16,4485 P 12,6970 P 15,5174 I 12,531.4

Bills payable to banks represent peso borrowings from local banks (including BDO
Unibank as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 — see Note 20), with annual interest
rates ranging from 2.2% to 6.9% in 2013 and 3.5% to 6.9% in 2012. As of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, bills payable — others represent short-term notes
issued to individual and corporate investors, with annual interest rates ranging from
2.3% to 3.5% and 3.5% to 4.0%, respectively. These rates approximate prevailing
market rates. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, bills payable amounting to
P851.1 and P1,696.0, respectively, are secured by the Group’s AFS financial assets
amounting to P1,970.0 and certain loans receivables with carrying amount of

P109.9 and P362.4, respectively.

Interest and financing charges consist of interest on:

Group
2012 2011
| As Restated— [ As Restated —
Notes 2013 see Note 2.02(2)]  see Note 2.02(a)
Bills payable - banks P 2392 P 1349 P 95.7
Bills payable - others 175.2 3222 280.0
Amortization on lease deposits 15 4.2 4.5 12.0
Interest on defined benefit plan 19 - 1.6 33
P 4186 P 4632 P 391.0
_ ParentCompany
2012 2011
[ As Restated ~ | As Restated —
Notes 2013 see Note 2.02(a)]  see Note 2.02(2)
Bills payable - banks P 2226 P 1317 P 95.2
Bills payable - others 175.1 3222 280.0
Amurtzauon vu lease deposits 15 25 29 0.1
Interest on defined benefit plan 19 - 1.6 33
P 4002 P 4584 P 384.6
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14. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other liabilities consist of the following:

Group Parent Company
2013 2012 2013 2012

Accounts payable P 1514 P 258 P 941 P 19.6
Accrued taxes and

other expenses 43.1 29.2 43.1 29.2
Withholding taxes

payable 14.5 10.6 13.3 10.4

Other liabilides 49.1 47.0 46.0 40.3

P___ 2581 T 1126 P 1965 P __.. 99.6

Management considers the carrying amounts of accounts payable and other liabilities
recognized in the statements of financial position to be reasonable approximation of
their fair values due to their short duration.

15. LEASE DEPOSITS

This account represents deposits on:

Group Parent Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Finance lcases P 3,7746 T 31276 P 3,746 T 3,127.6
Operating leascs 42.5 43.6 - -

) 381714 P 31712 P 377146 P 31276

Interest expense on lease deposits accrued using the effective interest method in the
Group’s financial statements amounted to P4.2, P4.5 and P12.0 in 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively, and P2.5, P2.9 and P6.1 in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, in
the Parent Company financial statements (sce Note 13). These are included as part
of Interest and Financing Charges under Operating Costs and Expenses in the
Group and Parent Company statements of income.

16. EQUITY

16.01 Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

a. To provide an adequate return to sharcholders by pricing products
commensurately with the level of risk; and

b. To ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure
and the Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group’s capital and overall financing as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are
shown below:

2013 2012
Total equity | 47710 P 4.588.8
Cash and cash equivalents ( 138.0) ( 69.4)
Net capital P 4,633.0 P 45194
Bills payable P 16,448.5 P 12,697.0
Lease deposits 3,817.1 3,171.2
Total equity 4,771.0 ~4588.8
Ovwerall financing P 25,036.6 P _20,457.0
Capital-to-overall financing ratio 0.19:1 0.22:1

Under RA No. 8556 the Group is required to maintain the following capital
requirements:

*  Minimum paid-up capital of P10 million; and

» Additional capital requirements for each branch of P1 million for branches
established in Metro Manila, P0O.5 million for branches established in other
classes of cities and P0.25 million for branches established in municipalities.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group is in compliance with this minimum
paid-up capital requirement.

16.02 Preferred Shares

The Parent Company has 200,000 authorized preferred shares at P100 par value a
share with the following features:

a. Issued serially in blocks of not less than 100,000 shares;

b. No pre-emptive rights to any or all issues on other disposition of preferred
shares;

c. Entitled to cumulative dividends at a rate not higher than 20% yearly;

d. Subject to call or with tights for their redemption, either mandatoty at a fixed or
determinable date after issue; and

e. Nonvoting, except in cases expressly provided for by law.

None of these authorized preferred shares are issued as of Decetmber 31, 2013 and
2012.
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16.03 Commoun Shares

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, out of the total authorized capital stock of
3,400,000,000 common shares with par value of one peso per share, 2,162,475,312
common shares net of treasury shares of 62,693,718, amounting to P2,162.5 are
issued and outstanding,.

On April 17, 2013, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends at P0.15 per
share amounting to P324.4. The dividends were declared in favor of stockholders of
record as of May 17, 2013 and were paid subsequently on June 13, 2013.

On April 8, 2012, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends at P0.05 per
share amounting to P108.1. The dividends were declared 1n favor of stockholders of
record as of May 31, 2012 and were paid subsequently on June 27, 2012.

On December 7, 2011 and May 30, 2011, the BOD approved the declaration of cash
dividends at P0.10 per share and P0.05 per share, respectively, amounting to

P216.2 and P108.2 or for a total of P324.4 for the year. The December 2011 and
May 2011 dividends were declared in favor of stockholders of record as of
December 26, 2011 and June 14, 2011, respectively. As of December 31, 2011, the
December 2011 dividends are still outstanding and is shown as Dividends Payable in
the 2011 statement of financial positon. The said dividends were paid subsequently
on January 18, 2012.

16.04 Track Record of Registration of Securities

On January 6, 1997, the Parent Company was listed with the PSE with 106,100,000
new additional common shares and 15,120,000 existing common shares with par
value of P1 per share. The listing was approved by the SEC in May 1996. As of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Parent Company’s number of shares registered
totaled 2,225,169,030 with par value of P1.00 per share and closed at a price of
P2.00 both in 2013 and 2012. The total number of stockholders is 1,177 and 1,199
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

OTHER INCOME

This account is composed of the following:

Group
Notes 2013 2012 2011

Dividend income 8 P 155.2 P 160.9 P 125.7
Gain on sale of property

and equipment and investment

properties 10, 11 24.5 55.1 45.5
Fair value gains - net 4.0 2.6 0.5
Miscellaneous 10, 20 41.5 41.9 55.7

P 2252 P 260.5 P 227.4
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Parent Company
Notes 2013 2012 2011

Dividend income 8 P 1552 P 1609 T 125.7
Gain on sale of property

and equipment and investment

propertics 10, 11 4.7 51.5 40.4
Fair value gains (losscs) - net 1.6 1.5 ( 0.8)
Miscellancous 10, 20 36.8 37.3 33.7

P 1983 1 2512 P 199.0

Dividend income pertains to income eatned for investments in SMC shares and First
Gen shares (see Note 8).

Fair value gains (losses) — net represent the fair value gains on initial recognition of
lease deposits (representing excess of principal amount over fair value of leased
deposits), net of the fair value losses on initial recognition of the residual value
receivables under finance lease.

LEASES

The Group’s finance lease contracts generally have lease terms ranging from
24 to 60 months.

In the ordinary course of business, the Group enters into various operating leases
with lease terms ranging from 12 to 60 months. Opetrating lease income presented
under Rent account in the Group statements of income for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 amounted to P380.8, P229.8 and P244.5,

respectively.

Future minimum rental receivables undet operating leases follow:

2013 2012 2011
Within one year P 917 P 711 P 123.9
After one year but not more
than five years 890.0 289.1 393

P 9817 I 3602 P 163.2
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

19.01 Salaries and Employee Benefits Expense

Expenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits for the Group and the
Parent Company are presented below.

2013 2012 2011
Salaries and wages P 993 P 97.8 T 85.3
Bonuses 33.0 309 31.0
Retirement — defined benefit plan 16.4 14.1 12.0
Social security costs 34 3.4 6.4
Other benefits 31.3 184 19.3
) 1834 P 1646 D 154.0

19.02 Post-employment Benefits

(@)

(%)

Characteristics of the Defined Benefir Plan

The Group maintains a wholly-funded, tax-qualified, noncontributory and
multi-employer retirement plan that is being administered by a trustee bank
covering all regular full-time employees.

The normal retirement age is 60 with a minimum of 5 years of credited service.
The plan also provides for an eatly retirement at age 50 with a minitmum of

5 years of credited service and late retirement after age 60 but not beyond

65 years of age, both subject to the approval of the Group’s BOD.

Explanation of Amounts Presented in the Financial Statements

Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the post-employment benefit
costs and the related amount of conttibutions. All amounts presented in the
succeeding pages ate based on the actuarial valuation report obtained from an
independent actuary in 2013 including the comparative year which has been
restated in line with the adoption of PAS 19 (Revised), see Note 2.02(a).

The amounts of retirement benefit obligation (asset) of both Parent Company

and the Group recognized in the statements of financial positon are determined

as follows:
2012 2011
[As Restated — |As Restated —
2013 sce Note 2.02(a)] see Note 2.02(a)]
Present valuc of the obligation P 1594 P 1623 P 135.5
Fair value of plan assets ( 206.6) ( 163.1) ( 65.9)
Effect of asset ceiling 4.1 0.04 -

Balance at end of year 2 43.1) (2 07) D

69.6
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The movements in the present value of the retirement benefit asset (obligation)
recognized in the books are as follows:

2012 2011
[As Restated — [As Restated —
2013 sce Note 2.02(a)] see Note 2.02(a)]
Balance at beginning of ycar . P 1623 P 1355 P 101.5
Current service cost 16.4 141 8.9
Interest expense 9.1 8.6 8.4
Scttlement loss - - 31
Remeasurements:
Actuarial losses (gains)
arising from:
- changes in financial assumptions ( 1.7) 14 ( 7.9)
- experience adjustments ( 22.1) 9.0 45.5
Benefits paid ( 4.6) ( 6.3) ( 24.0)
Balance at end of year P 1594 D 1623 D 1355
The movement in the fair value of plan assets is presented below.
2012 2011
|As Restated — [As Restated —
2013 = seeNote202(2)]  see Note 202(2)]
Balance at beginning of year P 1631 P 659 P 61.1
Interest income 10.0 7.0 5.1
Return on plan assets (cxcluding
amounts included in net interest) 2.0 03 ( 1.7)
Contributions to the plan 36.1 96.2 25.4
Bencfits paid ( 4.6) ( 6.3) ( 24.0)
Balance at end of year P 2066 P 163.1 P 65.9

The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting
petiod for each category and tisk characteristics is shown below.

2013 2012

Cash and cash equivalents P 3.6 P 7.9
Equity insttuments 2.1 4.2
Loans 13.3 11.3
Unit investment trust funds 30.4 23.8
Real estate 3.0 3.5
85.4 50.7

Debt instruments:
Government bonds 78.8 76.8
Other bonds 211 16.9
99.9 93.7
Others 21.3 18.7

P_ 2066 P 163.1
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The retirement trust fund assets are valued by the fund manager at fair value
using the mark-to-matket valuation. While no significant changes in asset
allocation are expected in the next financial vear, the retirement plan trustee may
make changes at any time.

Actual return on plan assets amounted P12.1 in 2013, P7.3 in 2012, and P3.4 in
2011.

Except for certain shares of stock of the Parent Company, plan assets do not
comprise any of the Parent Company’s own financial instruments or any of its
assets occupied and/or used in its operations [see Note 20 (1)].

The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other
comprehensive income in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

2012 2011
[As Restated — [As Restated —
2013 see Note 2.02(a)] see Note 2.02(a)]
Reported in profit or loss:
Current service cost P 164 P 141 P 8.9
Settlement Joss - - 31
Net interest expense (income) ( __0.9) 1.6 3.3
P _155 D 157 D 15.3
Reported in other comprebensive income:
Actuarial losscs (gains) arising
from changes n:
- changes in financial assumptions (P 1.7) P 14 (P 7.9)
- expcrience adjustments ( 22.1) 9.0 45.5
Return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest) 2.0) ( 0.3) 1.7
Effect of asset ceiling 4.1 - -
@ 217y P 101 P.. 39.2

The net interest expense (income) is included as part of Interest and Financing
Charges and Other Income accounts, respectively, in the statements of income.

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income were included within items
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

In determining the amounts of the post-employment benefit obligation, the
following significant actuarial assumptions were used:

2013 2012 2011

Discount rates 4.69% 5.62% 6.33%
Expected rate of salary increases 8.00% 9.45% 10.00%
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Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and
mortality tables. The projected retirement date of the employees 1s at age

60 or at age of 50 with completion of 10 years of service, whichever 1s shorter.
These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of an
independent actuary. Discount factors are determined close to the end of each
reporting period by reference to the interest rates of a zero coupon government
bonds with terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the retirement
obligation. Other assumptions are based on current actuartal benchmarks and
management’s historical expetience.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the net accumulated actuarial losses
amounted to P41.9 and P57.1, respectively, due mainly to the declining discount
rates. Nevertheless, the Group has net retirement benefit asset amounting to
P43.1 and P0.7 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 12), due
to higher contributions made in 2013 and 2012.

Risks Associated with the Retirement Plan

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate
risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

(1) Investment and Interest Risk

The present value of the retirement benefit obligation is calculated using a
discount rate determined by reference to market yields of government bonds.
Generally, a decrease in the interest rate of a reference government bonds will
increase the plan obligation. However, this will be partially offset by an increase
in the return on the plan’s investments in debt securities and if the return on plan
asset falls below this rate, it will create a deficit in the plan. Currently, the plan has
relatively balanced investment in cash and cash equivalents, equity securities and
debt instruments. Due to the long-term nature of plan obligation, a level of
continuing equity investments is an appropriate element of the Group’s

long-term strategy to manage the plans efficiently.

(i) Longevity and Salary Risks

The present value of the retitement benefit obligadon is calculated by reference to
the best estimate of the mottality of the plan participants both during and after
their employment and to their future salaries. Consequently, increases in the life
expectancy and salary of the plan participants will result in an increase in the plan
obligation.

Other Information

The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial
assumptions, the Group’s asset-liability matching strategy, and the timing and
uncertainty of future cash flows related to the retirement plan are described in the
succeeding pages.
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(i) Sensitivity Analysis

The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuartal
assumptions used in the determination of the retitement benefit obligation as of
December 31, 2013:

Impact on retitement benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption _assumption assumption
Discount rate +/-1% (P 54) P 6.1
Salary growth rate +/-1% 5.1 ( 4.6)

The above table of sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while
holding all other assumptions constant. This analysis may not be representative of
the actual change in the retdrement benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity
analysis, the present value of the retirement benefit obligation has been calculated
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is
the same as that applied in calculating the retirement benefit obligation liability
recognized in the statements of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in prepating the sensitivity analysis
did not change compared to the previous years.

(@) Asser-liability matching strategy

The retirement plan trustee has no specific matching strategy between the plan
asscts and the plan liabilides.

(i) Funding Arrangements and Excpected Contributions.
The plan is currently overfunded by P43.1 based on the latest actuartal valuadon.

The Parent Company expects to make contribution of P33.6 to the plan duting
the next financial year.

The maturity profile of undiscounted expected benefits payments from the plan
for the next 10 years follows:

Within one year P -
Mote than one year to five years 59.7
More than five years to ten years 95.2
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Related Party Category

Ultimate Parent Company
Interest income on savings
and demand deposits
Interest cxpense on bills payable
Rent expense
Management fees

Subsidiary
Interest income on loans
Service fees
Rent income
Management fees

Affiliate

Service charges and fees

Key management personnel
Short-term benctfits
Post-employment benefits
Advances to officer

Related Party Category

Parent Company
Savings and demand
deposits
Bills payable

Key management personnel
Advances to officer

Retirement benefit fund
Loans to officers and
employees
Loans to members and
beneficiaries
Shares of stock
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s and Parent Company’s related parties include BDO Unibank, affiliates,

key management personnel and the retirement benefit fund as described below.

The summary of the Group’s and Parent Company’s transactions with its related
parties in 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Amount of Transaction

Notes 2013 2012 2011
(@) P 02 P 03 T 08
®) 148.5 98.3 86.7
(d) 10.7 11.0 115
(e) 24 2.4 -
o) - 0.7 0.7
(c) 5.3 8.4 9.9
(d) 04 0.4 0.4
(e) 0.4 0.4 0.8
i 2.2 2.8
@ 61.7 57.7 44.7
@ - 17.0 132
@ 0.9 1.7 -
Qutstanding Balance
Notes 2013 2012
(a) P 119.2 P 52.7
®) 6,119.8 6,731.7
© 2.2 1.6
() 34 P 3.4
h) 24 2.4
() 0.9 0.9

(a) The Group maintains savings and demand deposit accounts with BDO Unibank.
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, savings and demand deposit accounts
maintained with BDO Unibank are included under Cash and Cash Equivalents
account in the statements of financial position (see Note 7). Interest income
eatned on deposits in 2013, 2012 and 2011 is included under Interest and
Discounts as part of Revenues in the statements of income.
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The Group obtains short-term, unsecured bills payable from BDO Unibank.
The amount outstanding from botrowings as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 is
presented under Bills Payable account in the statements of financial position

(see Note 13). Interest expense incurred on these bills payable in 2013, 2012 and
2011 is included under Interest and financing charges account as part of
Operating Costs and Expenses account in the statements of income. Also, the
Parent Company grants short-terin, unsecured loans to BDO Rental. There is
no outstanding balance arising from this transaction as of December 31, 2013
and 2012. Total interest income earned by the Parent Company on these loans
in 2012 and 2011 is included under Interest and Discounts as part of Revenues in
the statements of income.

On January 4, 2010, the Parent Company and BDO Rental entered into a Service
Agreement whereby BDO Rental will handle the collection of certain factored
receivables of the Parent Company, for a fee as agreed by the Parent Company
and the sellers of the factored receivables. Under the Setvice Agteement, BDO
Rental shall perform the monitoring of the payment due dates of the factored
receivables, remit to the Parent Company all collections made and send monthly
statement of accounts to customers. The related expense charged to the Parent
Company based on the Service Agreement is included under Other Operating
Costs and Expenses in the Parent Company’s statements of income. There are
no outstanding intercompany payable and receivable from this transaction as of

December 31, 2013 and 2012.

The Parent Company leases its head office premises and certain branch offices
from BDO Unibank for terms ranging from one to five years, renewable for
such period and under such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon with
the Parent Company and BDO Unibank. Related rent expense incurred in 2013,
2012 and 2011 is presented as part of Occupancy and equipment-related
expenses under Operating Costs and Expenses account in the statements of
income. On the other hand, the Parent Company charges BDO Rental for the
spaces that the latter occupies in the head office premises. Rent changed to
BDO Rental in 2013 and 2012 is presented as part of Other Income in the
statements of income. There are no outstanding receivable and payable on these
transactions as of the end of 2013 and 2012.

In 2012, the Parent Company entered into a service level agtreement with BDO
Unibank wherein BDO Unibank will charge the Parent Company for certain
management services that the former provides to the latter. Management fees
paid by the Parent Company to BDO Unibank is shown as part of Other
Operating Costs and Expenses in the statements of income.

Also, the Parent Company charges BDO Rental for the management services it
renders to BDO Rental. This is presented as part of Other Income in the
statements of income of the Parent Company. There are no outstanding
receivable and payable on these transactions as of the end of 2013 and 2012.
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The Parent Company engaged the services of BDO Capital and Investment
Corporation (BDO Capital), a wholly owned subsidiary of BDO Unibank for
underwriting services related to the Parent Company’s issuance of bills payable in
2012. Service charges and fees paid by the Parent Company to BDO Capital
related to this transaction is included as part of Other Operating Costs and
Expenses in the statements of income. There are no outstanding payable related
on this transaction as of the end of 2013 and 2012.

(z) Compensation of key management personnel (covering officer positions starting

from Assistant Vice President and up) is included as part of Employee Benefits
under Operating Costs and Expenses in the statements of income of the Group
and Parent Company. Short-term employee benefits include salaries, paid annual
leave and paid sick leave, profit sharing and bonuses, and non-monetary benefits.
The Group aiso incurred post-employment benefit expense related to key
management personnel included as part of Employee Benefits under Operating
Costs and Expenses. The Group also granted cash advances to an officer.

() The Group maintains a retitement benefit fund with BDO Unibank covering all

regular full-ime employees. In the normal course of business, the retirement
benefit fund grants salary and housing loans to certain officers and employees of
the Parent Company, and members and beneficiaries of the fund who are also
officers of the Parent Company. The housing loans are secured by the mortgage
on the property and bear interest at 9% per annum and have terms ranging from
13 to 20 years. The salary loans on the other hand, are unsecured and bear
interest ranging from 9% to 10% per annum and have terms ranging from

18 months to 3 years. There is no impairment loss recognized on this loan.

The retirement fund holds 442,750 shates of stock of the Parent Company
[see Note 19 (b)] as an investment, which has a market valuc of P2.00 pet shate
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,

TAXES

21.01 Taxes and Licenses

This account is composed of the following:

Group
2013 2012 2011
Gross receipts tax P 631 P 628 P 52.2
Documentary stamp tax 73.2 60.9 51.3
Local taxes 11.8 10.5 13.4
Others 0.6 0.5 5.7

P 1487 P 1347 P 122.6
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Parent Company
2013 2012 2011

Documentary stamp tax P 702 P 604 P 51.2
Gross receipts tax 63.1 62.8 52.2
Local taxcs 10.1 8.5 7.7
Others 0.6 0.5 3.6
P 1440 P 1322 D 114.7

21.02 Current and Deferred Taxes

The components of tax expense for the years ended December 31 follow:

Group
2012 2011
(As Restated - (As Restated -

2013 sce Note 2) see Notc 2)

Reported in statements of income
Current tax expensc:
Regular corporate income tax (RCIT)

at 30% P 129.7 P 166.1 P 88.8
I“inal tax at 20% 20.5 0.1 0.2
150.2 166.2 89.0

Deferred tax income relating to
origination and reversal of
temporary difference ( 4.7) ( 50.0) ( 6.2)

P 1455 P 1162 P 82.8

Reported in statements of comprebensive income
Deterred tax expense (income) relating to
origination of temporary differences:

AFS financial assets P 0.4 (P 0.1) (P 0.9)
Actuarial gains and losscs 6.5 ( 3.0)( 11.7)
P 6.9 (P 31) (P 126)

Parent Company
2012 2011
(As Restated - (/s Restated -

2013 see Note 2) see Note 2)

Reported in statements of income
Current tax expense:

RCIT at 30% | 1023 P 156.6 P 88.8
Final tax at 20% 20.5 0.1 0.1
122.8 156.7 88.9

Deferred tax income
Deferred tax relating to
origination and reversal of

temporary difference ( 4.6) ( 57.3) ( 6.8)

r 1182 T 994 I 82.1
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Parent Company
2012 2011
{As Restated - (As Restated -
2013 sec Note 2) sec Note 2
Reported in statements of comprebensive income
Deferred tax relating to
origination of temporary differences:
ALS financial assets P 0.4 (P 0.1) (P 0.9)
Actuarial gains and losscs 6.5 ( 3.0) ( 11.7)

P 69 (P _31)(P 12.6)

A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rates to
tax expense reported in the statements of income follows:

Group
2012 2011
(As Restated - (As Restated -
2013 see Notc 2) see Note 2)
Tax on pretax profit P 169.8 T 158.1 P 1174
Adjustment for income subjected
to lower tax rates ( 3.7 ( 0.1)( 0.1)
Tax effects of:
Non-deductible cxpense 4.9 3.9 4.5
Non-taxable income ( 27.2) ( 45.7) ( 39.0)
Non-deductible interest cxpense 1.7 - -
P 1455 P 1162 P 828
Parent Company
2012 2011
(As Restated - (\s Restated -
2013 sce Note 2} sec Note 2)
Tax on pretax profit P 142.7 P 1414 P 118.6
Adjustment fot income subjected
to lower tax rates ( 3.7 - -
Tax effects of:
Non-deductible expense 4.9 3.4 2.1
Non-taxable income ( 26.5) ( 45.4) ( 38.6)
Non-deductible interest expensc 0.8 - -

P 1182 P 294 P 82.1
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The components of net deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2013 and 2012
follow:

Statements of Financial Position

Group Parent Company
2012 2012
(s Restated - (As Restated -
2013 sce Note 2) 2013 sce Note 2)

Decferred tax asscts:
Allowance for
impairment on:
Loans P 853 P 87.7 P 853 P 87.7
Investment properties
and non-current asscts

held-for-sale 42.3 419 42.3 419
Accounts receivable 0.9 1.0 0.9 1.0
Retirement benefit obligaton 12.0 16.8 12.0 16.8
Others 3.8 0.6 3.7 0.6
144.3 148.0 144.2 148.0
Deferred tax liabilities:
Lcase income differential - ( 148.6) ( 148.6) ( 148.6) ( 148.6)
Unrealized fair value gain
on AF$ ( 10.5) ( 10.1) ( 10.5) ( 10.1)
Unrealized gain on
exchange of asscts - ( 1.6) - ( 1.6)
Others ( 0.4)( 0.7) ( 0.3) ( 0.6)
( 159.5) ( 161.0) ( 159.4) ( 160.9)
Net deferred tax liabilites P 15.2) (P __13.0) (P 16.2) (2 12.9)

The components of deferred tax expense (income) in profit and loss and in other
comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 follow:

_Group
2012 2011
(As Restated - (As Restated -
2013 sce Note 2) sec Note 2)
In profit or loss:
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for impairment on:
Loans and discounts P 24 (P 49) (P 14.6)
Investment properties and
non-current asscts held-for-sale ( 0.4) ( 14.1) ( 6.6)
Accounts receivable 0.1 1.0 0.1
Retirement benefit obligation ( 17) 33 3.0
Net operating loss carryover - 7.2 -
Other ( 3.2) - -

Total deferred tax assets
(balance carried forward) (P 2.8) (P 7.5) (P 18.1)
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Group
2012 2011
(s Restated - (s Restated -
2013 see Note 2) sce Note 2
Total deferred tax assets
(Dalance brought forward) (P 2.8) (I’ 7.5) (P 18.1)
Deferred tax liabilities:
Lcase income differential - ( 43.1) 11.8
Others ( 1.9) 0.6 0.1
( 1.9) ( 42.5) 11.9
Net deferred tax expense (incomce) (P _4.7) (P 50.0) (P 6.2)
Parent Company
2012 2011
(As Restated - (:\s Restated -
2013 sec Note 2 sce Note 2)
In profit or loss:
Deferred tax asscts:
Allowance for impaimment on:
Loans and discounts P 24 (P 4.9) (P 14.6)
Investment properties and
non-current assets held-for-sale ( 0.4) ( 14.1) ( 6.6)
Accounts receivable 0.1 1.0 0.1
Retirement benefit obligation ( 1.7) 3.3 3.0
Other ( 3.1) - -
( 2.7)( 14.7) 18.1
DNeferred tax liahiliriee:
Lease income differential - ( 43.1) 11.3
Others 19 0.5 -
( 1.9) ( 42.6) 11.3
Net deferred tax expense (income) (P 4.6) (P 57.3) (P 6.8)

Group and Parent Company

2013 2012
In other comprebensive income:
Deferred tax expense (income) on:
Net actuarial losses P 6.5 (P 3.0)
Unrealized fair value gains on
AFES financial assets 04 ( 0.1)
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21.03 Supplementarty Information Required Under Revenue Regulations
(RR) 15-2010 and 19-2011

The Bureau of Internal Revenue issued Revenue Regulations 15-2010 and 19-2011
which required certain supplementary information to be disclosed as part of the notes
to financial statements. The supplementary information is, however, not a required
part of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards; it is neither a required disclosure under the Philippine Securities
and Exchange Commission rules and regulations covering the form and content of
financial statements under Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended.

The Parent Company presented this tax information required by the BIR as a
supplementary schedule filed separately from the basic financial statements.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share were computed as follows:

Group
2012 201
(As Restated - (\s Restated -
2013 scc Note 2) scc Note 2)
Net profit P 4203 P 4107 P 308.3
Divided by the weighted average number
of outstanding common shares — nct* 2,162 2162 2162
Basic carnings per share P 019 D 019 D 0.14
Parent Company
2012 2011
(As Restated - (As Restated -
2013 sce Note 2) sce Note 2)
Net profit P 3575 P 3718 P 313.2
Divided by the weighted average number
of outstanding common shares — net* 2,162 2,162 2,162
Basic earnings per share )l 017 P 017 P 0.14

* net of treasury shares

There were no outstanding dilutive potential common shares as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

On February 26, 2014, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends on the
2,162,475,312 shares outstanding at P0.15 per shate or for P324.4. The dividends
were declared in favor of stockholders of recard as of March 13, 2014 and payablc on
March 31, 2014,
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

24.01 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee

The Group leases the head office and certain branch offices from BDO Unibank.
Total lease payments presented as part of Occupancy and equipment-related
expenses under Operating Costs and Expenses in the statements of income
amounted to P11.2 in 2013, P11.0 in 2012, and P11.5 in 2011.

Future minimum lease payments under these operating leases follow:

2013 2012 2011
Within onc year P 1571 7 112 P 11.0
After one year but not more
than five years 68.88 55.2 55.0
P 8459 P 664 D ___66.0
24.020thers

In addition to those already mentioned in the preceding notes, in the ordinary course
of business, the Group incurs contingent liabilities and commitments arising from
normal business transactions which are not reflected in the accompanying financial
statements. As of December 31, 2013, management does not anticipate significant
losses from these contingencies and commitments that would adversely affect the
Group’s financial position and results of operations.
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BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Statement of Management's Responsibilty for Financial Statements

Report of Independent Auditors on Supplementary Schedules Filed Separately
from the Basic Financial Statements

(1) Supplementary Schedules to Financial Statements
(Annexc 68-E, SRC Rule 68)

Schedule

A Financial Assets

B Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties,
and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

C Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated
during the Consolidation of Financial Statements

D Intangible Assets - Other Assets

E Long-Term Debt

F Indebtedness to Related Parties

G Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

H Capital Stock

(2) Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

(3) Map Showing the Relationship Between and Among Related Entities

(4) List of Standards and Interpretations under Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
as of December 31, 2013
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Report of Independent Auditors
To Accompany SEC Schedules
Filed Separately from the

Basic Financial Statements

The Board of Directors

BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc.

(A Subsidiary of BDQ Unibank, Inc.)
BDO Leasing Centre, Corinthian Gardens
Ortigas Avenue, Quezon City

yan-arauiic.opm

We have audited the financial statements of BDO leasing and Finance, Inc. and
subsidiary (the Group) and BDO Leasing and Finance, Tnc. (the Parent Company) for
the ycar ended December 31, 2013, on which we have rendered the attached report
dated February 26, 2014, Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The applicable
supplementary schedules (see table of contents) to the Group and the Parent
Company as of December 31, 2013 and for the year then ended, in compliance with
the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, ate presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not required part of the basic financial
statements prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management. The
information in such supplementary schedule has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is

faitly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

A G

By: . Murcia Il
CPA Reg. No. 0095626
TIN 906-174.059
PTR No. 4225011, January 2, 2014, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 0628-AR-2 (until Sept. 5, 2016)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-3 (ungl Jan. 18, 2015}
BIR AN 08-002511-22-2013 (untl Nov. 7, 20106)
Firm’s BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2015)
Certified Publie Accountants Fcbruafy 26, 2014

P&a is a member firon wilkin Grant Thernton interatinnat Lt

Hices in Ceing, O



BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
SCHEDULE A - FINANCIAL ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Name of issuing entity and association of each issue (i)

Number of shares or
principal amount of

Amount shown on the

Valued based on the
market quotation at

Income received and

h

bonds or notes balance sheet end of reporting period accrued
Available-for-sale (AFS) Financial Assets
San Miguel Corporaton Preferred Shares 16,933,200 P 1,302,163,080 P 1,302,163,080 P 99,217,969
First Gen Corporation Preferred Shares 7,000,000 791,000,000 791,000,000 56,000,000
Valley Golf Country Club 1 200,000 200,000 -
Splendido Tagaytay 1 150,000 150,000
Total AFS Financial Assets P 2,093,513,080 P 2,093,513,080 P 155,217,969




BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)

SCHEDULE B - AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, RELATED PARTIES AND PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS (OTHER THAN RELATED PARTIES)
DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Deductions Ending Balance
Bal. t .. . Bala at end of
Name and designation of debtor aanceat Additions Amounts collected | Amounts written off Current Not current ance arend o
beginning of period perivd
|

Amounts Due from Related Parties:
- nothing to report -

7
Advances/Loans to Officers and Employees: N
Lapid, Roberto Estrera P 1,626,955 P 922332 P 371,631 1’ 1’ 2,177,656 I P 2,177,656

e

\d/



BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
SCHEDULE C - AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES WHICH ARE ELIMINATED DURING THE CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Deductions

Ending Balance

Name and designation of debtor

Balance at
beginning of period

Additions

Amounts collected

Amounts written off

Current

Not curreat

Balance at end of
period

- nothing to report -

Y
J

N



BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
SCHEDULE D - INTANGIBLE ASSETS - OTHER ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Amouants in Philippine Pesos)

Description

Beginning balance

Additions ar cost

Charged to cost and
expenses

Charged to other
accounts

Other changes
additions
(deductions)

Ending balance

- nothing to report -

)

~
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BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

DECEMBER 31, 2013

(A Subsidiaty of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
SCHEDULE E - LONG-TERM DEBT

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Title of issue and type of obligation

Amount authorized by
indenture

Amount shown under
caption''Current
portion of long-term
debt" in related balance
sheet **

Amount shown under
caption"Long-Term
Debt" in related balance
sheet

- nothing to report -




BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
SCHEDULE F - INDEBTEDNESS TO RELATED PARTIES (LONG-TERM LOANS FROM RELATED COMPANIES)

DECEMBER 31, 2013

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Name of related party

Balance at beginning of
period

Balance at end of period

- nothing to report -

)



BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
SCHEDULE G - GUARANTEE OF SECURITIES OF OTHER ISSUERS
DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Name of issuing entity of securities
guaranteed by the company for which this
statement Is filed

Title of Issue of each
class of securities
Zuaranteed

Total amount of
guaranteed and
outstanding

Amount owned by
person for which
statement is filed

Nature of guarantee

- nothing to report -

TN

e



BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC AND SUBSIDIARY
(A Subsidiary of BDO Unibank, Inc.)
SCHEDULE H - CAPITAL STOCK

DECEMBER 31, 2013

Number or Shares Held By

Number of Shares | Number of Shares.
Issued and Reserved for
Outstanding under | Options, Warrants,
Number of Shares Related Balance Conversions and Related Parties Directors, Officers
Title of Issue Authorized Sheet Caption * Other Rights (Parent, Affiliates) and Employees Others
Preferred Shates 200,000 - - -
Common Shares 3,400,000,000 2,162,475,312 - 1,890,610,907 134,340 271,730,065

* Determination of number of shates issued and outstanding:

Number of shares issued

Less shares held in treasury

2,225 169,030
62,693,718

2,162,475,312

O
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BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC.
BDO Leasing Centre, Corinthian Gardens, Ortigas Avenue, Quezon City

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
(Amounts in Millions of Philippine Pesos)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings at Beginning of Year
Prior Years' Outstanding Reconciling Items, net of tax
Deferred tax income

Effect of PAS 19 adjustment

Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for
Dividend Declaration at Beginning of Year, as Adjusted

Net Profit Realized during the Year
Net profit per audited financial statements
Non-actual/unrealized income, net of tax
Deferred tax income

Unrealized foreign currency gain

Other Transactions During the Year

Dividends declared

Retained Earnings Restricted for Treasury Shares

Unappropriated Retained Eamings Available foc
Dividend Declaration at End of Year

P 1,707.1

A

11.6

1,668.7

357.5

351.4

P 1,613.9



BDO UNIBANK GROUP

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

Subsidiaries/Affiliates
As of 31 December 2013

BDO UNIBANK, INC.

PHILIPPINE PARENT BANK

|

Financial Companies

BDO Private Bank, Inc.

(100%)

BDO Leasing and Finance,
Inc.(BDO - 87.43% & BDO
Capital — 1.11%)

BDO Capital & Investment ||

Corporation (100%)

BDO Rental, Inc.
(100%)

BDO Securities
Corporation (100%)

L CBN Grupo
International Holdings
B.V. (60%)

Averon Holdings Inc.
1 (100%)

PCIB Securities, Inc.
(100%) [b]

BDO Remit (USA), Inc.
(100%)

Express Padala (HK) Ltd.
(100%) [c]

Express Padala Frankfurt
GmbH (100%)

BDO Elite Savings Bank, Inc.,
{formerly GE Money Bank,
Inc.] (99%) [b]

BDOQ Strategic Holdings Inc.
(100%)

Armstrong Securities,
inc. (80%) [b]

BDO Remit (Italia)
S.p.A. (100%) [a]

BDO Remit Limited
(100%)

BDO Remit (Macau)
Ltd. (100%)

PCIB Europe SpA (100%) [a]

Venture Industry for Business
Enterprises (24%) {a]

I

|

Insurance Companies

Real Estate Companies

Service Companies

(100%)

|| BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc.

BDORO Europe Ltd.
(100%)

Manila North Tollways Corp.
(12%)

PCI Insurance Brokers, Inc.
(100%) [a]

Equimark-NFC
Development Corp. (60%)

PCI Travel Corporation (35%)

2]

Generali Pilipinas Holdings,
-4 Inc. (BDO - 38.05% &
BDO Capital — 1.95%)

SM Keppel Land, Inc.
(50%)

Taal Land, Inc.
(33%) [b]

NorthPine Land, Inc¢
(20%)

MDB Land, Inc. [a]
(BDO-35%, BDOSHI1-65%)

Unicom First Properties, Inc
(35%) |a]

[a] For dissolution

[b] For sale

[c] For merger




BDO LEASING AND FINANCE, INC.

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations

Adopted by the Securitics and Exchange Commission and the
Financial Reporting Standards Council as of December 31, 2013

N
PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted Not ot
Adopted Applicable
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements v (
Conceptual Framework Phase A Objectves and Qualitative Characteristics v j
Practice Statement Management Commentary v J
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) j
Fiest-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards v
Amendments to PERS 1: Additional Exemprions for First-time Adopters
Amendment to PERS 1: First-time Adoption of PFRS ~ Repeated Application of PIRS 1 and
Borrowing Costs**
Amendment to PIRS 1: Limited Fxemption from Comparative PERS 7 Disclosures for First- v
PFRS 1 time Adopters
Amendments to PIFRS 1: Severe flyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Y
Adopters**
Amendment to PERS 1 Meaning of Liffective PIRS* (effective fuly 1, 2074) v
Amendments to PERS 11 Goveramenr Loans** v
Share-based Payment v
PFRS 2
Amendments to PERS 2: Definition of Vesting Coadition™ feffective Jufy 1. 2014) v
Amendment to PERS 2: Share-based Payment — Definition of Vesting Condition** v
Amendments to PIRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions** v
Rusiness Cambinations v
PERS 3 Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business Combination®| v
(effective July 1, 2014)
Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Lixceptions for Joint Ventures* (effectire July 1, 2014)
Insurance Contracts v
PFRS 4
Amendments to PAS 39 and PIFRS 4: Financial Guarantce Contracts v
PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Opcrations v
PFRS 6 Exploration for and Exaluation of Mincral Resources v
Financial Instruments: Disclosures v
Amendments to PERS 7: Transition v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PERS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PIRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Asscts - Liffective Date and v
Transition
PHKS 7 (Amended) Amendments to PIFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about Iinancial [nstruments v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfecs of Financial Assets v
Offsctiing Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitics v
Amendments to PI'RS 7: Mandatory Effective Date af PIFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures* v
(effectire Jannary 1, 2013)
PFRS 8 (Amended) Amendment to PF}(S 8: A%gregmion of Op‘em.u'r:g Segmc:ts, :m'd Reconciliation of the Total v
of the Reportable Segment’s Asscts to the intity’s Assets* (effective July 1, 2014)
Financial Insfruments** v
PFRS O Amendments to PFRS Y: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures*** y
(effective January 1, 2013)
Consolidated Financial Statements v
PFRS 10 Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance v




) 9,

Consclidadon of Tavesoment Vintieies® feffedire Lenwary 10 2014) —‘ v
Jome Arrangements v
PFRS 11 s
Amendments to PIFRS TE Transinon Gudance v
Disctosure of Tngeeeses in Other Pntities v
PFRS 12 Amendments to PERS 12: Tansition Guidanee 4
Amendments to PIFRS 12 Consolidation of Investment Fatues® feffectire fannary (. 2014) v
[faie Value Measurement v
Amendment to PERS 13; Discounting of shorr-teem Reccivables and Pavables* feffective Jufy 1.
PFRS 13 2014)
Amendment to PERS 13: Scope of Portfolio ixeeption
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
Presentation of Financial Statements v
Amendments 10 PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on] v
PAS 1 ILiguidation
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Trems of Other Comprehensive Income v
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements — Clarification of the v
Requirements for Comparative Information
PAS 2 [nventorics** v
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows v
PASS8 Accounting Policics, Changes in Accounting Vistimates and Virrors v
PAS 10 Livents after the Reportng Period v
PAS 11 Construction Contracts v
Income Taxes v
PAS 12
Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets v
Amendment to PAS 16: Classification of Servicing Hquipment** v
PAS 16 Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Mcthod ~ Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated v
Depreciation® {effective July 1, 2014)
PAS 17 Leascs v
PAS 18 Revenue** v
PAS 19 Iimployee Bencfits** v
Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losscs, Group Plans and Disclosurcs** v
PAS 19 (Revised) Employee Bencfits** v
&AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance v
‘The Fffects of Changes in Forcign Exchange Rates v
PAS 21
Amendment: Net Investment tn a Forcign Operation 4
(PAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs v
Related Party Disclosures v
PAS 24 (Amended)
Disclosure of Key Management Personnel * (effectire July 1, 2014) v
(PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
{PAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statcments v
Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an Investment in Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Latity or Associate
Separate Financial Statements 7
PAS 27
Amendments to PAS 27 (Amended): Investment Entities* (effectire January 1, 2013) v
ﬁ’ﬁ 28 Investments in Associates v
{PAS 28 (Amended) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
(PAS 29 Financial Reporting in [ yperinflationary Economies v
[PAS 3 Intesests in Joint Ventures v




Firancial fnsscuments: Presentation 4
Amendments 1o PAS 32 and PAS | Purtable Finanerd Instrumentes and Obligations Arising on v
Liquidation®*
PAS 32 Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues* v
Amendment 1o PAS 327Tax ilfece of Distributions to Holders of Fquity fnstruments ™ 4
Amendmenes to PAS 32: Offsering Financial Assets and Fiancial Liabilicdes® foffectire fanan
7.2014)
PAS 33 Ilarnings per Share 4
PAS 34 (Amended) Interim linancial Reporting and Scgment Information for Total Assets and Liabilitics v
PAS 36 (Amended) Recoverable Amount Disclosares for Non-(inancial Assews® (effective Jamwary 1. 2014)
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contdngent Asscis v
PAS 38 (Amended) lnmngi.h\c.,-\sscts - Revaluanon Method — Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization * {effedtre [1(/2' /,2014)
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement v
Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and lnidal Recogniton of Financial Asscts and Financial il
Liabilitics**
Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow [Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions**
Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option** v
Recognition and Measurement — Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of 1edge
PAS 39 (Amended) Accounting* (ffective Janwary 1, 2014)
Amendments to PAS 39 and PERS 4: Financial Guarantee Contraces** v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Finaactal Asscts** v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Asscts — Effective Date and
‘Y ransiton**
Amendments to Philippine Inteepretation [FRIC 9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives™*
Amendment to PAS 39: Lligible Tedged Trems** v
PAS 40 (Amended) Clarifying the Interrelationship between PERS 3 and PAS 40%* v
PAS 41 Agticulture
Philippine Interpretations - International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
]
IFRIC 1 Changes in lixisting Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilitics**
IFRIC 2 Members' Shave in Co-operadve Fatides and Similar Instruments
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease 4
Rights tos Intereats Asing from Decommissioning, Restoration and knvironmental
{FRIC 5 e )
Rehabilitation Funds**
IFRIC 6 Liabilitics Arising from Participating in a Specific Market - Waste Electrical and Llectronic
Equipment
LFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29, Financial Reporting in IHyperinflatonary
Economies
Reassessment of Embedded Denvagves** i
IFRIC 9
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation [FRIC-9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives**
{FRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
PAS 19 - The Limit oa a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their v
Interaction**
IFRIC 14 - - - -
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC - 14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding v
Requircment and their Interacton**
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate****
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
IFRIC 17 Distributons of Non-cash Asseta to Qwnera** v
{FRIC {8 Transfors of Asocta from Customers** 4 T
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments** v
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
IFRIC 21 Levies* (effectite Jamuary 1, 2014)




—
Philippine Interpretations - Standing Interpretations Comunittee (SIC)
SIC-7 Introduction of the furo 7 R
SIC-10 Goverament Assistance - Neo Specific Relation to Operating Activities v
Consolidation - Special Purpose Faries v B
SIC-12
Amendment to SIC - 120 Scope of SIC 12 v
SIC-13 Joindy Controlled Fntities - Non-Monctary Coneributions by Venturers v
SIC-15 Operating 1.cases - Incentives v
SIC-25 Income Taxces - Changes in the Tax Status of an Vntity or its Sharcholders v
SIC-27 Fraluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease v ;‘
SIC-29 Service Coneession Arrangements: Disclosures v
SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services** v
SIC-32 Intangible Asscts - Web Sire Costs v
t

“These standards will be effective for periods subsequent o 2013 and are nor early adopted by the Company.
** T'hese standards have been adopted in the preparation of financial statements but the Company has no significant transactions covered for
in both vears presented.

ok ke

The IASB aims to replace TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement in ies entirety. ‘This consists of three main phases
cnumerated below.

Phase 1 : Classification and Measurement (issued to datce)

Phase 22 Tmpairmient methodology

Phase 3 : Hedge accountng (1ssued to date at the TASE level)
Mandatory effectivity date of PIRS/IFRS 9 has been deferred with the new dare to be derermined when 11FRS 9 is closer to complenon

*eax Deferred application in the Philippines approved by the Philippine SEC until completionand effectivity of the revenue recopnition
project of the 'ASB and [ASB.



BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. and Subsidiary
Financial Ratios

December 31, 2013 and 2012

(Amounts in Millions of Philippine Pesos)

2012 2012
2013 (As Restated) 2013 _ {As Restated)
I. Current/liquidity ratios
Current ratio
Total current assets 8,766.7 5,803.1 0.43 043
Total current liabilities 20,524.0 13,513.4
Quick ratio
Quick assets 8,208.6 5,593.4 0.40 0.41
Total current liabilities 20,524.0 13,529.2
II. Solvency ratios; debt-to-equity ratios
Solvency ratio
(After tax net profit + Depreciation) 744.9 937.6 0.04 0.06
Total liabilities 20,566.4 16,085.5
Debt-to-equity ratio
Total liabilities 20,566.4 16,085.5 4.31 3.51
Total equity 4,771.0 4,588.8



BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. and Subsidiary
Financial Ratios

December 31, 2013 and 2012

(Amounts in Millions of Philippine Pesos)

2012 2012
2013 _(As Restated) 2013 (s Restated)
II1. Asset-to-equity ratio
Asset-to-equity ratio
N
Total assets 25,337.4 20,674.3 5.31 451 R
Total equity 4,771.0 4,588.8
IV. Interest coverage ratio
Interest coverage ratio
Earnings before interest and taxes 984.4 990.1 2.35 214
Interest expense 418.6 463.2
V. Profitability ratios
Net profit margin
Net Profit 420.3 410.7 22.09% 23.32%
Interest income + Other operating income 1,902.9 1,761.5
N
Return on equity ¢
Net profit 4203 410.7 8.98% 9.23%
Average equity 4,580.0 44515
Return on assets
Net profit 420.3 410.7 1.83% 2.13%
Average assets 23,005.9 19,261.8



BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. and Subsidiary
Financial Ratios

December 31, 2013 and 2012

(Amounts in Millions of Philippine Pesos)

VI. Others

2012 2012
2013 (s Restated) 2013 {As Restated)
Total real estate investments to Assets
Total investment properties 145.7 379.5 0.58% 1.84%
Total assets 25,337.4 20,674.3
Loans to Assets
Total loans and other receivables 20,975.0 17,245.0 82.78% 83.41%
Total assets 25,337.4 20,674.3
DQOSRI to Net worth
Receivables from Directors, Officers
Stakeholders and Related Interests 2.2 1.6 0.05% 0.03%
Total equity 4,771.0 4,588.8
Amount of receivable from a single corporation to
Total recetvables
Loan to a single corporation 1,234.8 1,275.6 5.89% 7.40%
Total loans and other receivables 20,975.0 17,245.0





